Public Document Pack

Cabinet
16 June 2022
Monday, 27 June 2022 Room 0.02 Chamber - Quadrant, The Silverlink North, Cobalt
Business Park, North Tyneside, NE27 0BY commencing at 6.00 pm.
Agenda
Item
1.

Page(s)
Apologies for Absence
To receive apologies for absence from the meeting.

2.

To Receive any Declarations of Interest and Notification of
any Dispensations Granted
You are invited to declare any registerable and/or nonregisterable interests in matters appearing on the agenda, and the
nature of that interest.
You are also invited to disclose any dispensation in relation to
any registerable and/or non-registerable interests that have been
granted to you in respect of any matters appearing on the agenda.
Please complete the Declarations of Interests card available at the
meeting and return it to the Democratic Services Officer before
leaving the meeting.

3.

Minutes

5 - 16

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 23 May 2022.

Members of the public
receive information about it.

are

welcome

to

attend

this

meeting

and

North Tyneside Council wants to make it easier for you to get hold of the
information you need. We are able to provide our documents in alternative
formats including Braille, audiotape, large print and alternative languages.
For further information about the meeting please call (0191) 643 5320.

Agenda
Item
4.

Page(s)

Report of the Young Mayor
To receive a verbal report on the latest activities of the Young
Mayor and Young Cabinet.

5.

2021-22 Provisional Finance Outturn Report

17 - 114

To consider a report on the Provisional Outturn for the General
Fund, Schools Finance, Housing Revenue Account, the financial
and delivery aspects of the Investment Plan and the delivery of
the Treasury Management Strategy for the financial year 2021/22.
6.

Former Swan Hunter Shipyard Local Development Order

115 - 166

To consider a report which proposes a revision of the Local
Development Order (LDO) made by the Authority in 2012 in
relation to the former Swan Hunter Shipyard.
7.

Cabinet Response to Overview and Scrutiny Home Care
Study Group Report

167 - 180

To consider the recommendations from the Home Care Study
Group on the delivery of home care services in North Tyneside.
8.

Cabinet Response to Economic Prosperity Sub-Committee
Report on Green Skills for Retrofit Jobs

181 - 202

To provide an initial response to the Green Skills for Retrofit Jobs
report from the Economic Prosperity Sub-Committee, presented to
Cabinet on 23 May 2022.
9.

Date and Time of Next Meeting
Monday 1 August 2022 at 6.00pm.
Circulation overleaf …

Circulated to Members of Cabinet: N Redfearn (Elected Mayor)
Councillor C Johnson (Deputy Mayor)
Councillor C Burdis
Councillor K Clark
Councillor S Graham
Councillor J Harrison
Councillor H Johnson
Councillor A McMullen
Councillor S Phillips
Councillor M Rankin
Young and Older People’s Representatives and Partners of
North Tyneside Council.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3
Cabinet
Monday, 23 May 2022
Present:

In Attendance:

Apologies:
CAB1/22

N Redfearn (Elected Mayor) (in the Chair)
Councillors C Johnson, C Burdis, K Clark, S Graham,
J Harrison, H Johnson, A McMullen, S Phillips and
M Rankin
Councillor J O’Shea
Councillor M Wilson
M Godfrey (Young Mayor)
R Fry (Voluntary Sector Representative)
D Hodgson (Business Representative)
K Parker (Age UK North Tyneside)
R Layton (North Tyneside Joint Trades Union Committee
M Adams (NHS North Tyneside CCG)

To Receive any Declarations of Interest and Notification of any
Dispensations Granted

Councillor C Burdis declared a non-registerable personal interest in agenda Item 8: Review
of Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy (CAB7/22), as a family member
works for the trade.
CAB2/22

Minutes

Resolved that the Minutes of the previous meeting held on 28 March 2022 be
confirmed and signed by the Chair.
CAB3/22

Report of the Young Mayor

The Young Mayor reported on the following activities in which he and Young
Cabinet Members and/or Youth Councillors had been involved:
The Young People’s Conference held on 31 March 2022 with 100 young participants in
attendance, focussed on young people’s issues around the environment and emotional
wellbeing and mental health. The conference also helped recruit more Youth Councillors
from a variety of schools. The committees would use the findings to shape projects
moving forward and to feedback and discuss activities with Lead Members and Senior
Leaders on Thursday of this week.
The Young Mayor had begun his term of office with Member of UK Youth Parliament
(MYP) Hannah who had met with key decision makers including the Elected Mayor,
Chief Executive, Cabinet Member for Environment, and Director of Environment, who
had all spent time with the young people to help support them to achieve their objectives.
The Young Mayor had begun planning his strategy for gathering support from schools to
join the Eco Green Flag Awards which involved researching primary and secondary

Page 5

Cabinet
schools who were already committed to the scheme with the intention of these being
examples of good practice for other schools, supported by the Authority’s Sustainable
Environment Team.
MYP Hannah had pledged to Work on improving PD/PSHE Lessons to prepare students
with the necessary skills for the future such as a course on basic first aid skills or
education surrounding how to apply for a mortgage etc. Mental Health assistance for
students too. The newly created ‘Ready for Life’ Committee and the Youth Council
members would be working closely with Hannah on achieving her pledge.
Hannah’s work would be driven by the national campaigns. The Make Your Mark Ballot
count showed in North Tyneside that the top issues for young voters were Health and
Wellbeing, close second is Jobs, Money, Homes and Opportunities and the third issue
was the Environment! Hannah would ensure that she represented the issues for the
young people in North Tyneside when she joined the wider forums and hopefully able to
speak in the House of Commons. As a Youth Council they would also be working locally
on these top issues.
Youth Councillors Poppy Chaplin, and Daniel Taylor had visited some of the Ease into
Activities as part of the Holiday Activity and Food Programme during the Easter break.
MYP Hannah and the Young Mayor had visited Shiremoor Adventure Playground Trust’s
Annual General Meeting.
Youth Councillors would resume their fundraising for a local charity this year and had for
their preference which was ‘Walking With’, who provided a support service for Refugees
and Asylum Seekers who were living in North Tyneside.
North Tyneside SEND Youth forum supported sixth form students from Woodlawn,
Beacon Hill, and Ignite Your Potential to take part in a national consultation on Annual
Health Checks for those with a learning disability. Two students were asked to take part
in a video which would be used as teaching tool for GPs across England delivering
Annual Health Checks to young people.
The Children in Care Council had set its six priorities for focus over 2022. These had
been shared with the Authority’s Senior Managers and would be used as challenge for
change by the children and young people.
The Elected Mayor thanked the Young Mayor for the update and the young people for their
work past and present including their work involving Refugees and Asylum Seekers.
CAB4/22

Home Care Scrutiny Study Group

Cabinet received a report which presented the findings and conclusions of the Home Care
Study Group which carried out an in-depth review of home care in North Tyneside on behalf
of the Adult Social Care, Health and Wellbeing Sub-Committee of the Overview, Scrutiny
and Policy Development Committee.
Councillor J O’Shea, Chair of the Home Care Study Group, presented the report.
The Adult Social Care, Health and Wellbeing Sub-Committee originally established a study
2

Page 6

Monday, 23 May 2022

Cabinet
group in early 2020 to review home care provision in the Borough. The Study Group began
the review, but the review was suspended at the beginning of the Covid 19 pandemic in
March 2020. In July 2021, the Sub-Committee agreed to re-establish the Study Group with
a revised remit and membership, and the Study Group began meeting in early October
2021.
The remit of the Study Group was agreed as follows:
To review the current provision of home care in North Tyneside and monitor the introduction
and progress of the Home Care Pilot, with a view to:
Understanding whether the provision of Home Care in the borough is currently
meeting the needs of residents;
Identifying those things that are working well and any areas of concern;
Monitoring the implementation of the Health and Care Pilot.
The Study Group received information from officers from the Commissioning Team and
other teams within the Authority, as well as a range of interested parties including home
care providers, front line staff, carers, North Tyneside Carers’ Centre, North Tyneside
Healthwatch, UNISON and the Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care.
The recommendations of the Study Group were summarised in section 1.5.5 of the report.
The full report which outlined the key findings, conclusions and recommendations of the
review was attached to the report at Appendix 1.
The report was considered and agreed by the Adult Social Care, Health and Wellbeing SubCommittee on 30 March 2022. The Chair of the Overview, Scrutiny and Policy
Development Committee, Councillor Janet Hunter, had waived the requirement that the
report be submitted to and approved by the Overview, Scrutiny and Development
Committee because its next scheduled meeting was not until 13 June 2022.
In accordance with section 9FE of the Local Government Act 2000, Cabinet was required to
provide a response to the recommendations of the Overview, Scrutiny and Policy
Development Committee within two months.
The Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care thanked the Study Group for its report.
Resolved that the report of the Overview, Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee on
the Home Care Study Group’s review of home care in North Tyneside be noted; and a
detailed response to the recommendations be submitted to a future Cabinet meeting, no
later July 2022.
(Reason for decision – Cabinet has a statutory duty to respond to the Overview, Scrutiny
and Policy Development Committee recommendations within two months of receiving
them).
CAB5/22

Green Skills for Retrofit Jobs Sub-Group

Cabinet received a report which presented the findings of the Green Skills Sub Group
appointed by the Economic Prosperity Sub-Committee of the Overview, Scrutiny and
3

Page 7

Monday, 23 May 2022

Cabinet
Development Committee to consider how the local training market could be stimulated to
ensure local people had the skills and qualification required to deliver the retrofitting of
energy efficient measures to homes and buildings.
Councillor M Wilson, Chair of the Economic Prosperity Sub-Committee, presented the
report.
In determining its work programme for 2021/22 the Economic Prosperity Sub-Committee agreed to
appoint a sub-group to examine the Authority’s approach to adapting to a green industrial revolution
and ensuring people have the right skills for the future green jobs.

The Sub-Committee subsequently appointed the Green Skills Sub Group, drawn from
members of the Economic Prosperity Sub-Committee, Environment Sub Committee and
Children, Education and Skills Sub-Committee, to:
a)

consider the steps required to ensure residential, public, commercial and industrial
buildings in the borough have the lowest possible carbon emissions to support the
Council’s 2030 net zero ambition;
b) analyse the skills, qualifications and accreditations that will need to be gained by
the local workforce so that:
i.
they are equipped to deliver energy efficient buildings;
ii.
the need for imported skills is avoided; and
iii.
the borough benefits from the low carbon economic growth;
c) identify sources of funding that could be accessed for skills and training from a
variety of sources to support the local economy; and
d) make recommendations to the Elected Mayor and Cabinet on how the Authority
and its partners might stimulate the local training market so that the required skills,
qualifications and accreditations can be taught to our residents by North Tyneside
based providers.
The Sub-Group held a series of evidence gathering meetings with officers and key
stakeholders during January and February 2022 and also had regard to a wealth of policy
documents and research papers which had been published in relation to decarbonising the
built environment and the skills and jobs that would be required to deliver it.
The Sub-Group had prepared a report setting out its findings, conclusions and
recommendations and this was attached at Appendix 1. The report was considered and
agreed by the Economic Prosperity Sub-Committee on 10 May 2022.
The Chair of the Overview, Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee, Councillor Janet
Hunter, had waived the requirement that the report be submitted to and approved by the
Overview, Scrutiny and Development Committee because its next scheduled meeting was
not until 13 June 2022. It was hoped that by presenting the report and recommendations to
Cabinet at the earliest opportunity this would assist the Cabinet review and revise its
Climate Emergency Action Plan.
The recommendations of the Sub Group were summarised in Section 1.5.5 of the report.
The full report which outlined the key findings, conclusions and recommendations of the
Economic Prosperity Sub-Committee was attached to the report at Appendix 1.

4

Page 8

Monday, 23 May 2022

Cabinet
In accordance with section 9FE of the Local Government Act 2000, Cabinet was required to
provide a response to the recommendations of the Overview, Scrutiny and Policy
Development Committee within two months.
The Cabinet Member for Environment and the Deputy Mayor thanked the Sub-Group for its
report.
Resolved that the report of the Overview, Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee on
the Sub Group’s review of Green Skills Retrofit Jobs be noted; and a detailed response to
the recommendations be submitted to a future Cabinet meeting,
no later than July 2022.
(Reason for decision – Cabinet has a statutory duty to respond to the Overview, Scrutiny
and Policy Development Committee recommendations within two months of receiving
them).
CAB6/22

Land at Newsteads Drive, Monkseaton

Cabinet received a report which presented public representations that had been made
to the Authority in accordance with a statutory advertisement confirming the Authority’s
intention to dispose an area of land within its ownership at Newlands Drive in
Monkseaton, and which was classed as public open space.
The Land which was shown by dark outline on the plan at Appendix 1 was declared surplus
to the Authority’s requirements on 14 December 2021, in accordance with the Officer
Delegation Scheme. Approval was also given for it to be made available for disposal by
private treaty.
The proposed disposal of the land was to facilitate the construction of a new medical centre
to replace Beaumont Park Medical Centre. The existing building dates back to 1984 and no
longer complies with current NHS design standards. The design of the building was
prohibiting service delivery to patients as the building is 70% smaller than it should be based
on the NHS size requirements for health care premises linked to the number of patients a
practice has registered with it.
Over the last ten years the Practice had modernised and reconfigured the existing building
as much as possible, but it was no longer feasible for it to carry out any further work that
would help to meet patient needs. Therefore, the only option currently available for the
Practice was to relocate into a new purpose-built medical centre and the Land at Newsteads
Drive had been identified as being capable of accommodating a building that can meet the
latest NHS standards with improved accessibility for all patients.
As the Land was classed as public open space it was subject to the relevant provisions of
the Local Government Act 1972. The Authority must therefore advertise its intention to
dispose of the Land in accordance with Section 123 of the Act and formally consider any
representations made.
This must be done by placing Notices advertising the proposed disposal for two consecutive
weeks in a local newspaper. The Authority’s intentions were advertised in the Journal
newspaper on 22 December 2021, and 29 December 2021, respectively. The closing date
5

Page 9

Monday, 23 May 2022

Cabinet
for the receipt of representations was set as 21 January 2022.
Prior to the closing date, 46 representations were made to the Authority either by letter or
email of which 42 were objections to the proposed disposal and 4 were in support of it.
These were categorised as follows: Representations objecting to the proposed disposal of the Land.
Representations in support of the proposed disposal of the Land. This included details
of a representation received from the North Tyneside Clinical Commissioning Group,
(NTCCG), as the commissioner of NHS services for the local area.
In addition to this, details were also given regarding the outcome of consultation with the
Ward Members for Monkseaton North.
An additional 12 objections were received after the closing date for the receipt of
representations referred to in the advertisements, namely 21 January 2022 and whilst these
had not been formally considered, it was noted that the main points of objection were similar
to those outlined in the objections received before the closing date of 21 January 2022.
46 representations were made to the Authority in the response to the advertisements and
Cabinet was asked to consider all of the representations detailed in Sections 1.5.2 to 1.5.4
of the report in respect of the proposed disposal of the Land at Newsteads Drive.
Cabinet considered the following decision options: (i) to set aside the objections received in
relation to the proposed disposal of the Land at Newsteads Drive and allow the disposal of
the Land to proceed; and (ii) to uphold the objections received in relation to the proposed
disposal of the Land at Newsteads Drive in which case the disposal cannot proceed.
Resolved it be agreed that the objections received in relation to the proposed disposal of
the land at Newsteads Drive, Monkseaton (shown in dark outline on the plan) at Appendix 1
not be set aside; and the proposed disposal of the land at Newsteads Drive, Monkseaton
not be authorised for disposal
CAB7/22

Review of the North Tyneside Hackney Carriage and Private Hire
Licensing Policy

A report was considered on the review of the North Tyneside Hackney Carriage and Private
Hire Licensing Policy following a six-week consultation on a draft policy.
The review of the Policy took into account the statutory taxi and private hire vehicle minimum
standards to licensing authorities published by the Department for Transport in July 2020 entitled,
’Statutory Taxi & Private Hire Vehicle Standards’ (“the Standards”). The Standards outlined how
licensing authorities should carry out their licensing functions in relation to Hackney Carriage (taxis)
and Private Hire vehicles, drivers and operators.

A comprehensive six-week consultation process was undertaken commencing on 28
February 2022. An online survey was developed for responders to make consultation
responses as well as written responses. Information was made available on the
Engagement Hub in addition to members of the Residents Forum advised of the
consultation exercise. The consultation was publicised using press and social media and
correspondence to all licensed drivers and operators.
6

Page 10

Monday, 23 May 2022

Cabinet

The consultation had included residents, local businesses, Elected Members and members
of the trade. In total, 64 responses were received with 58 made through the online survey
and 6 through written responses. The online survey asked for comments about the draft
Policy.
The responses were considered with oversight by the Cabinet Member for Community
Safety and Public Protection.
A breakdown of the responses received were included in Appendix 2 to this report. The
responses did not object to the new National Standards that had been introduced being
incorporated into the Authority’s revised Policy. Some responses made comments about
their impact however not about the revised Policy.
Some comments were received about other areas of the Policy that had not been amended
and these have been considered and where appropriate amendments had been made to
the Policy. If was not possible at this time to make suggested amendments because further
work or additional views were required these suggestions would be considered when the
Policy was next updated.
It was anticipated that a number of responses would concern the age standards that were
approved by Cabinet in February 2020 and which were to be become part of the Policy on 1
April 2022. Of the 64 responses received, 45 specifically referred to the age standard and
requested that it be delayed or removed. Of the 45 responses relating to the age standard
section of the Policy, 8 responses were from residents, 8 from Operators and 29 from
licensed drivers.
1 response from an Operator was in agreement with the age standards and the importance
of an updated vehicle fleet.
Following consideration of these responses the Policy had been updated and it was
proposed that the age standards part of the draft Policy would not be implemented until 1
April 2024 for new vehicle licences and renewals.
It was proposed that the timetable for the implementation of the age standards was as
follows: (i) From 1 April 2024 no new vehicle licence will be granted for the vehicle unless it is less
than 4 years old
(ii) From 1 April 2026 a vehicle licence will not be renewed unless the vehicle is less than 8
years old
(iii) From 1 April 2027 a wheelchair accessible vehicle licence will not be renewed unless
the vehicle is less than 8 years old.
All ‘Full electric’ and ‘zero emission at source’ vehicles will be exempt from the age
standards set out above.’
The amended draft North Tyneside Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy was
attached at Appendix 1 to the report.
7

Page 11

Monday, 23 May 2022

Cabinet
The key amendments to the final proposed policy included:
Introduction of Basic Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) criminal record check for
vehicle proprietors.
Requirement of operators to maintain a register of booking staff and confirmation they
have had sight of a Basic DBS certificate for such staff.
Periods for individuals to be free of convictions to be able to hold a licence have
increased in line with the Standards.
New Passenger Guidance document.
The Authority making a referral to the DBS and the police following refusal/revocation of
a driver’s licence where appropriate.
Cabinet considered the following decision options: to accept the recommendations set out in
paragraph 1.2 of the report, to not approve the recommendations, or alternatively, instruct
officers to make amendments to the Policy and to bring a further report to Cabinet for it to
consider those amendments.
Resolved that (1) the adoption of the revised North Tyneside Hackney Carriage and Private
Hire Licensing Policy attached at Appendix 1 to the report be approved; and
(2) the Policy come into effect on 24 May 2022, save for the Age/Emissions
standards commencement date for new licensed vehicles being extended by a year from
April 2021 to April 2022, and for existing licensed vehicles from April 2023 to April 2024.
(Reason for decision: To ensure that the existing Policy is updated in accordance with the
commitment in the North Tyneside Transport Strategy and wider guidance. This will also
ensure that the policy remains transparent, accountable, proportionate and consistent.)
CAB8/22

North Shields Cultural Quarter - North of Tyne Combined Authority
Culture and Creative Zones Acceptance of Grant

Cabinet received a report seeking approval to accept £1,695,000 grant funding from the
North of Tyne Combined Authority in relation to Culture and Creative Zones for the North
Shields Cultural Quarter; and to enter into a Grant Funding Agreement.
North of Tyne Combined Authority (NTCA) approved investment of £1.7m of Culture and
Creative Zones funding for North Tyneside Council at its Cabinet Meeting on 22nd March
2022.
Funding had been approved to support the development of a Cultural and Creative Zone
(CCZ) in North Shields which will be known as North Shields Cultural Quarter.
The North Shields Cultural Quarter would be located in and around Howard Street and
Saville Street, in the heart of North Shields, creating a ‘cultural corridor’ and stronger
connections between the town centre and the Fish Quay. The heart of the Cultural Quarter
would be the cluster of buildings at the crossroads of Howard Street and Saville Street
including The Exchange, the Globe Gallery, and the Business Centre, and would include
the North Shields Customer First Centre.
Investment in a Cultural and Creative Zone provided the opportunity to stimulate the
economy in North Shields town centre, this ‘cultural corridor’ would play a pivotal role in
8

Page 12

Monday, 23 May 2022

Cabinet
reinvigorating the place and creating social and economic benefits for the people who lived,
worked and visited there - building social inclusion and helping to create a sense of pride.
The project would fund the internal building works within the Exchange building, to deliver
affordable and fit for purpose spaces and installation of digital infrastructure across the CCZ
area (in the Exchange, Business Centre, Globe Gallery and the Customer First Centre).
These would be ‘quick wins’ delivered in the first 18 months, and it was anticipated that the
majority of the outputs would be delivered from 2023/24 onwards.
The project was broken down into the following 5 work packages;
WP1: Place
WP2: Support
WP3: Skills
WP4: Promotion
WP5: Community Engagement
Once the internal works were completed on The Exchange the Authority would undertake
an expression of interest (EOI) process to identify an operator to manage the building going
forward.
The opportunity to create a place-based approach to investing in the development,
sustainability and growth of the culture and creative sector has been articulated in both ‘Our
North Tyneside Plan’ and the Ambition for North Shields and the Fish Quay. The focus of
the proposal was predominantly within the music, performance and visual arts sub-sector to
meet the following key requirements;
•
•
•

•
•

•

•

Work and performance space - which was accessible, bespoke, affordable and fit for
purpose.
Shared facilities and resources – including rehearsal space, making space, social and
networking space, exhibition space, digital equipment, green screen and editing facilities,
dark room, printing and framing facilities.
Skills development opportunities – skills needs focused particularly on the skills needs
of the music, performance and visual arts sub sector (e.g musicians, music
producers, theatre producers, dance and theatrical studies, painting, sculpting,
photography and supporting skilled technicians).
Greater Diversity – of the people working within the sector, of the product, of
participants, of audiences. There should be better access and greater cultural
democracy.
New approach to money – Including a recognition that artists are professionals and
should be treated and rewarded appropriately; would benefit from start-up and pre-start
up support, Research and development investment, small grants and commissions;
appropriate investment for the expected returns; support to develop their practice;
access to finance- including loans.
Exemplary communication and promotion – Develop comprehensive, inclusive
networks locally, regionally, nationally and internationally promote key assets and
programmes; project a contemporary profile; ensure consultation and co-creation;
develop consistent long-term relationships.
The environment of the Zone is important – the streetscape, the signage, the
permeability, the navigability, the traffic. The historic buildings need to be turned from
liabilities to assets; the street needs creative animation; environmental sustainability is
9

Page 13

Monday, 23 May 2022

Cabinet

•

paramount.
Professional development opportunities would be welcomed – including lectures,
workshops, talks, seminars, career development and progression guidance, mentoring,
critical friends, skills sharing, skill swaps and job shadowing.

Cabinet considered the following decision options: to accept the recommendations set out in
paragraph 1.2 of the report, or alternatively, to not approve the recommendations.
Resolved that (1) the Director of Regeneration and Economic Development, be authorised
to accept the £1,695,000 grant funding from the North of Tyne Combined Authority in
relation to Culture and Creative Zones funding for the North Shields Cultural Quarter;
(2) The Director of Regeneration and Economic Development, in consultation with the
Assistant Chief Executive and Director of Resources, be authorised to enter into the Grant
Funding Agreement and any other documentation as required to facilitate (1) above; and
(3) The Director of Regeneration and Economic Development, be authorised to procure any
goods, works or services to deliver the outcomes set out in section 1.1 of the report.
(Reason for decision: Accepting this funding will enable the establishment of North Shields
Cultural Quarter, in line with the North Shields Masterplan aspiration and Our North
Tyneside Plan.)
CAB9/22

Exclusion Resolution

Resolved that under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended)
and having applied a public interest test as defined in Part 3 of Schedule 12A of the Act,
the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the
grounds that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph
3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act.
CAB10/22

Corporate Risk Management Summary Report

Cabinet considered a report which detailed the corporate risks that had been identified for
monitoring and management by the Authority’s Senior Leadership Team and relevant
Cabinet members. The report also provided detailed information on each risk and how it
was being managed.
Cabinet considered the following decision options: To consider the information provided for
each of the corporate risks and endorse the outcome of the latest review by the Authority’s
Senior Leadership Team; and after consideration of the detailed information provided for the
corporate risks, suggest changes to the corporate risks and their controls.
Resolved that the latest review of key corporate risks undertaken by the Senior Leadership
Team be endorsed.
(Reasons for decision: Each of the corporate risks has undergone substantial review and
challenge as part of the corporate risk management process. This is designed to provide
assurance that corporate risks and opportunities are being identified and appropriately
managed.)

10

Page 14

Monday, 23 May 2022

Cabinet
CAB11/22

Date and Time of Next Meeting

6.00pm on Monday 27 June 2022.
Minutes published on Thursday 26 May 2022.
The decisions contained within these Minutes may be implemented (unless called in
by 3 Non-Executive Members for consideration by the Overview, Scrutiny and Policy
Development Committee) immediately following the expiry of the call-in period; i.e.
5.00pm on Monday 6 June 2022.

11

Page 15

Monday, 23 May 2022

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
North Tyneside Council
Report to Cabinet
Date: 27 June 2022
Title: 2021/22 Provisional Finance Outturn Report

Portfolios:

Elected Mayor

Cabinet Member:

Finance and Resources

Report from Service
Area:

Norma Redfearn
Councillor
Martin Rankin

Finance

Responsible Officer:

Janice Gillespie, Director of
Resources

Wards affected:

All

Tel: 643 5701

PART 1
1.1

Executive Summary:

1.1.1 This report, and the supporting Annex 1 and its Appendices, set out details in
respect of the provisional outturn for the General Fund, Schools Finance, Housing
Revenue Account, the financial and delivery aspects of the Investment Plan and the
delivery of the Treasury Management Strategy for the financial year 2021/22.
1.1.2 The 2021/22 financial year was in many ways challenging, following the prolonged
impact of the Covid-19 pandemic. The pandemic was unprecedented both in terms
of magnitude and the sheer breadth of the disruption to everyday life in the
Borough. Whilst Covid-19 has not disappeared, some sense of normality is
returning, and although it would have seemed unlikely a year ago, new issues are
emerging and overtaking the pandemic both in terms of the media attention, public
consciousness, and areas of immediate concern for North Tyneside residents, such
as the current ‘cost of living crisis’ which has seen the cost of energy, fuel and food
rise far in excess of rises in wage levels.
1.1.3 The impact of both the challenges and opportunities, on the Authority and its
financial position are described in more detail throughout Annex 1. The Annex
continues to highlight the work that the Authority has undertaken during 2021/22,
and in continuing to do so into 2022/23, to administer grants to support specific
initiatives and individuals together with a range of Business Rate Relief and grant
support to businesses. At the end of 2021/22, the Government provided over £14m

Page 17

of grant support to enable the Authority to issue the £150 Council Tax Energy
Rebate to residents, to help alleviate the impact of the rising energy costs, in the
early months of 2022/23. At the time of writing, more than 76% of all such payments
have been issued.
1.1.4 It is important to appreciate that many of the Authority’s underlying financial
pressures have not reduced. Many of the services with significant adverse
variances in 2021/22 continued the trend from previous years including social care
services, reflecting increasing demand for these services and the complex nature of
the support that is needed.
1.1.5 The final outturn for the Authority has improved from the position reported to
Cabinet in January with an overall movement of (£8.717m) leaving a surplus of
(£5.815m). This is driven my two elements; firstly, there is a small business as
usual overspend of £0.078m and secondly, a surplus of (£5.893m) generated as a
result of an MRP Review.
1.1.6 As mentioned above, the full long-term impact of the pandemic is unknown, and the
recent challenges presented by the war in Ukraine with its broader implications
along with the current ‘cost of living crisis’ are expected to have a significant impact
on the Authority’s finances going into 2022/23 and beyond, as well as the finances
of the residents of the Borough. Throughout 2022/23, officers will be working with
Cabinet to review what further support can be offered to support residents impacted
by the current economic climate. It is therefore essential that, the Authority remains
prudent to ensure that the financial position of the Authority continues to be
managed effectively.
1.1.6 The purpose of this report is therefore to:
(a) Advise Cabinet of the provisional 2021/22 outturn for the General Fund,
Schools Finance and Housing Revenue Account (Annex 1, Sections 6, 7 and
8) together with a financial overview of the year and an outlook into 2022/23
with reference to considerations around the potential impact of Covid-19 on
medium term financial planning (Annex 1, Section 1);
(b) Advise Cabinet of decisions made under the Reserves and Balances Policy
(Annex 1, Paragraph 1.6, and Appendix A);
(c) Inform Cabinet of the Authority’s Investment Plan spend during 2021/22, and
the financing put in place (Annex 1, Section 9);
(d) Seek Cabinet approval for the receipt of £2.355m new revenue grants (outlined
in Annex section 4);
(e) Seek Cabinet approval for reprogramming of £15.424m within the 2021/22
Investment Plan (Annex 1, Section 9, Paragraph 9.8 and Appendix C);
(f)

Seek Cabinet approval for variations of £34.622m ready for the 2022-2027
Investment Plan (Annex 1, Section 9, Paragraph 9.22;

(g) Advise Cabinet of the Council’s Treasury Management performance (Annex 1,
Section 9);

Page 18

(h) Advise Cabinet of the performance of both Capital and Treasury Management
Prudential Indicators (Annex 1 Section 10 and Appendix D); and
(i)
1.2

Note the changed methodology for the calculation of Minimum Revenue
Provision (MRP) and the proposal to bring a more detailed report to the next
Full Council meeting. (Annex 1, Section 1, 1.1.5)
Recommendations:

1.2.1 It is recommended that Cabinet:
(a) Notes the provisional 2021/22 outturn for the General Fund, Schools Finance
and Housing Revenue Account (Annex 1, Sections 6, 7 and 8) together with a
financial overview of the year (Annex 1, Section 1);
(b) Notes the decisions made under the Reserves and Balances Policy (Annex 1,
Paragraphs 1.6, and Appendix A);
(c) Notes the Authority’s Investment Plan spend during 2021/22, and the financing
put in place (Annex 1, Section 9);
(d) Approves the receipt of £2.355m new revenue grants (outlined in Annex
section 4);
(e) Approves reprogramming of £15.424m within the 2021/22 Investment Plan
(Annex 1, Section 9, Paragraph 9.8 and Appendix C);
(f)

Approves reprogramming of £34.622m ready for the 2022-2027 Investment
Plan (Annex 1, Section 9, Paragraph 9.22;

(g) Notes the Council’s Treasury Management performance (Annex 1, Section 10);
(h) Notes the performance against the Capital and Treasury prudential indicators
(Annex 1 Section 10 and Appendix D); and
(i)
1.3

Notes the changed MRP methodology.

Forward Plan
Twenty-eight days’ notice of this report has been given and it first appeared on the
Forward Plan that was published on 27 May 2022.

1.4

Council plan and policy framework.
The budget is part of the Authority’s Budget and Policy Framework.

1.5

Information - Executive Summary

1.5.1 Annex 1 to this report sets out the provisional outturn for 2021/22 for the General
Fund, the Housing Revenue Account, Schools Finances and the Investment Plan.
It also provides a summary position on the achievement of the Treasury
Management Strategy during the year together with the associated Prudential
Indicators for capital and treasury.

Page 19

1.5.2 Strategic Issues: The end of the financial year 2019/20 saw the beginning of the
Covid-19 Pandemic and the impact continued throughout 2020/21 and 2021/22.
Cabinet and all Members have been kept up to date in terms of the response and
approach to recovery the Authority has implemented throughout the various stages
of the pandemic and what that meant for essential services being maintained for the
most vulnerable residents of the borough. The Authority has been required to
provide a sustained and varied response to the pandemic, with all services
impacted one way or another. There have been periods when restrictions meant a
range of services had to be suspended or limited, such as the leisure and culture
offer and as a result there has been a significant financial impact on the Authority
arising from additional costs and lost income during 2021/22. There has been
sustained support to the Social Care Sector for both Adults and Children’s in
2021/22. The Authority has been responsible for acting as agent for a number of
grants to support the businesses in the borough and again this continued
throughout 2021/22.
1.5.3 There have been a range of financial interventions introduced by the Government,
these are set out in section 5 of the Annex. The Authority had received its share of
the Government’s Local Support Grant of £5.576m to support council services in
2021/22. £1.476m from the 2020/21 award was still available to support 2021/21 so
the total funding available was £7.052m. Of this, £5.668m was allocated to support
revenue activities with the remaining £1.384m being carried forward to support the
identified on-going impact on Covid-19 into 2022/23.
1.5.4 Cabinet is aware that Local Authorities were also compensated for losses incurred
against their sales, fees and charges budgets in quarter 1 of 2021/22. North
Tyneside Council received £1.335m from this grant to support services and this was
fully allocated. This represented 71.25% of the fees lost, the balance being born by
the Authority.
1.5.5 In addition to receiving support for council services, the Authority received grants to
support the businesses in the borough. £12.773m was received and £11.731m was
brought forward from 2020/21. A total of £18.240m was paid across to businesses.
The remaining balance of £6.264m was transferred to reserve and £6.262m is
being held in anticipation of repayment to Central Government. This relates to the
Business Support Top-up, Local Restrictions Grants, Additional Restrictions Grant,
Restart Grant and Omicron Hospitality & Leisure Grant, where the schemes have
ended and the authority was awarded more funding than was required.
1.5.6 £4.258m was allocated to the Authority to support our residents, including financial
support for our most vulnerable and also to allow the Authority to put in place
measures to allow residents to continue to enjoy our coastline, town centers and the
many attractions throughout the borough, when restrictions allowed. A balance of
£6.908m was brought forward from 2020/21 and £9.277m was spent during
2021/22. £1.889m was carried forward to 2022/23. The majority of the funding
carried forward related to the Contain Outbreak Management Fund. This grant is to
help the Authority support the prevention of Covid-19 outbreaks or manage any that
do occur in the borough. The Authority has a range of proposals to spend this
funding to help contain outbreaks as the country continues to recover from the
pandemic.
1.5.7 £5.418m was provided by government to help support the Care home market and
had a brought forward figure of £0.544m from 2020/21 meaning the total available

Page 20

funds were £5.962m. The majority of these funds were passed directly to care
homes with a total allocated in 2021/22 of £5.666m. The balance of £0.296m
carried forward have been committed to be spent in 2022/23. The Authority also
received £2.572m to support its schools which along with £0.309m brought forward
from 2020/21 meant that £2.881m was available for 2021/22. £2.637m was
allocated to support schools to ensure children were not detrimentally impacted by
being unable to attend classes in school. The remaining balance of £0.244m is to
be allocated in early 2022/23.
1.5.8 General Fund Revenue Budget: The budget for 2021/22 was approved by full
Council at its meeting of 18 February 2021. The net General Fund revenue budget
was set at £150.154m including efficiency savings of £4.537m. The monitoring
report up to 31 January 2022 projected a pressure of £2.902m and the final position
is a underspend of (£5.815m). This is driven by two factors. There is a business-asusual deficit of £0.078m, which has arisen substantially from pressures in Children’s
Social Care, Facilities and Fair Access and Law & Governance. It is proposed to
cover this deficit via a £0.078m drawdown from the Strategic Reserve. In addition to
the business-as-usual position there is also a surplus of (£5.893m), which is as a
result of an MRP review resulting in a lower charge of MRP being made than the
Authority had budgeted for in 2021/22. The balance of (£5.893m) is proposed to be
transferred to a new MRP earmarked reserve. Following these transfers, the
General Fund will outturn on budget.
1.5.9 Housing Revenue Account: The Housing Revenue Account has year-end
balances of £0.489m. The HRA shows an underspend of £0.442m against the inyear 2021/22 Budget, plus a £0.047m improvement in the budgeted brought
forward balances, which cumulatively brings the HRA to £0.489m better than the
budgeted position for 2021/22.
1.5.10 School Finances: School Balances have decreased from £3.721m to £3.398m,
these balances include a significant amount of committed funds and the permitted
carry forward of grants for the remainder of the academic year.
1.5.11 Investment Plan: The final capital expenditure for the year was £63.045m, with a
recommendation noted above for Cabinet to approve reprogramming of £15.424m
into 2022/23.
1.5.12 Treasury Management: The Authority has acted in line with the agreed strategy
that the security of the Authority’s resources is of greater importance than returns
on investments. The level of investments at 31 March 2022 was £60.794m
(£22.000m with HM Treasury, £25.000m with other local authorities, and £13.794m
with banks and other deposits). The level of borrowing (excluding PFI) was
£397.443m (down from the 2020/21 level of £417.913m) which is well within the
capital financing requirement agreed as part of budget setting. This is primarily due
to continued level of internal borrowing and receipt of grant funding.
1.5.13 Reserves, Balances and Provisions: As part of the 2021/22 final accounts, a full
review of all provision and reserves has been undertaken to ensure that appropriate
consideration has been given to known liabilities, risks and uncertainties that remain
in future years; in particular where conditions associated with Covid-19 grant
funding require that unspent monies are carried into future years.

Page 21

1.5.14 New Revenue Grants: The following revenue grants have been received during
February and March 2022:
Service

Grant
Provider

Grant

Purpose

2021/22
value
£m

Environment,
Housing &
Leisure

Arts Council
England

Platinum
Jubilee Funding

Resources

Department for
Levelling Up,
Housing and
Communities

Cyber support
section 31
21/22

Arts Council England is 0.001
providing funding to
every Library Service to
mark the occasion in
whatever way they think
will be most relevant
and enjoyable for their
users and local
community
Section 31 funding for
0.150
Cyber Security

Environment,
Housing &
Leisure

North of Tyne
Community
Engagement
Grants

Community
Digital Skills
Pathway

Health,
Education,
Care and
Safeguarding

Department for
Education

Local Authority
participation in
the Early Years
Experts and
Mentors
programme

Health,
Education,
Care and
Safeguarding

Department for
Education

Health,
Education,
Care and
Safeguarding

Home Office

Funding to increase the
number of people who
can access digital
technology and 'get
online' to improve their
digital skills.
Early Years Strategy,
Quality and Covid
Response

0.002

Early Years
Professional
Development
Programme
(PDP): Building
On Success
Section 31
Tranche 1

Professional
Development
Programme (PDP)
Phase 2

0.017

Unaccompanied
Asylum Seeking
Chidren (UASC)
- Exceptional
Spend

All local authorities
supporting UASC and
UASC caree leavers
are eligibale to apply.
Exceptional Costs are
additional expenses
incurred by a local
authority in supporting
UASC and former
UASC care leavers for
which the Home Office

0.219

Page 22

0.006

Service

Environment,
Housing &
Leisure

Grant
Provider

Home Office

Grant

Homes for
Ukraine

Page 23

Purpose

may on a case-by-case
basis, agree to
reimburse. All local
authorities that care for
UASC and former
UASC care leavers are
eligible to apply for
exceptions costs
funding.
this enables Ukrainian
Nationals to be
sponsored to come to
the UK. Sponsors and
Ukrainian Nationals are
expected to find each
other and match up.
Either the Sponsor (i.e.
an individual living in
the UK) or the Guest,
as the Ukrainian
Nationals that come
under this scheme are
referred to, must
complete the visa
application. Security
checks are carried out
on the sponsor, their
household and the
guests. Once
immigration and
security checks have
been completed the
visa is issued and the
guest(s) will receive a
permit to travel. Guests
are responsible for
funding their own travel.
Although, we are aware
of a number of
sponsors who have told
us they are paying for
the travel for their
guests. Co-ordination
of the travel
arrangements is
between the sponsor
and the guest.

2021/22
value
£m

0.800

Service

Grant
Provider

Grant

Environment,
Housing &
Leisure

Department for
Environment
Food & Rural
Affairs

Biodiversity Net
Gain Grant
2021/22

Resources

Department for
Work and
Pensions

Resources

Department for
Work and
Pensions

Resources

Department for
Work &
Pensions

Purpose

BNG means that natural
habitats will be
extended or improved
as part of a
development or project.
Development will be
designed in a way that
provides benefits to
people and nature and
reduces its impacts on
the wider environment.
Discretionary
Discretionary Housing
Housing
Payment (DHP) funding
Payments for
is available for those
year ending
entitled to Housing
March 2023
Benefit or the Housing
Element of Universal
Credit who require
further financial
assistance with housing
costs.
Additional New
The funding is to cover
Burdens funding an increase in LA costs
to meet the
for HB cases and does
costs of
not support Local
delivering
Council Tax Reduction.
Welfare Reform The funding for Council
changes in the
Tax related expenditure
financial year
is administered by the
ending March
Department for
2023
Levelling Up, Housing
and Communities and
the devolved
administrations.
HB Award
The aim of the funding
Accuracy
schedule is to provide
Initiative
you with a more holistic
picture of the funding
your authority will
receive from the
Department for Work
and Pensions (DWP)
and pulls together
multiple funding
streams into one
schedule.

Page 24

2021/22
value
£m
0.010

0.300

0.086

0.019

Service

Grant
Provider

Grant

Purpose

2021/22
value
£m

Resources

Department for
Work &
Pensions

HBAS

0.696

Resources

Department for
Work &
Pensions

Verify Pensions
and Earnings
(VEP)

Environment,
Housing &
Leisure

Northumbria
Police and
Crime
Commissioner

North Tyneside
Safer Streets
Round 3

Environment,
Housing &
Leisure

Northumbria
Police and
Crime
Commissioner

North Tyneside
Safer Streets
Round 3
support grant

The aim of the funding
schedule is to provide
you with a more holistic
picture of the funding
your authority will
receive from the
Department for Work
and Pensions (DWP)
and pulls together
multiple funding
streams into one
schedule.
The aim of the funding
schedule is to provide
you with a more holistic
picture of the funding
your authority will
receive from the
Department for Work
and Pensions (DWP)
and pulls together
multiple funding
streams into one
schedule.
Both bids aim to make
public spaces safer and
more inclusive for
women, girls and
marginalised groups in
Northumbria, as well as
aiming to tackle
underreporting and
addressing attitude and
behaviour change
Both bids aim to make
public spaces safer and
more inclusive for
women, girls and
marginalised groups in
Northumbria, as well as
aiming to tackle
underreporting and
addressing attitude and
behaviour change

Total

0.018

0.025

0.006

2.355

Page 25

1.6

Decision options:
Option 1
Cabinet can agree the recommendations as set out in Section 1.2 of this report.
Option 2
Cabinet can disagree with all or some of the individual recommendations set out in
section 1.2 of the report.
Option 1 is the recommended option.

1.7

Reasons for recommended option:
It is recommended that Cabinet agree the proposals set out in section 1.2 of this
report as it forms part of the 2021/22 Final Accounts process. Reprogramming of
the Investment Plan will ensure successful delivery of projects included within the
Investment Plan.

1.8

Appendices:
Annex 1
Appendix A
Appendix B
Appendix C
Appendix D

1.9

2021/22 Provisional Finance Outturn Report
Reserves & Balances
Investment Plan Financing Summary
Investment Plan Summary of Variations
Prudential & Treasury Indicators

Contact officers:
Janice Gillespie – Corporate Finance matters – Tel 643 5701
Claire Emmerson – Schools and Corporate Finance matters – Tel 643 8109
David Dunford – General Fund and Corporate Finance matters – Tel 643 7027
Darrell Campbell – Housing Revenue Account matters – Tel 643 7052
Amar Hassan – Investment Plan and Corporate Finance matters – Tel 643 5747

1.10

Background information:
The following background papers and research reports have been used in the
compilation of this report and are available at the offices of the author:
(a)

Revenue Budget 2021/22 (P).
https://my.northtyneside.gov.uk/sites/default/files/web-page-relatedfiles/North%20Tyneside%20Revenue%20Budget%202021_22.pdf

(b)

Approved Investment Plan 2021-26 (P).
https://democracy.northtyneside.gov.uk/documents/s5460/Appendix%20D%20
i%20-%202021-2026%20Investment%20plan%20-%20FINAL.pdf

Page 26

(c)

Council Reserves and Balances Policy (P) – Appendix G
https://democracy.northtyneside.gov.uk/documents/s5467/Appendix%20G%20
Reserves%20and%20Balances%20Policy%202021-22.pdf

(d)

Investment Programme Board – End of year report 2021/22 (available at offices
of author)

PART 2 – COMPLIANCE WITH PRINCIPLES OF DECISION MAKING
2.1

Finance and other resources
As this is a financial report, implications are covered in the body of the report and
Annex 1.

2.2

Legal
The Authority has a duty to ensure it can deliver a balanced budget. The Local
Government Act 2003 imposes a duty on an authority to monitor its budgets during
the year and consider what action to take if a potential deterioration is identified.

2.3

Consultation/community engagement
Internal consultation
Internal consultation has taken place with the Cabinet Member for Finance and
Resources, the Elected Mayor, the Senior Leadership Team and Senior Finance
Officers. This report will also be presented to the Authority’s Finance SubCommittee at its meeting on 13 September 2022.
Community engagement
The 2021/22 budget was agreed after widespread consultation in line with the
Authority’s approved Budget Engagement Strategy. Appendix F of the 2021/22
Financial Planning and Budget Process report to Council on 18 February 2021
provides details of the consultation.

2.4

Human rights
The proposals within this report do not have direct implications in respect of the
Human Rights Act 1998.

2.5

Equalities and diversity
There are no direct equalities and diversity implications arising from this report.

2.6

Risk management
Potential future financial pressures against the Authority are covered in this report
and registered through the Authority’s risk management process.

2.7

Crime and disorder
There are no direct crime and disorder implications arising from this report.

Page 27

2.8

Environment and sustainability
There are no direct environmental and sustainability implications arising from this
report.

PART 3 - SIGN OFF
Chief Executive
Director of Service

X
X

Mayor/Cabinet Member(s)

X

Chief Finance Officer

X

Monitoring Officer

X

Assistant Chief Executive

X

Page 28

2021/22
Provisional
Finance Outturn
Report Annex 1

1

Page 29

INDEX
Section

Page

1. Executive Summary

3

2. General Fund Income and Expenditure Summary

10

3. Delivery of Budget Savings Proposals

14

4. New Revenue Grants

17

5. Impact of Covid

22

6. Service Commentaries

29

7. Schools Finance

45

8. Housing Revenue Account

50

9. Investment Plan

55

10. Annual Treasury Management review and Prudential Indicators

62

Appendices
Appendix A

Reserves 2021/22

Appendix B

Investment Plan Financing Summary

Appendix C

Investment Plan Summary of Variations

Appendix D

Prudential and Treasury Indicators

2

Page 30

Section 1 – EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.1.

Summary

1.1.1. The Authority’s audited Statement of Accounts (the Accounts) for 2021/22
will be presented to the Audit Committee for approval in July 2022. This will
be later than in previous financial years as a result of the Covid-19
pandemic. The figures contained in this report are provisional until the
completion of the Accounts.
1.1.2. The Accounts are a statutory document which set out the Authority’s
financial position and performance for the year in a series of formal accounts
prepared according to a specific statutory and regulatory framework.
Successive changes to local government accounting practice have made the
Accounts a very technical document. As in previous years, this report sets
out the Authority’s financial performance in an outturn report. This reflects
the Authority’s structure and is set out on a similar basis to the financial
management reports presented to Cabinet throughout the year.
1.1.3. The financial year has seen the Authority continue to manage its finances
despite on-going funding reductions and continuing cost pressures in respect
of social care services. The Authority has also faced significant financial
impact from the Covid-19 pandemic. Despite these challenges the proactive
management of the General Fund Budget throughout the year has led to a
marginal overspend of business as usual activities of £0.078m.
1.1.4. As part of a review undertaken of the Authority’s Minimum Revenue
Provision (MRP), a change to the methodology used to calculate the MRP
resulted in a reduced MRP charge being made in 2021/22 by moving from a
straight line method to the annuity approach for unsupported borrowing.
This change resulted in a lower charge of MRP being made than the
Authority had budgeted for in 2021/22. This has added a further surplus of
£5.893m to the General Fund outturn position. The balance of £5.893m is
proposed to be transferred to a new MRP earmarked reserve. Further
details of this are in Section 9 of this Annex.
1.1.5. It is proposed to deal with the £0.078m overspend via a drawdown from the
Strategic Reserve. After the final transfers, the General Fund Revenue
Account shows spend on Budget for 2021/22, with a reduced closing
balance on the Strategic Reserve of £14.426m and unchanged General
Fund balances of £7.000m. Retaining these levels of balances is important
for managing the financial resilience of the Authority through 2022/23 and
beyond. Throughout 2022/23, officers will be working with Cabinet to review
what further support can be offered to support residents impacted by the
current economic climate. It is therefore essential that, the Authority remains
prudent to ensure that the financial position of the Authority continues to be
managed effectively.
1.1.6. School balances have decreased from £3.721m at the start of the financial
year to £3.398m at 31 March 2022. Six Schools remain in deficit but all six
saw improvements to their deficits during 2021/22 of £1.967m. Overall, the
3

Page 31

position improved by £9.392m from initial projected overall deficit balances
of £5.993m. Further details are contained in Section 7 of this Annex.
1.1.7. The Housing Revenue Account has year-end balances of £0.489m. The
HRA shows an underspend of £0.442m against the in-year 2021/22 Budget,
plus a £0.047m improvement in the budgeted brought forward balances,
which cumulatively brings the HRA to £0.489m better than the budgeted
position for 2021/22. Further details are given in Section 8 of this Annex.
1.1.8. The initial approved Investment Plan for 2021/22 was £68.611m. Net
variations and reprogramming of £9.858m were approved by Cabinet during
2021/22 to give a revised Investment Plan of £78.469m. Capital expenditure
for the year was £63.045m (80.34% of the revised plan). This outturn
includes further reprogramming of £15.414m and variations relating to
gateway approvals and grant determinations of £34.622m for the 2022-2027
investment plan as shown in Section 9.
1.2.

Strategic Management of the Authority’s Budget

1.2.1. Whilst statutorily the Authority’s Budget and Statement of Accounts must be
prepared annually, the pressures and opportunities that the Authority faces
often extend across several accounting years. Decisions taken in one year
may be felt in subsequent periods. One of the benefits of the Authority’s
regular Budget monitoring process is that issues can be identified early in
the year and action taken to address them. The outcomes of these actions
can then inform both Budget-setting and preparation of the Financial
Statements. Budget-setting, Budget management and the Financial
Statements can therefore be seen as related parts of a continuous process
of financial management by the Authority. This part of the report sets out
some of the key strategic issues managed by the Authority during 2021/22.
1.3.

General Fund

1.3.1. The Budget for 2021/22 was approved by full Council at its meeting of 18
February 2021. The net General Fund Budget was set at £150.154m
including efficiency savings of £4.537m (£1.180m of 2021/22 impact of prior
year business cases and £3.357m of prior year savings requiring a
permanent solution in 2021/22).
1.3.2. The Monitoring report up to 31 January 2022 projected a pressure of
£2.902m and the final position is a surplus of (£5.815m) (£0.078m Business
as Usual and a (£5.893m) balance relating to the MRP review).
1.4.

Budget Savings Programme

1.4.1. The Efficiency Programme for 2021/22 totalled £4.537m, including £1.185m
of new savings relating to prior year business cases combined with £3.357m
of prior year savings that required a permanent solution in 2021/22. There
were no new savings proposals originating in 2021/22. The delivery of
savings in 2021/22 has been significantly impacted by the Covid-19
pandemic especially within HECS and Commissioning & Asset
Management. The scale of the financial challenge for the year meant that
4

Page 32

during 2021/22 £3.481m of the savings target was achieved with a further
£1.039m handled through a range of alternative management activities and
support through the Covid-19 Local Authority Support grant reflecting the
impact the pandemic had on the opportunity to achieve these savings. The
Efficiency Programme is monitored as part of the overall financial position of
the Authority, and regular updates of progress is shared with the Mayor and
Cabinet members and also reported to Cabinet as part of the bi-monthly
Financial Management reports. Further details of the Efficiency Programme
outcomes are detailed in section 3.
1.5.

Treasury Management

1.5.1. There has been a decrease in the level of actual external borrowing
(excluding PFI) from £417.443m at 31 March 2021 to £397.443m at 31
March 2022. The level of internal funding remains high at £99.690m at 31
March 2022 (£95.166m at 31 March 2021), subsequently this avoids interest
charges.
1.6.

Reserves and Outlook

1.6.1.

The end of the financial year 2019/20 saw the beginning of the Covid-19
Pandemic and the impact has continued throughout 2020/21 and 2021/22.
Cabinet and all Members have been kept up to date in terms of the response
and approach to recovery the Authority has implemented throughout the
various stages of the pandemic and what that meant for essential services
being maintained for the most vulnerable residents of the borough. The
Authority has been required to provide a sustained and varied response to
the pandemic, with all services impacted one way or another. There have
been periods when restrictions meant a range of services had to be
suspended or limited, such as the leisure and culture offer and as a result
there has been a significant financial impact on the Authority arising from
additional costs and lost income in 2021/22. There has been sustained
support to the Social Care Sector for both Adults and Children’s. The
Authority was responsible for acting as agent for several grants to support
the businesses in the borough in 2020/21 and this has continued throughout
2021/22.

1.6.2.

There have been a range of financial interventions introduced by the
Government, these are set out in section 5. The Authority received its share
of the Government’s Local Support Grant of £5.576m this together with
£1.476m carry forward from 2020/21 award led to £7.052m being available
to support council services in 2021/22. Of this, £5.668m was allocated to
support revenue activities with the remaining £1.384m being carried forward
to support the identified on-going impact of Covid-19 into 2022/23.

1.6.3.

Cabinet is aware that Local Authorities were also compensated for losses
incurred against their sales, fees, and charges budgets for Quarter 1 only
(the full year impact supported in 2020/21). North Tyneside Council received
£1.335m from this grant to support services and this was fully allocated. This
represented 71.25% of the fees lost in quarter 1, the balance being bourne
by the Authority. Sales, fees and charges losses continued throughout the
year and the balance is included within the £5.668m outlined above. One of
5

Page 33

the key areas impacted was Sport & Leisure. In 2020/21, income levels
dropped to 14% of the pre-pandemic total. 2021/22 income levels improved
but were still only 67% of pre-pandemic totals. Early projections for 2022/23
are that the service will back to around 85% of pre-pandemic income levels.
1.6.4.

As mentioned previously the Authority received grants to support the
businesses in the borough. £12.773m was received in 2021/22
supplemented by £11.661m of funds brought forward from 2020/21.
£18.240m was paid across to businesses. Remaining balances of £6.262m
will be returned to Government and for the £0.002m relating to pavement
licences will be spent in early 2022/23.

1.6.5.

£4.258m of additional funding was received to support our residents,
including direct financial support for our most vulnerable but also to support
the Authority to put in place measures to keep residents safe whilst they
continued to enjoy our coastline, town centers and the many attractions
throughout the borough, when restrictions allowed. In addition a balance of
£6.908m was brought forward from 2020/21. Of this funding, £9.277m was
spent during 2022/22, with £1.889m carried forward to 2022/23. Of the
funding carried forward, the majority of it relates to Contain Outbreak
Management and the Authority has a range of proposals to spend this
funding to help contain outbreaks as the country continues to recover from
the pandemic.

1.6.6.

£5.418m was provided by government to help support the Care Home
market in 2021/22 and this was supplemented by £0.544m brought forward
from 2020/21. £5.666m was allocated in 2021/22, leaving £0.296m to be
carried into 2022/23. The Authority also received £2.572m to support its
schools in 2021/22, supplemented by £0.309m brought forward from
2020/21. £2.637m was allocated with the remaining £0.244m anticipated to
be allocated in early 2022/23.

1.6.7.

It has been highlighted previously by the Chief Finance Officer that the
Authority has a relatively low level of reserves. The level of uncertainty with
regard to the levels of funding for Local Government Finance beyond
2021/22 alongside the uncertain long terms implications of how the borough
and indeed the country will continue to live alongside the impacts of Covid19 is of concern when considering the financial sustainability of the Authority,
particularly when taken in the context of funding reductions the Authority has
managed since 2007/08.

1.6.8.

Another area of significant risk is around inflation and the impact that will
have on key expenditure around utilities, waste disposal as well as the
impact it will have on the supply chain and costs of materials for Capital
projects, HRA projects and general goods and services within revenue. The
CPI rate in April 2021 was 1.5% by March 2022 this had risen to 7% and the
rate at April 2022 was as high as 9%, so an 8.5% increase in just one
calendar year. The impact on the cost of and access to materials is further
impacted by the on-going conflict in Ukraine.

6

Page 34

1.6.9.

The Health, Education, Care and Safeguarding (HECS) services continue to
experience significant demand-led pressures as earlier diagnois combined
with cases become more complex increase costs. These pressures are likely
to be further impacted by legislative changes through central government
such as the Fair Cost of Care exercise which is under way and will
potentially lead to fee increases within the homecare and residential care
markets. The HECS service also has challenges around recruitment and
retention. It has become increasingly challenging to recruit staff into roles
within the HECS service and to retain the employment of staff long-term
within the profession.

1.6.10. The ringfenced Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) is received from the
Government and administered by the Authority and is the main source of
income for the schools budget. The DSG first fell into deficit during 2017/18
and it is an important element of the financial management of the Authority
that the DSG is not in a deficit position. As a result, there has been action to
address the deficit working collaboratively with Schools Forum although
increasing numbers of children with special needs entering the education
system has offset some of the progress.
Such deficits have come under increasing scrutiny from the Department for
Education (DfE) and during 2021, the Authority was required to submit a
draft DSG Management Plan to the Education, Skills and Funding Agency
(ESFA) as its DSG deficit was more than 1% of the total value of the DSG as
at March 2021. As a consequence, since then, the Authority’s DSG deficit
has remained under review.
Liaising with the DfE during 2021/22 the Authority has been working to firm
up plans to reduce the DSG deficit and this work is now being overseen by
the Strategic Education and Inclusion Board. The Authority submitted a draft
DSG Management plan to the ESFA in August 2021 which outlined the main
areas of priority that focus on reducing the deficit on the High Needs block of
the DSG. As of 2022/23 the Authortiy has been invited to be part of the
ESFAs Safety Valve Intervention programme from September 2022. The
Authority has had early discussions with representatives from the ESFA and
as plans are firmed up over the coming months the ESFA will continue to
challenge and support the Authority through to the Safety Valve process
commencing in September 2022.
For 2022/23 £150m of revenue funding is available to support the cumulative
deficit position of those authorities who are part of the Safety Valve
programme, however, the ESFA have been clear that access to this funding
will only be agreed once a robust DSG Management Plan is in place.The
current cumulative deficit position on the High Needs block of the DSG at the
end of the 2021/22 financial year is £13.512m. This is an increase of
£4.792m since March 2021.
A key risk for the Authority is that the statutory override to ring-fence DSG
deficits from councils’ wider financial position in their statutory accounts is
due to come end after the accounts for the financial year 2022/23. At which
point authorities will need to demonstrate their ability to cover DSG deficits
7

Page 35

from their available reserves. Due to the level of the deficit on the High
Needs block of the DSG it is imperative that the Authority’s DSG
Management Plan meets the ESFA’s requirements to ensure the historic
deficit can be supported by funding that is available.
1.6.11. There are a number of current key risks which will impact on future HRA
Business Planning, most of which are linked to the current economic climate
and high rates of inflation. Inflation continues to trend towards 10% and next
year’s rent increase will be based on the September 2022 Consumer Prices
Index (CPI) rate of inflation. It is unclear at this stage if the rate was around
10% if there would be Government intervention to restrict the size of any rent
increase.
The cost of the goods and materials needed to maintain the housing stock,
and to meet Cabinet’s aspirations to build new homes is rising significantly.
Should resources raised through rent increases not match the rising costs,
then the Authority will face more difficult choices around what can and
cannot be delivered, certainly in the short to medium term.
The potential impact of the cost of living crisis our most vulnerable residents
continues to be monitored closely to assess what the full impact of this will
be on the rate of increase in the levels of arrears, which have doubled since
2015.
One other key factor in terms of HRA Business Planning are the number of
homes that our managed and the impact of Right to Buy (RTB). Cabinet will
know that Government significantly increased the discount rates attached to
RTB back in 2012 to incentivize more sales, but this appeared to have
steadied at between 100-120 sales per annum over the last three years.
However, 2021-22 saw the largest number of sales since the changes were
introduced at 167, and if this trend was to continue it would eat into the key
resource base, and put further pressure on our ability to tackle tenant waiting
lists. This would also make it more important to add to the stock, but as set
out above in a much more difficult cost environment.
1.6.12. Inflation and interest rate risk remain a key component of the capital
investment plan and treasury management.In the Bank of England MPC May
report central projection, CPI inflation is expected to rise further over the
remainder of the year, to just over 9% in 2022 Q2 and averaging slightly over
10% at its peak in 2022 Q4 before forecasting inflation to track back to the
2% target on the short to medium term.The Bank of England as part of their
monetary policy have been increasing interest rates to manage the
continued rise in inflation, with interest rates forecast to rise further.However
the rise in interest rates will only partially manage inflation due to the
underlying inflation being driven by international energy price increases
driven by the conflict in Ukraine and Russia.The above risks are impacting
the capital investment plan from the perspective of increasing costs in
relation raw material and labour costs.This is also exacerbated by increasing
interest rates which will have a bearing on the cost of borrowing for the
Authority going forward.

8

Page 36

1.6.13. Appendix A sets out in detail the movement on Reserves and Balances and
despite some increases the general level of Reserves available to support
the Authority’s Budget remains relatively low when considering the current
estimated gap arising from the financial impact of Covid-19.
1.6.14. The Strategic Reserve (£14.426m) represents 4.16% of the General Fund
2021/22 gross Budget and 9.61% of the 2021/22 net Budget, with the
General Fund balances (£7.000m) added, these represent 6.17% of the
2021/22 gross Budget and 14.27% of the 2021/22 net General Fund Budget.
There is no prescribed level of reserves advice by finance bodies with the
level being considered in light of risks the Authority faces not just in the
current year but looking ahead.
1.6.15. The other general fund earmarked reserves total £56.800m, which is a
decrease of £10.313m from the 2020/21 position of £64.378m. Of this
decrease £9.441m relates to Covid-19 grants where £9.875m (£19.298m in
2020/21) is still being held with specific conditions that have to met when
spending those grants, and some of which we act as agent for the
government on. These Covid-19 balances are projected to be returned to
Central Government or spent over the early part of 2022/23.
1.6.16. The net movement in HRA reserves and balances is an increase of
£0.076m. The HRA reserves have increased by £1.577m to £21.302m in
2021/22 and the HRA balances have decreased by £1.501m to a total of
£3.501m. Within the HRA reserve total, £13.118m relates to PFI reserves.
1.6.17. School Balances show a decrease of £0.322m as set out in section 7 of this
Annex, but as stated previously this is a significant improvement of £9.391m
against the planned deficit balance position of £5.993m to leave a surplus of
£3.398m. As at 31 March 2022, the DSG account is showing a net deficit
balance of £12.851m. This compares to a deficit balance of £7.932m in
2020/21. Whilst the Authority does have some plans to recover this deficit
position, there remains uncertainty as to how this is to be resolved, adding
further risk for the Authority in the short to medium term.
1.6.18. In these unpresented times the importance of robust financial management
across the Authority remains paramount. A range of tighter spending
controls have been put in place to ensure no non-essential spend is incurred
during 2022/23.

9

Page 37

SECTION 2 - GENERAL FUND INCOME AND EXPENDITURE SUMMARY
2

General Fund Revenue Provisional Outturn

2.1

This section of the report details the provisional outturn at 31 March 2021.
The Authority’s approved net revenue Budget of £150.154m is provisionally
expected to be underspent by (£5.815m). This is an improvement of
(£8.717m) on the previous position reported to Cabinet based on forecasts at
January 2022 which showed a pressure of £2.902m. Table 1 in paragraph 2.5
below sets out the variation summary across the General Fund. The
overspend of £0.078m in business as usual acitives will be funded from the
Strategic Reserve, while the surplus created from the MRP review will be
transferred to the new MRP earmarked reserve. With this final transfers
included, the General Fund will show spend on Budget for 2021/22.
Accounting Adjustments

2.2

As part of the statutory reporting regulations there is a requirement to ensure
that there is a clear audit trail between the figures reported to Cabinet and
those published in the Statement of Accounts. The outturn therefore includes
a series of year-end accounting adjustments which, whilst having no impact
on the final overall position against the Budget, provide a link from the outturn
reported to Cabinet to the published accounts. These adjustments include:
Adjusting both budget and actual positions for support services. This
has no impact on variances.
Adjusting the service positions for actual (rather than budgeted) capital
expenditure items; and,
Adjusting the service positions for the impact of Private Finance
Initiatives (PFI) which has reduced the reported costs of the services by
£5.487m and has had the opposite impact on the corporate budget
lines.

2.3

As in previous years, these accounting adjustments were not included in the
previously reported forecasts presented to Cabinet.

2.4

Table 1 below shows the variance between the outturn to be published in the
Statement of Accounts and the Budget and shows the adjustments required
to allow comparison of the provisional outturn for Cabinet to the last reported
position:

10

Page 38

2.5 Table: 1 2021/22 General Fund Revenue Forecast Outturn as at 31 March 2022
Services

Health, Education, Care
and Safeguarding

Budget

Actual
Outturn

Variance

Accounting
Adjustments

Adjusted
Variance

Variance
Change
since Jan

£m

Business
as Usual Jan
Variance
£m

£m

£m

£m

£m

75.293

78.554

3.261

0.000

3.261

6.557

(3.296)

£m

Page 39

Commissioning and
Asset Management
Environment, Housing
and Leisure
Regeneration and
Economic Development

8.349

7.439

(0.910)

2.201

1.291

1.232

0.059

44.660

41.076

(3.584)

3.021

(0.563)

(0.019)

(0.544)

1.578

1.899

0.321

0.036

0.357

0.150

0.207

Corporate Strategy

1.130

1.364

0.234

(0.378)

(0.144)

0.028

(0.172)

(0.077)

(0.188)

(0.111)

0.000

(0.111)

(0.107)

(0.004)

Resources

3.481

4.758

1.277

0.006

1.283

0.771

0.512

Law and Governance

0.345

1.238

0.893

0.000

0.893

0.541

0.352

Central Items – BAU
Central Items – Covid19
Support Services

(4.786)

(11.982)

(7.196)

(4.886)

(12.082)

(8.478)

(3.604)

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

2.227

(2.227)

20.181

20.181

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

Total Authority

150.154

144.339

(5.815)

0.000

(5.815)

2.902

(8.717)

Chief Executive’s Office

11

Main Movements from Previous Reported Forecast Variance (January Report)
2.6

Comparing the adjusted outturn variance to the previously reported January
forecast outturn shows an overall improvement of (£8.717m). The main reasons for
these movements are itemised below with more detailed explanations of both the
outturns and the changes compared to the January report being contained in
Section 6 of this report.
Health Education Care and Safeguarding (HECS)

2.7

The draft outturn position for HECS has seen an improved positon of £3.296m. This
is made up of £1.721m for Adults and £1.575m in Children’s.
The improvement of £1.721m since the January report for Adults is primarilry due to
a further allocation to Covid-19 grants of £0.545m, additional care home fee
recovery of £0.357m and reduced costs within the homecare service of £0.285m
and the removal of £0.122m relating to the unmet need adjustment put in place to
cover costs covered by the Authority for clients not supported by the external
market.
The improvement of £1.575m since the Janaury report for Children’s is across a
number of areas. Within Corporate Parenting and Placements the improvement
was mainly due a contribution from Public Health in relation to Protection and
Preventative Services. Increased funding has been received for exceptional costs
for Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children. Within Early Help and Vulnerable
Families a reduction in staffing forecasts, due to the ongoing challenges linked to
recruitment and retention, and increased income for Riverside Nursery improved
the position. Within Integrated Disability and Additional Needs the improvement
was mainly due to a contribution from Public Health in relation to Protection and
Preventative Services and a reduced forecast in relation to short break costs, with
£0.076m of further costs attributable to Covid being covered by Covid grants and a
general reduction in outreach case costs.
Environment Housing and Leisure

2.8

Environment Housing and Leisure saw an improvement of £0.544m since the
January report largely due to reduced operational and staffing costs (vacancies not
being filed) across Sport & Leisure, Waste & Recycling Contract Delivery and
Management/Collection and Cultural Services.
Corporate Strategy

2.9

There has been an improved position of £0.172m compared to the January report,
linked to the Customer Service packages following the finalisation of the Pension
Cap & Collar adjustments from the Equans NTC Stratgic Partnership.
Resources

2.10

There has been a worsening of the position by £0.512m, mainly due full case
reviews impacting on overpayments subsidy and drop in enforcement income
versus cost of collection.

12

Page 40

Central Items
2.11

Central Items – BAU has improved by (£3.604m) since the January report. The
improvement relates to the (£5.893m) generated from the MRP review offset by
costs totalling £2.480m resulting from the early termination settlement and
compensation payments linked to the Equans NTC Strategic Partnership contract
review and the return of services to ICT and Finance.

2.12

Central Items – Covid-19 has seen its position improve by £2.227m as actual costs
and income lost as a result of the pandemic proved to be less than the prudent
forecasts being made in January in areas such as sport and leisure and ICT.
Additional improvements to the position were seen in Adults Services where other
specific grants were awarded by Central Government which helped ease the
pressure on the Local Authority Support grant anticipated in the January position.

13

Page 41

SECTION 3 - DELIVERY OF BUDGET SAVINGS PROPOSALS
3.1

No new savings were proposed as part of the budget approved by Council in
February 2021 so the total savings the Authority has had to find in the eleven
years following the 2010 Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) remains at the
2020/21 total of £127.756m.

3.2

Table 2: Year on Year savings since 2010 CSR
Year
2011/12
2012/13
2013/14
2014/15
2015/16
2016/17
2017/18
2018/19
2019/20
2020/21
2021/22
Total Savings

£m
16.169
16.739
12.240
16.552
14.158
15.737
18.338
10.143
6.875
0.805
0.000
127.756

3.3

Although no new savings were proposed, a total of £1.180m of savings targets
were agreed in prior years budget setting processes for delivery in 2021/22.
Savings targets of £2.181m within Health, Education, Care and Safeguarding
(HECS) were met in 2020/21 through Covid grants or alternative management
actions with a further £0.482m met through one-year funding sources. This left a
total savings targets of £3.843m within HECS which still required a permanent
solution in 2021/22. A target of £0.082m from 2020/21 within Commissioning and
Asset Management (C&AM) also required achievement on a permanent basis in
2021/22. The total savings that needed to be achieved in 2021/22 are therefore
£4.537m.

3.4

The delivery of savings in 2021/22 continued to be impacted by the Covid-19
pandemic within HECS and C&AM. The position with HECS has improved since
the Jnauary report with a further £0.775m of additional savings achieved and a
further £0.438m achieved via in-year actions. The position for C&AM and EHL is
unchanged from January.

14

Page 42

3.5

Table 3: Efficiency Savings by Service at March 2022
Service
HECS
Commissioning &
Asset Management
Environment
Housing & Leisure
TOTAL

3.6

2021/22
Targets
£m
3.843

Projected
Delivery
£m
2.968

In Year
Actions
£m
0.875

Not
Achieved
£m
0.000

0.264

0.093

0.164

0.007

0.430

0.430

0.000

0.000

4.537

3.491

1.039

0.007

The governance structure of the Efficiency Savings Programme includes a monthly
review of progress by the Senior Leadership Team (SLT). In addition, in-year budget
and performance progress meetings are held between officers and Cabinet Members to
consider progress and actions being taken to deliver savings. The variations in relation
to the savings where delivery has been impacted by Covid are outlined in the sections
below.
Health, Education, Care and Safeguarding (HECS)

3.7

HECS has achieved savings targets totalling £2.968m primarily relating to Sector
Led Improvement income (£0.280m), renegotioation of public health contracts
(£0.328m), assistive technology (£0.500m), maximising children’s (£0.297m) and
Adults NHS income (£0.250m) with improvements in delivery in relation to Learning
Disability services (£0.500m), income management (£0.050m), independent
supported living (£0.100m), management review (£0.070m), development on
internal services for children (£0.400m), early help and family gateway (£0.073m)
and reduced external fostering arrangements (£0.120m). In-year actions have
enabled £1.268m to be supported through management actions of retaining
vacancies and managing third party payments within Adult services as well as
support through Covid-19 grants.

3.8

This service has been significantly impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic and the
level of response required through each phase as the Pandemic continues to
unfold. A proportion of the savings involve income generation via third parties.
Other service delivery-based savings have been impacted due to capacity issues
where placements have had to be maintained due to Covid-19 restrictions.

3.9

Finance Officers continue to attend meetings with senior managers and the
Director of HECS and individual managers have assigned responsibilities to pursue
deliverability of remaining schemes and to identify alternative proposals during into
2022/23.
Commissioning and Asset Management (C&AM)

3.10

Within Commissioning and Asset Management the only savings target unmet in
2020/21 related to the target for an increase in school meals fees of £0.082m.
This is now joined in 2021/22 by a further increase in this target of £0.082m. Both
savings targets have been funded from COVID-19 grants in 2021/22. In relation
to the target of £0.100m relating to SLA income, £0.093m has been achieved, with

15

Page 43

£0.007m being unachieved and therefore contributing to the wider outturn of
C&AM.
Environment Housing and Leisure
3.11

All savings in this service have been achieved.

16

Page 44

SECTION 4 – NEW REVENUE GRANTS
4.1

New revenue grants have been received or notified in February and March 2022.
Table 4: Grants Received or Notified in February and March 2022

Service

Grant
Provider

Grant

Purpose

Environment,
Housing &
Leisure

Arts Council
England

Platinum
Jubilee Funding

Resources

Department for
Levelling Up,
Housing and
Communities

Cyber support
section 31
21/22

Arts Council England is 0.001
providing funding to
every Library Service to
mark the occasion in
whatever way they think
will be most relevant
and enjoyable for their
users and local
community
Section 31 funding for
0.150
Cyber Security

Environment,
Housing &
Leisure

North of Tyne
Community
Engagement
Grants

Community
Digital Skills
Pathway

Health,
Education,
Care and
Safeguarding

Department for
Education

Local Authority
participation in
the Early Years
Experts and
Mentors
programme

Health,
Education,
Care and
Safeguarding

Department for
Education

Early Years
Professional
Development
Programme
(PDP): Building
On Success
Section 31
Tranche 1

17

2021/22
value
£m

Funding to increase the
number of people who
can access digital
technology and 'get
online' to improve their
digital skills.
Early Years Strategy,
Quality and Covid
Response

0.002

Professional
Development
Programme (PDP)
Phase 2

0.017

Page 45

0.006

Service

Grant
Provider

Grant

Purpose

Health,
Education,
Care and
Safeguarding

Home Office

Unaccompanied
Asylum Seeking
Chidren (UASC)
- Exceptional
Spend

Environment,
Housing &
Leisure

Home Office

Homes for
Ukraine

All local authorities
0.219
supporting UASC and
UASC caree leavers
are eligibale to apply.
Exceptional Costs are
additional expenses
incurred by a local
authority in supporting
UASC and former
UASC care leavers for
which the Home Office
may on a case-by-case
basis, agree to
reimburse. All local
authorities that care for
UASC and former
UASC care leavers are
eligible to apply for
exceptions costs
funding.
this enables Ukrainian
0.800
Nationals to be
sponsored to come to
the UK. Sponsors and
Ukrainian Nationals are
expected to find each
other and match up.
Either the Sponsor (i.e.
an individual living in
the UK) or the Guest,
as the Ukrainian
Nationals that come
under this scheme are
referred to, must
complete the visa
application. Security
checks are carried out
on the sponsor, their
household and the
guests. Once
immigration and
security checks have
been completed the
visa is issued and the
guest(s) will receive a
permit to travel. Guests
are responsible for
funding their own travel.

18

Page 46

2021/22
value
£m

Service

Grant
Provider

Grant

Purpose

2021/22
value
£m

Although, we are aware
of a number of
sponsors who have told
us they are paying for
the travel for their
guests. Co-ordination
of the travel
arrangements is
between the sponsor
and the guest.
Environment,
Housing &
Leisure

Department for
Environment
Food & Rural
Affairs

Resources

Department for
Work and
Pensions

Resources

Department for
Work and
Pensions

Biodiversity Net
Gain Grant
2021/22

BNG means that
natural habitats will be
extended or improved
as part of a
development or project.
Development will be
designed in a way that
provides benefits to
people and nature and
reduces its impacts on
the wider environment.
Discretionary
Discretionary Housing
Housing
Payment (DHP) funding
Payments for
is available for those
year ending
entitled to Housing
March 2023
Benefit or the Housing
Element of Universal
Credit who require
further financial
assistance with housing
costs.
Additional New
The funding is to cover
Burdens funding an increase in LA costs
to meet the
for HB cases and does
costs of
not support Local
delivering
Council Tax Reduction.
Welfare Reform The funding for Council
changes in the
Tax related expenditure
financial year
is administered by the
ending March
Department for
2023
Levelling Up, Housing
and Communities and
the devolved
administrations.

19

Page 47

0.010

0.300

0.086

Service

Grant
Provider

Grant

Purpose

2021/22
value
£m

Resources

Department for
Work &
Pensions

HB Award
Accuracy
Initiative

0.019

Resources

Department for
Work &
Pensions

HBAS

Resources

Department for
Work &
Pensions

Verify Pensions
and Earnings
(VEP)

Environment,
Housing &
Leisure

Northumbria
Police and
Crime
Commissioner

North Tyneside
Safer Streets
Round 3

The aim of the funding
schedule is to provide
you with a more holistic
picture of the funding
your authority will
receive from the
Department for Work
and Pensions (DWP)
and pulls together
multiple funding
streams into one
schedule.
The aim of the funding
schedule is to provide
you with a more holistic
picture of the funding
your authority will
receive from the
Department for Work
and Pensions (DWP)
and pulls together
multiple funding
streams into one
schedule.
The aim of the funding
schedule is to provide
you with a more holistic
picture of the funding
your authority will
receive from the
Department for Work
and Pensions (DWP)
and pulls together
multiple funding
streams into one
schedule.
Both bids aim to make
public spaces safer and
more inclusive for
women, girls and
marginalised groups in
Northumbria, as well as
aiming to tackle
underreporting and
addressing attitude and
behaviour change

20

Page 48

0.696

0.018

0.025

Service

Grant
Provider

Grant

Purpose

2021/22
value
£m

Environment,
Housing &
Leisure

Northumbria
Police and
Crime
Commissioner

North Tyneside
Safer Streets
Round 3
support grant

Both bids aim to make
public spaces safer and
more inclusive for
women, girls and
marginalised groups in
Northumbria, as well as
aiming to tackle
underreporting and
addressing attitude and
behaviour change

0.006

Total

2.355

21

Page 49

SECTION 5 – IMPACT OF COVID-19
5.1

The Authority continued to play a key role in supporting businesses, residents, care
homes and schools with financial support and additional Covid-19 related services
throughout 2021/22 in response to the Pandemic. Financial impacts remained, due
to loss of income as a result of closures and restrictions on the facilities the Authority
operates and additional costs resulting from Covid-19 in relation to its business-asusual activities. The Authority has received a range of grants from Government to
fund this additional activity and the financial impact on the Authority’s normal
services. The tables below outline the grants received, spend in year and the
outcomes related to each grant.

5.2

Table 5: Supporting Our Businesses

Business Grant

Value
Awarded
21/22

Value
B/Fwd
from 20/21

Value
Spent
21/22

Value
C/Fwd to
22/23

£m

£m

£m

£m

Business Support Top-Up (Closed
Business Lockdown Payments)
Local Restrictions Support ‘Closed’
& 'Open'

0.000

(3.307)

0.189

(3.118)

0.000

(4.694)

2.009

(2.685)

Additional Restrictions Grant

0.000

(2.738)

2.738

0.000

(1.447)

0.000

1.246

(0.201)

0.000

(0.047)

0.047

0.000

Restart Grants

(9.804)

0.000

9.778

(0.026)

Capacity Fund

0.000

(0.636)

0.636

0.000

Reopening the High Street

0.000

(0.229)

0.229

0.000

Travel Demand Management

0.000

(0.010)

0.010

0.000

Omicron Hospitality & Leisure Grant

(1.505)

0.000

1.273

(0.232)

Pavement Licencing

(0.017)

0.000

0.015

(0.002)

Total

(12.773)

(11.661)

18.170

(6.264)

Additional Restrictions Grant – Top
Up
Christmas Support ‘Wet-Pubs’

5.3

The Authority had £11.661m of grant funding brought forward from 2020/21 with a
further £12.773m awarded in 2021/22 aimed at supporting businesses across the
Borough. £18.170m of this was allocated during 2021/22. Of the remaining balances
all bar the Pavement Licencing balance, which is committed to be spent in 2022/23,
are anticipated to be repayable to Government. These sums arose because the
Authority was awarded more funding than was required. The allocation methodology
applied by Government was not shared with the Authority so we unclear why the
allocations exceeded the sums required. As these schemes have now ended the
expectation is that these balances, totalling £6.262m, will need to be returned to
Government.
22

Page 50

5.4

Table 6: Supporting Our Residents

Residents Grant

Value
Awarded
21/22

Value
B/Fwd
from 20/21

Value
Spent
21/22

Value
C/Fwd to
22/23

£m

£m

£m

£m

Test & Trace Programme Support Grant

0.000

(0.782)

0.751

(0.031)

Emergency Assistance Grant

0.000

(0.080)

0.080

0.000

Contain Outbreak Management Fund

(1.439)

(5.302)

5.163

(1.578)

Test & Trace (self-isolation) Support
Payments

(1.271)

(0.438)

1.592

(0.117)

LA Practical Support Framework

(0.412)

0.000

0.409

(0.003)

0.000

(0.003)

0.003

0.000

Clinically Extremely Vulnerable

(0.236)

(0.303)

0.379

(0.160)

Rough Sleepers Additional Grant

(0.025)

0.000

0.025

0.000

Winter Grant

(0.012)

0.000

0.012

0.000

Local Support Grant & Extension

(0.759)

0.000

0.759

0.000

Rapid Testing in the Community

(0.104)

0.000

0.104

0.000

Total

(4.258)

(6.908)

9.277

(1.889)

Covid Marshalls

5.5

The Authority has been awarded £4.258m of new grant funding in 2021/22 to
continue supporting its residents on top of a brought forward balance of £6.908m
from 2020/21, meaning there was £11.166m of funding available. This use of this
funding ranged from ensuring our most vulnerable were protected to ensuring
individuals that needed to self-isolated still had access to the services they required
and ensuring residents could visit our coastline and other attractions safely, where
guidelines allowed, through the employment of Covid Marshalls and other safety
measures. The Authority spent £9.277m in 2021/22 and has committed to spending
the balance of £1.889m in 2022/23. The majority of the committed balance relates to
the Contain Outbreak Management Fund. This grant is to help the Authority support
the prevention of Covid-19 outbreaks or manage any that do occur in the borough.

23

Page 51

5.6

Table 7: Supporting Our Care Homes

Care Sector Grant

Value
Awarded
21/22

Value
B/Fwd
from 20/21

Value
Spent
21/22

Value
C/Fwd to
22/23

£m

£m

£m

£m

Infection Control

(1.755)

(0.544)

2.111

(0.188)

Rapid Testing – Care Homes

(1.418)

0.000

1.310

(0.108)

Workforce Capacity Grant

(1.987)

0.000

1.987

0.000

Adult Social Care Omicron Support

(0.258)

0.000

0.258

0.000

Total

(5.418)

(0.544)

5.666

(0.296)

5.7

The Authority was awarded £5.418m in 2021/22 to support the care homes within
the borough, as well as having £0.544m brought forward from 2020/21. The majority
of this funding was passed over directly to the care homes. The remaining funding
was used to support the Authority’s adult social care services for infection control
and testing activities. The balances carried forward in these areas have been
committed to be spent in 2022/23.

5.8

Table 8: Supporting Our Schools

Schools Grant

Value
Awarded
21/22

Value
B/Fwd
from 20/21

Value
Spent
21/22

Value
C/Fwd to
22/23

£m

£m

£m

£m

0.000

(0.076)

0.076

0.000

Schools Catch-up Premium

(0.880)

0.000

0.880

0.000

Mental Health in Schools

(0.024)

0.000

0.000

(0.024)

Additional Home to School Transport

(0.187)

0.000

0.187

0.000

Mass Testing for Schools

(0.257)

(0.233)

0.490

0.000

Recovery Premium

(0.531)

0.000

0.531

0.000

National Tutoring Programme

(0.558)

0.000

0.338

(0.220)

Summer Schools Funding

(0.135)

0.000

0.135

0.000

Total

(2.572)

(0.309)

2.637

(0.244)

Digital Inclusion

24

Page 52

5.9

Grant funding of £2.572m was awarded in 2021/22 with a brought forward balance
from 2020/21 of £0.309m giving a balance available to spend on our maintained
schools during 2021/22 of £2.881m. The funding was used to support schools in
being able to continue to offer a Covid-safe environment and deliver services to
ensure children were not detrimentally impacted by being unable to attend classes in
school. The remaining £0.244m is being held for the summer term and any
remaining balance not claimed by schools will be return to Government.
Supporting Council Services

5.10

The Authority’s services have been heavily impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic.
These services are being supported in 2021/22 by £5.576m of Local Authority
Support Grant and a brought forward balance of £1.476m. There is also utilisation of
£10.949m of specific grants supporting services, and £1.335m of grant funding to
cover losses on quarter 1 Sales, Fees and Charges, which together with the Local
Authority Support Grant amounts to a total grant availability of £19.366m. The
tables below, summarised in Table 16, show that the total impact of Covid-19 on
general fund services in 2021/22 is expected to be £17.952m, which has enabled
the Authority to carry forward unringfenced Covid-19 funding of £1.384m into
2022/23 to help support the legacy pressures associated with Covid-19.

5.11

Table 9: Supporting Our Council Services in Commissioning & Asset
Management

Commissioning & Asset
Management

Free School Meals
Asset Management
LA7 Home to School Transport
Clinically Extremely Vulnerable
Electricity
Cleaning
Postage
Contractor Payments
Rents General
Car Parks (season tickets)
Penalty Notices (absence from
School)
Total

Main Grant
Expenditure

SFC
Expenditure

Total
Expenditure

£m
0.109
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.018

Other
Specific
Grant
Expenditure
£m
0.255
0.066
0.187
0.379
0.000
0.192
0.024
0.029
0.000
0.000

£m
1.743
0.000
0.000
0.000
(0.021)
0.001
0.000
0.002
0.036
0.083
0.018

0.008

0.000

0.026

1.862

0.135

1.132

3.129

25

Page 53

£m
2.107
0.066
0.187
0.379
(0.021)
0.193
0.024
0.031
0.036
0.101

5.12

Table 10: Supporting Our Council Services in Environment, Housing &
Leisure

Environment, Housing &
Leisure

Sport & Leisure
Environmental Services
Waste Management
Highways & Transport
Cultural Services
Homelessness
Marshalls
Environment & Regulatory
Planning & Development
Total
5.13

Main Grant
Spend

SFC
Spend

Other
Specific
Grant Spend

Total
Expenditure
Spend

£m
1.218

£m
0.550
0.000
0.000
0.366
0.060
0.000
0.000
0.021
0.000
0.997

£m
0.032

£m
1.800

0.051
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.028
0.110
0.015
0.000

0.268
0.201
0.209
0.061
0.028
0.110
0.032
0.031

0.236

2.740

0.217
0.201
(0.157)
0.001
0.000
0.000
(0.004)
0.031
1.507

Table 11: Supporting Our Council Services in Health, Education, Care &
Safeguarding

Health, Education, Care &
Safeguarding

CYPL - School Improvement
CYPL - Front Door & safe and
support
CYPL - Placement Costs
CYPL - Residential Staffing
CYPL - Adoption Agency (NTC
share)
ASC - Adult Services
ASC – Workforce Capacity
ASC – Omicron Support Fund
ASC - Rapid Testing in Social
Care
ASC - Infection Control Grant
CYPL & ASC sub total
PH - Test & Trace Support
Service
Total

Main Grant
Spend

SFC
Spend

Other
Specific
Grant Spend

Total
Expenditure
Spend

£m
0.062

£m
0.179

£m
0.117

£m
0.358

1.097

0.000

0.473

1.570

1.344
0.045

0.009
0.000

0.064
0.636

1.417
0.681

0.072

0.010

0.061

0.143

(0.786)
0.000
0.000

0.000
0.000
0.000

1.040
1.987
0.258

0.254
1.987
0.258

0.000

0.000

1.310

1.310

0.000
1.834

0.000
0.198

2.111
8.057

2.111
10.089

0.000

0.000

0.751

0.751

1.834

0.198

8.808

10.840

26

Page 54

5.14

Table 12: Supporting Our Council Corporate Strategy
Main Grant
Spend

SFC
Spend

Other
Specific
Grant Spend

Total
Expenditure
Spend

£m
0.086
0.086

£m
0.000
0.000

£m
0.111
0.111

£m
0.197
0.197

Corporate Strategy

Corporate Strategy
Total
5.15

Table 13: Supporting Our Council Resources and Central Items
Main Grant
Spend

SFC
Spend

Other
Specific
Grant Spend

Total
Expenditure
Spend

£m
0.000
0.040
0.235
0.275

£m
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000

£m
0.026
0.000
0.000
0.026

£m
0.026
0.040
0.235
0.301

Resources & Central Items

Corporate ICT
Finance / Corporate Services
Provision for Bad Debt
Total
5.16

Table 14: Supporting Our Council in Law and Governance
Main Grant
Spend

SFC
Spend

Other Specific
Grant Spend

Total
Expenditure
Spend

£m
0.073
0.073

£m
0.005
0.005

£m
0.000
0.000

£m
0.078
0.078

Law & Governance

Law & Governance
Total
5.17

Table 15: Supporting Our Council in Regeneration & Economic Development

Regeneration & Economic
Development
Capacity Funding
Total

Main Grant
Spend

SFC
Spend

Other Specific
Grant Spend

Total
Expenditure
Spend

£m
0.000
0.000

£m
0.000
0.000

£m
0.636
0.636

£m
0.636
0.636

27

Page 55

5.18

Table 16: Covid-19 Support to Services Summary

Service Area/ Category

Cost:
Commissioning & Asset
Management
Environment, Housing & Leisure
Health, Education, Care and
Safeguarding
Corporate Strategy
Resources and Central Items
Law and Governance
Regeneration and Economic
Development
General Fund Housing
Total Impact on Services
Income:
Local Authority Support Grant
Sales, Fees and Charges
Specific Covid Grants
Covid Support to C/Fwd

Main Grant
Spend

SFC
Spend

Other Specific
Grant Spend

Total
Expenditure
Spend

£m

£m

£m

£m

1.862

0.135

1.132

3.129

1.507

0.997

0.236

2.740

1.834

0.198

8.808

10.840

0.086
0.276
0.073

0.000
0.000
0.005

0.111
0.026
0.000

0.197
0.302
0.078

0.000

0.000

0.636

0.636

0.030
5.668

0.000
1.335

0.000
10.949

0.030
17.952

(7.052)
0.000
0.000
(1.384)

0.000
(1.335)
0.000
0.000

0.000
0.000
(10.949)
0.000

(7.052)
(1.335)
(10.949)
(1.384)

28

Page 56

SECTION 6 – SERVICE COMMENTARIES
6.1

Meetings have been held between finance officers and budget managers to close
the accounts for 2021/22, with a provisional outturn position being prepared on a
prudent basis. Challenge sessions have been held to review the quarterly
financial position and service performance with the Elected Mayor, the Deputy
Mayor, the Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources, and other relevant
Cabinet Members. Service Directors and their senior teams also attend these
challenge sessions to discuss plans to mitigate any pressures.

6.2

Health, Education, Care & Safeguarding (HECS)

6.2.1

HECS is showing a forecast variance of £3.261m against its £75.293m net
controllable expenditure budget, an improvement of £3.296m from the January
pressure of £6.556m. The overspend is driven by Children’s Services but excludes
the application of contingency budgets set aside in Central Items for pressures in
Children’s Services of £3.116m.

6.2.2

The HECS service continued to be impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic and put
in place a range of responses to support existing clients and other residents
directly affected by the virus who have required new support packages to be put
in place on discharge from hospital or to prevent an admission. Work took place
to support social care providers to maintain their vital services. Further details on
Covid impacts are shown in Section 5 above.

6.2.3

Table 17: Forecast Variation for HECS at March 2022
Budget

Corporate
Parenting &
Placements
Child
Protection,
Independent
Assurance and
Review
Early Help &
Vulnerable
Families
Employment &
Skills
Integrated
Disability &
Additional
Needs Service
School
Improvement

£m

Forecast
Mar
£m

Variance
Mar
£m

Variance
Jan
£m

Change
since Jan
£m

15.944

19.917

3.973

4.996

(1.023)

0.716

0.714

(0.002)

(0.001)

(0.001)

1.634

1.175

(0.459)

(0.365)

(0.094)

0.617

0.617

0.000

(0.001)

0.001

2.297

3.164

0.867

1.317

(0.450)

0.345

0.360

0.015

0.023

(0.008)

29

Page 57

Budget

Regional
Adoption
Agency
Children’s
Services Subtotal
Central,
Strategy and
Transformation
Social Work
and Associated
Activity
Integrated
Services
Business
Assurance
Sub-total
Operations
Commissioned
Services –
Wellbeing and
Assessment
Commissioned
Services –
Learning
Disability
Commissioned
Services –
Mental Health
Commissioned
Services Other
Sub-total –
Commissioned
Services
Adult Services
Total
Public Health
Total HECS

£m

Forecast
Mar
£m

Variance
Mar
£m

Variance
Jan
£m

Change
since Jan
£m

(0.168)

(0.168)

0.000

0.000

0.000

21.385

25.779

4.394

5.969

(1.575)

1.149

1.058

(0.091)

0.007

(0.098)

7.344

6.974

(0.370)

(0.076)

(0.294)

2.959

2.101

(0.858)

(0.279)

(0.579)

0.301

0.243

(0.058)

(0.038)

(0.020)

11.753

10.376

(1.377)

(0.386)

(0.991)

11.985

11.146

(0.839)

(0.015)

(0.824)

25.452

25.015

(0.437)

(0.302)

(0.135)

3.457

4.946

1.489

1.260

0.229

1.261

1.292

0.031

0.031

0.000

42.155

42.399

0.244

0.974

(0.730)

53.908

52.775

(1.133)

0.588

(1.721)

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

75.293

78.554

3.261

6.557

(3.296)

Main budget pressures across HECS
6.2.4

In addition to its response to the Covid-19 pandemic, HECS continued to manage
a complex budget and was required to deal with a combination of funding
arrangements, pressures and national policy changes. There were continuing
30

Page 58

upward pressures on care providers’ fees partially resulting from the National
Living Wage but which became more acute with the operational impact of Covid-19
on care homes and issues around high vacancy levels in a small number of care
homes within the borough. Dialogue continues with care providers around
appropriate fee rates moving into 2022/23 and negotiations also continue around
ensuring funding contributions from the NHS for clients with health needs as the
North Tyneside Clinical Commissioning Group (NTCCG) themselves face
continuing budget constraints.
6.2.5

The main factor behind the outturn position is the significant overspend within
Corporate Parenting and Placements, in relation to care provision for children in
care and care leavers. There is also an overspend relating to services for children
with additional needs. In addition to care provision pressures, there continued to
be pressures in the workforce arising from staff retention costs and recruitment
costs.
Children’s Services

6.2.6

In Children’s Services, the £4.394m forecast overspend related mainly to
pressures of £3.973m in Corporate Parenting and Placements and £0.867m in
Integrated Disability and Additional Needs. The pressures were foreseen by
Cabinet and backed by £3.116m of centrally held contingencies.

6.2.7

The improvement of £1.575m since the Janaury report is across a number of
areas. Within Corporate Parenting and Placements the improvement was mainly
due a contribution from Public Health following a review into the allocation of
aproporaite levels of funing on Protection and Preventative Services. There was
an allocation of grant for exceptional costs for Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking
Children. Within Early Help and Vulnerable Families a reduction in staffing
forecasts, due to the on-going challenge around recruitment and retention and
increased income for Riverside Nursery improved the position. Within Integrated
Disability and Additional Needs the improvement was mainly due to a contribution
from Public Health following the review of Protection and Preventative Services
and a reduced forecast in relation to short break costs, with £0.076m costs
attributable to Covid being covered by Covid grants and a general reduction in
outreach case costs.

6.2.8

In relation to the levels of children in care within North Tyneside, the most recent
available national comparators from 2020/21, as demonstrated by Chart 2 below,
shows that North Tyneside, although above the England average, has historically
performed well within the North East region in relation to the rates of children in
care.

31

Page 59

6.2.9

Chart 1: Comparative Performance in Rates of Children in Care per 10,000
Children under 18

6.2.10 Although an amount of £3.116m is held as a contingency budget for children’s
services within Central Items, the budget within the service for the costs of looking
after children who need to come into care continues to face signifincat pressure
for the relatively stable level of children who require these services. The costs for
children who are formally not classed as in care but who required costed services
also continues, as in previous years, to be significantly above budget. The service
has completed an exercise in conjunction with colleagues in Finance,
Performance and HR to identify growth requirements and saving opportunities as
part of the ongoing development of the Medium-Term Financial Plan.
Corporate Parenting and Placements
6.2.11 The pressures within Corporate Parenting and Placements can be broken down
as follows:

32

Page 60

Table 18: Analysis of Pressures in Corporate Parenting and Placements
Type of Service

Budget
£m

Variance
Mar
£m

Variance
Jan
£m

Change
Since
Jan
£m

Care provision – children in
care

9.230

2.103

2.710

(0.607)

Care provision – other children

3.163

0.604

0.800

(0.196)

(0.944)

0.811

0.835

(0.024)

Social Work

4.449

0.451

0.648

(0.197)

Safeguarding Operations

0.046

0.004

0.003

0.001

Total

15.944

3.973

4.996

(1.023)

Management & Legal Fees

6.2.12 The forecast has been developed based on the children in care as at the end of
March 2022. The number in care at the end of March was 353 which was a net
increase of 18 from the January figure of 335. The March forecast for the total
number of bed nights was 113,358, an increase of 3,111 over the January
forecasted nights, and higher than the total number of care nights delivered in
2020/21 which was 108,745. Despite an increase in the number of children in
care, the numbers being cared for by in-house fostering has minimised the impact
of the increased cost to improve the overall position.
6.2.13 Table 19: Forecast cost, forecast variance, average placement cost and
Placement mix

Placement Type
External
Residential Care
External
Fostering
In-House
Fostering Service
External
Supported
Accommodation
Other*

Total

2021/22
Variance

Average
Annual
Placement
cost (£m)

Forecast
Bed
Nights
Mar

Forecast
Bed
Nights
Jan

Placement
Mix

No. of
children
Mar 22

No. of
children
Jan 22

0.913

0.284

8,853

8,140

8%

28

26

0.232

0.054

10,657

10,206

7%

26

25

0.507

0.021

69,869

68,487

63%

220

209

0.170

0.145

4,699

4,108

6%

21

19

0.885

various

19,280

19,306

16%

56

56

113,358

110,247

100%

351

335

2.707

*Other includes Placed for Adoption, Placed with Parents/Parental Responsibility and
NTC Children’s Homes; the Annual Average Placement Cost represents the potential
costs for a full year of those children in placements as at 31 March 2022.

33

Page 61

Care Provision – Children in Care
6.2.14 Over recent years, there has been an increasing trend nationally in demand for
children’s residential placements but with no corresponding increase in
government-funded provision. The trend in North Tyneside over the last few years
is that the overall number of children in care has mirrored the increases being felt
nationally. There has been an increase in March to 353 children and this trend is
being watched carefully.
6.2.15 Chart 2: Children in Care at the End of Each Month

370

Numbers of Children In Care at the End of Each Month
346

350
330

330
310

310 308
298 299

317
304 303
300 300

290

291

291
286 289

296

292

313

353

335

318

301 299
286

270
250

0
1
2
1
2
0
1
1
0
1
0
1
0
1
0
1
0
1
2
1
1
0
0
1
02 02 202 202 202 202 202 202 202 202 202 202 l 202 202 202 202 202 202 202 202 202 202 eb 2 ar 2
t
t
r
r2 y2
c Jan eb
v
y
y
i
F
g
e
M
ly Aug ept Oct Nov Dec Jan
Ap Ma June Jul Au Sep Oc No De
F
Ma Apr Ma Jun Ju
S

Care Provision – Children not in care
6.2.16 The pressure of £0.604m (January variance, £0.800m) relating to care provision
for children not in the care system relates predominantly to children under a
Special Guardianship Order (SGO). Cabinet will recall that the Authority’s policy
for supporting children in SGOs was amended in 2018 and that this brought about
additional costs. The contingency budget of £3.116m established in Central Items
was, in part, intended to mitigate against these costs.
Management and Legal Fees
6.2.17 This area has an overspend of £0.811m which is a decrease of £0.024m from the
variance within the January report of £0.835m. Overspends remain in relation to
historic income targets yet to be achieved, and there has been an increase in
forecasts relating to legal fees, due to increase in cases and complexity.
Social Work
6.2.18 Within the overall overspend of £3.973m for Corporate Parenting and Placements,
there are social work-related pressures of £0.451m (January, £0.648m). The
improvement is due to reduced forecasts for vacancies, due to the on-going
recruitment and retention challenges and recharge of respite costs. There is an
additional team in place of six posts costing £0.244m and market supplements
34

Page 62

across the service amounting to £0.173m. There were s17 assistance costs
forecasted above budget level by £0.057m, transport and travel pressures of
£0.015m and legal and professional fee pressures of £0.178m. Cabinet is aware
of the particular challenges faced across the children’s social care sector
nationally as caseloads per social worker remain high at just over 20 compared to
the national average of 16.3 (for 2020). The additional social work costs within
Children’s services reflects the commitment not to use agency staff within front
line teams.
Integrated Disability and Additional Needs (IDANS)
6.2.19 IDANS is reporting an overspend of £0.867m compared to the January pressure
of £1.317m. The overspend in IDANS should be seen within the national and local
context of increasing numbers of children with Education Health and Care Plans
(EHCPs). Within North Tyneside, the number of children with an EHCP has risen
from 1,102 in January 2018 to 2,094 in March 2022. Within this service area the
main overspends relate to operational staffing costs within in-house residential
services of £0.152m. There is an overspend of £0.164m in Educational
Psychology relating to an increase in non-chargeable statutory work associated
with increased levels of EHCPs for children with additional needs, offset by a
contribution from Public Health in relation to Protection and Preventative Services.
There were overspends of £0.335m on externally commissioned short breaks and
staffing pressures of £0.084m across the Statutory Assessment and Review
(SAR) Team and the Disability Team. The improvement is due to a reduced spend
for short break services, a contribution from Public Health in relation to Protection
and Preventative Services and increased income from Health.
6.2.20 The IDANS service continued throughout the year to carefully review planned
provisions to identify any areas of spend which could be reduced without adverse
impacts on the children and families receiving support.
Adult Services
6.2.21 Adult Services show an underspend of £1.133m which compares to a forecast
pressure of £0.588m in January. This position is after a total of £5.920m of Covid
costs are transferred to Central Items to be offset against Covid related grants.
6.2.22 Adult Services continues to be heavily impacted by the pandemic and other
external factors. The lack of capacity in the homecare market initially reported in
the summer has continued as care providers struggle to recruit and retain staff in
a competitive jobs market. The lack of homecare capacity has contributed to
higher levels of short-term placements into residential care. Hospital discharges
are varying between 250 and 274 per month and remain higher than pre-Covid19 levels of approximately 160.
6.2.23 Costs associated with the operational management of the service are showing an
underspend of £1.377m, an improvement from the January position of £0.386m.
The change is due to revised assumptions around recruitment into vacancies and
a further allocation of appropriate Covid related staffing pressures against Covid
grants.

35

Page 63

6.2.24 There is an overspend within Commissioned Services – Mental Health (£1.489m)
mainly due to three high-cost clients who entered the service in March and April
2021. There are also pressures due to increased client numbers relating to
residential and nursing care within Mental Health.
6.2.25 An overspend in Commissioned Services – Mental Health is offset by budget
surpluses across Commissioned Services in Wellbeing and Assessment and
Learning Disabilities.
6.2.26 The overall numbers in residential and nursing care have stablised since the
increases seen in November and December 2021 but continue to be higher than
numbers seen in the summer of 2021. There has been a particular increase in
short term placements due to the need to maintain rapid discharges from hospital
and the lack of capacity in the homecare market.
6.2.27 Chart 3: Numbers of Clients in Residential and Nursing Care Analysed
between Short and Long Term

6.2.28 The reduced numbers of clients receiving a homecare package and overall
reduced number of hours delivered is shown in Chart 4 below:

36

Page 64

6.2.29 Chart 4: Homecare - Number of Clients and Planned Hours

6.3

Commissioning and Asset Management

6.3.1

Commissioning and Asset Management (C&AM) is showing an overspend
position of £1.291m (January pressure of £1.232m) as set out in Table 20.

6.3.2

C&AM has also been heavily impacted by the Covid-19 Pandemic, particularly in
relation to supporting schools and in relation to lost income with details shown in
Section 5.

6.3.3

Table 20: Commissioning and Asset Management (C&AM) Forecast
Variation

School Funding &
Statutory Staff
Costs
Commissioning
Service
Facilities & Fair
Access
Community &
Voluntary Sector
Liaison
Strategic Property
& Investment

Budget

Outturn
£m

Outturn
Variance
£m

Variance
Jan
£m

Change
since Jan
£m

£m
5.410

5.295

(0.115)

(0.102)

(0.013)

0.427

0.360

(0.067)

0.000

(0.067)

0.530

1.879

1.349

1.292

0.057

0.443

0.377

(0.066)

(0.042)

(0.024)

1.986

2.311

0.325

0.170

0.155

37

Page 65

£m

Outturn
Variance
£m

Variance
Jan
£m

Change
since Jan
£m

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

(0.759)

(0.759)

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.163

0.175

0.012

(0.002)

0.014

Procurement

0.149

0.002

(0.147)

(0.084)

(0.063)

Grand Total

8.349

9.640

1.291

1.232

0.059

High Needs
Special
Educational Needs
Property
Commissioning &
Asset
Management &
Support

Budget

Outturn

£m

6.3.4

The main ‘business as usual’ budget issues relate to Facilities and Fair Access
which is showing an overspend of £1.349m (January forecast pressure of
£1.292m). The overspend mainly relates to Home to School Transport, £1.262m.
There are also overspends within catering services of £0.174m, due to increasing
numbers of free school meals and the consequential impact on loss of paid
income. Inflationary pressures within Catering are also having an impact, with RPI
increasing by 7.8% across 2021/22 creating a pressure of attributable to
inflationary pressures of approximately £0.119m. These overspends are partially
offset by an underspend in Cleaning of £0.063m.

6.3.5

Within Facilities and Fair Access, the home to school transport position, an
overspend of £1.262m, relates to the sustained increase in children with complex
needs attending special schools. Demand pressures in High Needs is a known
issue nationally and is also impacting on the High Needs budget within the
Dedicated Schools Grant (see paragraphs 7.2 to 7.3 for more details). As a result
of the increase in demand for home to school transport for children with additional
needs, the number of children in vehicles has risen from 614 in April 2016 to 773
for the autumn term in 2021 as shown in Chart 5 below. To address some of this
pressure work is continuing on route rationalisation using the new ‘QRoute’
system.

38

Page 66

6.3.6

Chart 5: Increase in Numbers of Children Accessing Home to School
Transport

No. of Children on Home to School Transport Vehicles
900
800
700
600
500
400
300
200
100
0

6.3.7

6.4

April 2016

April 2017

April 2018

April 2019

April 2020

April 2021

Jan 2022

In addition to Facilities and Fair Access, within Strategic Property and Investment,
the repairs and maintenance budget has outturned with an overspend of £0.325m
due to the cost of essential repairs across the Authority’s buildings. This is
partially offset by recharges to capital budgets and other savings across this
service area.
Environment, Housing & Leisure (EHL)

6.4.1

Environment, Housing & Leisure is reporting an outturn saving of £0.563m. The
movement from the last Cabinet report (£0.544m) reflects reduced operational
and staffing costs across Sport & Leisure (£0.165m), General Fund Housing
(£0.140m), Waste & Recycling Contract Delivery and Management/Collection
(£0.107m) and Cultural Services (£0.105m). The underspends across these
areas mitigated the adverse variance change across Local Environment Services
& Bereavement, £0.313m, as reduced income was received with the ongoing
closure of one Cremator and repairs not expected to be completed until during
the following financial year.

6.4.2

Included within the outturn underspend is a £0.253m contribution to the Waste
Procurement reserve generated in part by holding the Waste Strategy posts
vacant as well as reduced expenditure due to postponed waste-related projects,
at agreement of Waste Management.

6.4.3 Table 21: Forecast Variation in Environment Housing & Leisure
Service Areas

Budget Outturn Variance Variance Change
Mar
Mar
Jan
since
Jan
£m
£m
£m
£m
£m

Cultural Services

6.883

6.776

(0.107)

(0.012)

(0.095)

Local Environmental Services

8.143

8.456

0.313

0.128

0.185

39

Page 67

Service Areas

Fleet Management

1.125

1.057

(0.068)

0.008

(0.076)

General Fund Housing

0.843

0.773

(0.070)

0.070

(0.140)

Head of Service and Resilience

0.250

0.204

(0.046)

0.063

(0.109)

(0.002)

(0.065)

(0.063)

(0.053)

(0.010)

Sport & Leisure

2.831

2.641

(0.190)

(0.025)

(0.165)

Street Lighting PFI
Consumer Protection & Building
Control
Planning

4.717

4.717

0.000

0.000

0.000

1.013

0.860

(0.153)

(0.011)

(0.142)

0.257

0.267

0.010

0.000

0.010

Transport and Highways

7.159

7.302

0.143

0.038

0.105

Waste Delivery & Management

11.441

11.109

(0.332)

(0.225)

(0.107)

GRAND TOTAL

44.660

44.097

(0.563)

(0.019)

(0.544)

Security & Community Safety

6.4.4

Budget Outturn Variance Variance Change
Mar
Mar
Jan
since
Jan
£m
£m
£m
£m
£m

The following paragraphs outline the pressures in each service area with details of
any variances or movement greater than £0.100m.
Sport & Leisure

6.4.5

Sport & Leisure is reporting an underspend of £0.190m which is an improvement
of £0.165m from the last reported position to Cabinet. The main causes for the
variance change are linked to Active North Tyneside funding meeting costs of the
service over the original plan and other service costs were not incurred as
expected due to the pendemic, as well as lower operational expenditure.
Waste Delivery & Management

6.4.6

Waste Management and Waste & Recycling Disposal also achieved net
underspends of £0.189m & £0.143m respectively. The outturn variance overall
improved by £0.107m mainly due to reduced staffing costs as a number of vacant
posts remained unfilled due to recruitment challenges during the financial year as
well as improved actual income being received across Special Collections &
Commercial Waste.
Local Environmental Services

6.4.7

The main change within Local Environmental Services relates to the income
shortfall in Bereavement, which has increased by £0.073m from the last reported
position to Cabinet with ongoing repairs at the closed cremator now expected to
finish until after the new financial year.

40

Page 68

General Fund Housing
6.4.8

The saving against General Fund Housing is partly due to staff savings, plus the
impact of costs being funded from new grants received. Additional grant funding
accounts for most of the swing since the last reported position.
Consumer Protection & Building Control

6.4.9

A £0.120m pressure in the Capita managed budgets for taxi-licencing income has
been mitigated by the Capita NTC Technical Partnership.

6.5

Regeneration and Economic Development

6.5.1

Regeneration and Economic Development (R&ED) is reporting an outturn
pressure of £0.357m.

6.5.2

Table 22: Forecast Variation for Regeneration and Economic Development
Service Areas

Business & Enterprise
Regeneration
Resources & Performance
Grand Total

Budget

Outturn
Mar

£m
0.757
0.449
0.372
1.578

£m
0.653
0.767
0.515
1.935

Variance Variance Change
Mar
Jan
since
Jan
£m
£m
£m
(0.104) (0.154) 0.050
0.318
0.229
0.089
0.143
0.075
0.068
0.357
0.150
0.207

6.5.3

The £0.207m adverse change in variance across the service since the last
Cabinet report includes a £0.050m reduction in the actual underspends across
Business & Enterprise, as well as an £0.089m increase in Operational and
Premises expenditure incurred across Regeneration, linked in part to higher than
expected expenditure across the Swans sites.

6.5.4

Additional adverse variances across Resources & Performance increased (by
£0.068m) due to staffing pressures following a transfer of a member of staff from
Capita to NTC. This pressure will be a one-off to 2021/22.

6.6

Corporate Strategy

6.6.1

Corporate Strategy is reporting an outturn underspend of £0.144m (table 23
below). There is an improved £0.172m variance change from the previous
reported position to Cabinet. The main factor in the improved position is the
£0.129m underspend linked to the Customer Service packages following
finalisation of the the Pension Cap & Collar adjustments from the Equans NTC
Stratgic Partnership. Improving income via staff recharges and reduced
expenditure across Policy, Performance & Research on surveys and licencing, as
well as additional Marketing income are also supporting factors contributing to the
improved variance.

41

Page 69

6.6.2

Table 23: Forecast Variation Corporate Strategy
Service Areas

Children's Participation &
Advocacy
Corporate Strategy
Management
Elected Mayor & Executive
Support
Marketing
Policy Performance and
Research
Grand Total

Budget

Outturn
Mar

Variance
Mar

Variance
Jan

£m

£m

£m

£m

Change
since
Jan
£m

0.264

0.244

(0.020)

(0.026)

0.006

0.395

0.408

0.013

0.148

(0.135)

0.020

0.032

0.012

0.010

0.002

0.297

0.213

(0.084)

(0.055)

(0.029)

0.154

0.089

(0.065)

(0.049)

(0.016)

1.130

0.986

(0.144)

0.028

(0.172)

6.7

Resources and Chief Executive Office

6.7.1

Overall, Resources and Chief Executive Office, has outturn with an overspend of
£1.172m; an adverse movement of £0.508m since January. The main reason for
the movement is a revised outturn for Revenues & Benefits; a movement of
£0.595m.

6.7.2

Table 24: Forecast Variation Resources and Chief Executive

£m

Outturn
Mar
£m

Variance
Mar
£m

Variance
Jan
£m

Change
since
Jan
£m

(0.077)
(1.944)
2.917

(0.188)
(1.842)
2.884

(0.111)

0.102
(0.033)

(0.107)
(0.008)
0.140

(0.004)
0.110
(0.173)

0.578

0.608

0.030

(0.035)

0.065

0.020

0.005
3.109
4.576

0.070
0.604
0.664

(0.085)

1.910
3.404

(0.015)
1.199
1.172

Budget
Service Areas
Chief Executive
Finance
ICT
Human Resources &
Organisation Development
Internal Audit
Revenues & Benefits
Grand Total
6.7.3

0.595
0.508

The Revenues and Benefits service is showing an overspend of £1.199m. This is
due mainly to full case reviews being undertaken that has resulted in
overpayments being identified on overpayments subsidy and a drop in
enforcement income versus cost of collection. The full overspend for Revenues &
Benefits is made up of:
Subsidy reporting overspend of £0.487m which is due to eligible
overpayments for which the Authority only receives 40% from the Department
of Work and Pensions;

42

Page 70

Overpayment income is now showing an under-recovery of £0.625m, due to a
reduction in caseload which is a consequence of less housing benefit claims
impacying on both number of overpayments (caseload also impacted by write
off of historical debt, see below);
The movement in Bad Debt Provision is showing the opposite impact of the
overpayment income., mainly caused by the write off of outstanding, historic
debt for vulnerable people, with an improvement against budget of £0.259m;
and
Enforcement income reflects actual cost of collection based on the latest cost
of collection statistics. This created an outturn reduction of income against
budget of £0.600m, an increase of £0.196m following the year end commercial
discussions held with Equans with regards to the reduction in costs of
recovery charged to low income debtors.
6.7.4

There is a net overpsend of £0.084m across the remaining service areas within
Resources. Changes at year end mainly caused by additional HR legal advice
costs and increased bank charges are offset partially by vacancy savings.

6.7.5

The Chief Executive’s office is showing a saving of £0.111m, due to savings in
staffing and other operational spend.

6.8

Law and Governance

6.8.1

Law and Governance is reporting a £0.893m overspend, an increased variance of
£0.352m since the last reported position to Cabinet. This outturn reflects high cost
pressures in Legal Services of £0.548m mainly relating to the high cost of
employing locums covering vacant posts and £0.413m overspend for delivery of
North Tyneside Coroner Services.

6.8.2

Table 25: Forecast Variation for Law and Governance
Service Areas

Customer, Governance &
Registration
Democratic and Electoral
Services
Information Governance
Legal Services
North Tyneside Coroner
Grand Total
6.8.3

Budget

Outturn
Mar

Variance
Mar

Variance
Jan

£m

£m

£m

£m

Change
since
Jan
£m

(0.068)

(0.040)

0.028

0.033

(0.005)

0.039

0.104

0.065

0.022

0.043

0.170
(0.090)
0.294
0.345

0.009
0.458
0.707
1.238

(0.161)
0.548
0.413
0.893

(0.112)
0.383
0.215
0.541

(0.049)
0.165
0.198
0.352

The variance change compared from the last reported position to Cabinet is due
increased employee costs across Legal Services as the use of locums has been
extended to the end of financial year. In addition, unforeseen operational
expenditure associated with the North Tyneside Coroner service (i.e. NHS Body
Storage, Post Mortems, Pathology costs.) were higher than previously expected,
with late invoices being received relating to previous years’ service delivery.
43

Page 71

6.8.4

The aforementioned overspends are partially offset by underspends within
Information Governance mainly linked to income overachievement on services
supplied to schools, as well as an overachievement on Land Charges income.

6.8.5

Included within the outturn is the utilisation of (£0.078m) of Covid-19 support grant
to be used to meet income shortfall forecasts made up of (£0.071m) and
(£0.007m) for Legal Services and Registration of Births, Deaths & Marriages
Wedding Venue Hire respectively.

6.9
6.9.1

Central Items
Central Items is forecasted to be in surplus by (£11.809m), an improvement of
(£3.604m) since the January report. The change is primarily due to two factors; a
(£5.893m) balance generated following the MRP Review offset by a £2.480m
charge resulting from the ICT Deed Of Variation (DOV) settlement and
compensation payment. The surplus figure within Other Central Items of £5.916m
includes the contingency budgets of £5.404m of which £3.116m of that budget
provision relates to the pressure being experienced in Children’s Services. The
other main areas impacting the position are summarised below:
Strain on the fund savings of (£1.325m), due to minimum in-year costs
anticipated this financial year;
Minimum revenue provision savings of (£0.081m);
Interest savings on borrowing of (£1.286m) (January, £1.200m), both of
these arising from re-profiling of the Investment Programme and use of cash
balances to minimise borrowing;
In-year savings on pay award and apprenticeship levy budget of (£0.285m);
In-year savings on Section 31 grants of (£0.283m);
Shortfall of income generated by the Trading Company of £0.226m; and,
Various small overspends totalling £0.044m.

6.9.2

Corporate and Democratic Core includes pension out of revenue savings of
(£0.169m), savings within HRA support services recharges of (£0.119m) partially
offset by miscellaneous overspends of £0.015m.

6.9.3 Table 26: Forecast Variation Central Budgets and Contingencies
Service Areas
Corporate &
Democratic Core
Other Central Items
Grand Total

Budget
£m

Outturn
21/22
£m

Variance
21/22
£m

Variance
Jan
£m

Change
since Jan
£m

1.496

1.223

(0.273)

0.000

(0.273)

(6.282)
(4.786)

(18.091)
(16.868)

(11.809)
(12.082)

(8.478)
(8.478)

(3.331)
(3.604)

44

Page 72

SECTION 7 - SCHOOLS FINANCE
Schools Balances in 2021/22
7.1

Schools have concluded their 2021/22 accounts closure in line with the Local
Scheme For Financing Schools and the Authority’s revised year-end timetable.
Collective school balances in North Tyneside maintained schools decreased
from a surplus of £3.721m at the start of the year to a closing surplus of
£3.398m. This position is significantly better, by £9.391m, than the forecast at
the start of the year when the outturn was expected to be an overall deficit of
£5.993m. The most recent monitoring performed with schools during the year
and completed in February 2022 showed an overall forecast deficit balance of
£3.565m. The final balance position for schools is reported in the Authority’s
statutory accounts and is before any commitments are taken into account, which
are in a normal year around £4.500m (the full value of commitments for 2021/22
is still to be quantified and won’t be known until late July 2022). The reported
position across 2021/22 is analysed below in Table 22 by phase:

7.2

In 2021/22 seven schools transferred to the Bishop Bewick Catholic Education
Trust (BBCET), becoming academy schools and as such are not reported in the
2021/22 outturn for maintained schools. These schools left the Authority with a
combined outturn balance of £1.081m. The outturn for these schools in 2020/21
was £0.875m, which is included in the 2020/21 outturn position in Table 27.

7.3

Table 27: Maintained School balance position against plan Surplus/ (Deficit) committed and uncommitted

Phase

Nursery
First
Primary
New
Acedemies
Middle
Secondary
Special / PRU
Total

7.4

Outturn
2020/21

Budget
Plan
2021/22

Monitoring
1
2021/22

Monitoring
2
2021/22

Provisional
Actual
Outturn
Movement
2021/22
from
2020/21
£m
£m

£m

£m

£m

£m

0.124
1.291
5.180

0.082
0.832
3.061

0.074
0.910
3.537

0.089
0.841
3.543

0.086
1.410
5.816

(0.038)
0.119
0.636

0.875

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

(0.875)

1.013
(5.577)
0.815
3.721

0.414
(9.808)
(0.574)
(5.993)

0.506
(8.915)
(0.014)
(3.902)

0.630
(8.558)
(0.110)
(3.565)

1.408
(5.943)
0.621
3.398

0.395
(0.366)
(0.194)
(0.323)

Cabinet will be aware that, under legislation, schools retain a high degree of
autonomy when setting budgets unless they are in a deficit position. Therefore,
whilst Elected Members and officers are able to advise schools on the adequacy
of balances, they cannot intervene. Schools have been reminded of the need to
45

Page 73

forecast as accurately as possible so that decisions are taken in the light of
accurate budget projections.
7.5

The outturn position for 2021/22 is significantly better than predicted during the
year, this is now the second year since 2015 of improved balances in North
Tyneside. In 2020/21 the main reason was due to reduced investment and
operational costs with schools being partially shut and attributable costs being
funded by Covid grants. These balances then flowed into 2021/22 and schools
are still catching up with investment, which will be included in the commitment
values identified in July. Chart 6 below sets out the long-term trend of balances
at March:

7.6

Chart 6: Long-Term Trend in School Balances within North Tyneside

School Balances since March 2000
£9,000,000
£8,000,000
£7,000,000
£6,000,000
£5,000,000
£4,000,000
£3,000,000
£2,000,000
£1,000,000

M

M

ar

ch
.0
ar 0
ch
M .01
ar
ch
M .02
ar
ch
M .03
ar
ch
M .04
ar
ch
M .05
ar
ch
M .06
ar
ch
M .07
ar
ch
M .08
ar
ch
M .09
ar
ch
M .10
ar
ch
M .11
ar
ch
M .12
ar
ch
M .13
ar
ch
M .14
ar
ch
M .15
ar
ch
M .16
ar
ch
M .17
ar
ch
M .18
ar
ch
M .19
ar
ch
M .20
ar
ch
M .21
ar
ch
.2
2

£0

School Deficits
7.7

Cabinet will recall from the previous finance updates that some individual schools
expected to face significant financial challenges. During the year, the Authority
and Schools Forum paid particular attention to those schools with approved
deficits.

7.8

There were six schools identified with planned deficits in 2021/22, including two
classed as structural deficits, which were supported with a total approved deficit
value of £13.799m. Schools Forum and senior officers worked closely and
collaboratively with these schools during the year, with all schools improving their
closing position against their budgeted deficit and contributing to an improved
outturn of £11.832m, a movement of £1.967m. The progress of individual
schools is outlined in Table 28 below:

46

Page 74

7.9

Table 28: Provisional Outturn – Schools in deficit

Deficit School Positions 2021/22

Greenfields
Ivy Road
Longbenton
Monkseaton High
Norham
Beaconhill
Total

7.10

Deficit
Approval

Provisional
Outturn

Improvement

£m

£m

£m

(0.084)
(0.198)
(2.618)
(5.689)
(3.969)
(1.241)
(13.799)

(0.065)
(0.139)
(2.095)
(5.328)
(3.684)
(0.521)
(11.832)

0.019
0.059
0.523
0.361
0.285
0.720
1.967

Cabinet should note that all six schools are expected to remain in deficit for
2022/23. In addition to these schools with planned deficits in 2022/23, an
additional three schools have informed the Authority that they expect to need to
apply for a licenced deficit agreement in 2022/23. Consequently, nine schools
are expected to request deficit approval in 2022/23. Initial deficit challenge
sessions will have taken place during June and July 2022. Full details of deficit
approval applications will be reported to Cabinet Members as part of financial
management reports during 2022/23.
2022/23 Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) Outturn

7.11

After allowing for school allocations, the 2021/22 DSG account of £157.061m
(after removing academy funding) is showing a net deficit balance of £12.851m.
This compares to a deficit of £7.932m in 2020/21. Cabinet will recall that in
2019/20 the DfE issued guidance that any shortfall in dedicated schools grant
should not be supported using funds from the General Fund.

7.12

Within the individual blocks of the DSG, the closing balance on the High Needs
block is a pressure of £13.512m, which increased by £4.792m in 2021/22 from
£8.720m in 2020/21. This is partially offset by an underspend of £0.533m on
de-delegated items which mainly relates to the headroom, growth funding and
falling roles funding. As the DSG is a ringfenced account, any balance is
carried forward into the next financial year.
High Needs Block

7.13

Cabinet will recall that the High Needs block outturn in 2020/21 was an adjusted
overspend of £8.720m. This pressure has continued in 2021/22 with the
provisional in-year outturn of £4.792m giving an overall deficit of £13.512m.
Cabinet should note that the High Needs block forms part of the DSG, which is
ringfenced and does not form part of the General Fund.

47

Page 75

7.14

7.15

This overall pressure in the High Needs block is in line with the national and
regional picture and results from additional places required in special schools,
out of borough placements and in relation to top up payments as outlined in
Table 29 below;
Table 29: Breakdown of High Needs Pressures at March 2022

Provision

Special schools
and PRU

15.571

2.019

ARPs/Top ups

4.120

1.604

Out of Borough

2.890

1.006

3.888

0.163

26.469

4.792

Commissioned
services
Subtotal
2020/21
brought forward
balance
Cumulative
Outturn
7.16

Budget
£m

Provisional
Outturn
Variance
£m

Comment
Pressure on places for children with
Profound, Multiple Learning Difficulties,
Social Emotional and Mental Health
problems and Autism Spectrum Disorder
Pressures in mainstream top-ups
Additional costs of the most complex
children currently not able to be supported
in the Borough

8.720
13.512

The Department for Education (DfE) guidelines state that Schools Forum can
approve a transfer of up to 0.5% of the School Block to support other blocks.
Transfers have been made to the High Needs Block from the Schools Block in
previous years. The Authority did discuss a transfer for 2021/22 with Schools
Forum which was not supported pending the completion of the High Needs
Recovery Plan.
High Needs Recovery Plan

7.17

North Tyneside is an outlier in terms of the number of Education Health and Care
Plans currently in use. The most recent figures suggest that the Authority are
around 1% above the national average in terms of whole population. This has a
significant impact on all the services that work with our children and young
people with additional needs.

7.18

An informal discussion with the Education Skills and Funding Agency (ESFA)
took place on 16 June 2021 where the Authority outlined its progress in relation
to a recovery plan for high needs expenditure. These proposals have been
shared with stakeholders including Schools Forum on 7 July. A draft DSG
Management Plan was submitted to the ESFA by 13 August and the plan sought
to address the High Needs deficit by 2025/26. The themes of the recovery plan
link clearly to our SEND Inclusion Strategy and our Ambition for Education:
48

Page 76

Improved Graduated Approach to support more young people to have
success in their local school;
Review of Commissioned Services with a focus on maintaining young
people in their local school;
Annual reviews are focussed, timely and include ‘value for money’;
The banding and mechanisms the Authority uses to fund schools are
brought in line with our graduation aspirations;
Use of capital funding to address issue around capacity;
More effective place planning and projection is used to ensure that there
are sufficient resources in place; and
Ensuring that the Authority are working with our partners and
stakeholders.
Early Years Block
7.19

The Early Years block has ended the year with a cumulative deficit of £0.093m.
This included a brought forward surplus of £0.198m from 2020/21.

7.20

An adjustment to funding takes place in July when the DfE reviews initial
funding estimates in relation to the numbers of pupils actually taking place
compared to the initial funding estimates based on the January pupil census
prior to the financial year.

49

Page 77

SECTION 8 - HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA)
Outturn in 2021/22
8.1

8.2

The HRA shows a surplus of £0.442m against the in-year 2021/22 Budget, plus
a £0.047m improvement in the budgeted brought forward balances, which
cumulatively brings the HRA to £0.489m better than the budgeted position for
2021/22. The overall position is shown in Table 30 below and shows a position
that has improved during the course of the year, but with some significant
movements across different areas of expenditure. The figures include any
remaining impact of all identified HRA and in-house construction service-related
Covid-19 costs.
Table 30: Outturn Variance Housing Revenue Account
FULL YEAR – 2021/22
Full Year
Budget
£m

INCOME
Rental Income
Other Rental Income - Shops & Offices etc.
Interest on Balances
PFI Credits

Outturn
Actual
Variance
£m
£m

Jan 2022
Variance
£m

(60.995)
(0.356)
(0.050)
(7.693)
(69.094)

(60.866)
(0.434)
(0.074)
(7.693)
(69.067)

0.129
(0.078)
(0.024)
0.000
0.027

(0.096)
(0.047)
0.000
0.000
(0.143)

12.968
10.875
9.737
12.350
10.551
13.276

12.954
10.020
10.037
13.020
11.445
12.357

(0.014)
(0.855)
0.300
0.670
0.894
(0.919)

0.000
(0.046)
0.300
(0.005)
0.000
0.000

1.280

0.735

(0.545)

(0.487)

TOTAL EXPENDITURE

0.000
71.037

0.000
70.568

0.000
(0.469)

0.000
(0.238)

NET POSITION 2021/22

1.943

1.501

(0.442)

(0.381)

(4.955)
(3.012)

(5.002)
(3.501)

(0.047)
(0.489)

(0.047)
(0.428)

TOTAL INCOME
EXPENDITURE
Capital Charges – Net Effect
HRA Management Costs
PFI Contract Costs
Repairs
Revenue Support to Capital Programme
Contribution to Major Repairs Reserve –
Depreciation
Contingencies, Bad debt Provision &
Transitional Protection Payments
Pension Fund Deficit Funding

BALANCES BROUGHT FORWARD
BALANCES TO CARRY FORWARD

Outturn Variance Analysis
8.3

Rental income saw a budget under-recovery of £0.051m mainly due to a
significant drop-off in general needs dwellings income (£0.277m below budget,
this was partly attributable to the increased number of Right to Buys (RTB) in-year
which saw 167 sales the highest annual total since self-financing was introduced
50

Page 78

in 2012. However, this was offset by improvements elsewhere with Service charge
income continuing to perform strongly and coming in £0.069m better than budget,
as did temporary and dispersed income (£0.047m better than budget), Garage
rents (£0.033m better than budget), and income from commercial properties and
properties rented to HECS for various client groups came in well above budget
(£0.078m).
8.4

There are three elements of expenditure in Table 25 that together relate to the
HRA’s servicing of its’ share of the Council’s debt portfolio and the capital
financing strategy for the HRA Capital Investment Plan, namely:
Capital Charges – consists of external interest charges on debt, Debt
Management Expenses, and the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)
equivalent set aside to repay debt. Overall, the net position for Capital
charges shows as £0.014m under budget for 2021/22;
Revenue contribution to the funding of Capital outlay – there was an
increased call of £0.894m on this element of direct revenue financing of
capital spend for 2021/22 which is a direct result of the actual Depreciation
charge discussed below, and purely compensates for the reduction against
budget of that charge; and,
Thirdly there is the annual charge for Depreciation, which has to be
transferred to the Major Repairs Reserve (MRR), and can only be used to
finance capital spend or repay debt, this is based on the calculation of a
“true” charge at year-end, which was £0.919m below the budget provided.
However, the budgeted contribution forms a critical part of the financing of
the HRA Investment Plan, and hence the additional revenue contribution to
capital mentioned above was made to compensate for the shortfall in
Capital Financing, with no detriment overall to either the bottom line for the
HRA, or the financing of the Capital Investment Plan.
Taking these three elements together it can be seen that the overall impact on the
bottom line for the HRA is virtually cost neutral against the budgets provided and
is just a reflection of the reconciliation of the final capital financing requirements.

8.5

The outturn position for management costs has improved significantly over the
course of the year, and particularly over the last quarter to result in a £0.855m
under-spend against budget. A range of factors resulted in a significant movement
in outturn figures for management costs, with the main changes being:
Pension Strain on the Fund - reduced pension costs this year for housing
management staff departures (£0.058m);
Vacancy & Pay Award Contingency savings (£0.370m);
General Office Expenses, Postage and Telephone Costs – (£0.080m);
Increased water rates commission (£0.042m);
Windfall on Water rates reconciliation & Miscellaneous Income (£0.068m);
Budget savings due to delays in process for Unified Systems Review
(£0.148m);
Reduced Housing Management Training Costs (£0.057m);
Reduced costs and grant income re lost rental income for Temporary &
Dispersed Units (£0.153m);
Reduced court costs re rent arrears due to pandemic (£0.080m); and
Other Miscellaneous Cost Reductions across range of areas (£0.090m).
51

Page 79

These reductions have been offset in some areas by overspends in the following
areas:
Increased costs of ICT support mainly relating to Rentsense (£0.046m);
Sheltered Housing Management recgharges from HECS (£0.050m);
Increases Energy Costs re Communal Blocks (£0.027m);
Communal Utility Costs re Sheltered Schemes (£0.044m); and
Range of other miscellaneous variances across the service (£0.117m).
8.6

As reported in previous years a number of delegated decisions have been made
to utilise PFI Reserve funds to support other areas of the HRA, namely, the
purchase of the new fleet for Property Services, and payment of a settlement
agreement with PFI Contractors S4NT and Galliford Try totalling in the region of
£4.000m overall. Plans were made to restore the balance on the reserve over the
following seven years. However, the opportunity was taken two years ago to make
additional contributions into the reserve to bring that timeline down and reduce the
risk to the reserve. An additional contribution to the reserve of £0.300m has now
been identified this year, in line with the same principle applied last year, and this
should reduce the time taken to bring the reserve back into balance by at least a
further year. This was the reason for the £0.300m overspend against this element
of the budget.

8.7

For the second year in a row the HRA Repairs Budget has ended the year with a
significant overspend against budget (£0.670m). The adverse variance in 2020/21
of £1.474m related almost entirely to the impact of Covid-19 on the service. This
year, as well as continuing to deal with some residual issues linked to the
pandemic, the borough, in common with most of the country, was hit by multiple
storms, causing disruption and unprecedented damage to roofing, walls and
fences. A major programme of works was put together to tackle the damage,
utilising both revenue and where possible capital resources within the Investment
Plan. The vast majority of those works was completed in-year with some residual
works to be picked up as part of the 2022-23 programme of works. In addition to
the adverse weather, the aftermath of the pandemic and the commencement of
the conflict in Ukraine have seen huge inflationary pressures, material shortages
and increased fuel costs, all of which have increased pressures on budgets and
led to reduced returns for the resources available. This will continue to be a
challenge for some time to come, as we head towards a period of stagflation and
economic uncertainty.

8.8

Rent Arrears again flattened out in the last few months of the year and further
reduced the call on the in-year Bad Debt Provision (£0.441m); the call on
contingency did increase in the last few months due mainly to outstanding
contributions to the Tyne & Wear Shared Homes Scheme (£0.097m), and
transitional protection came in slightly under budget (£0.012m). So overall the
significant swings across different service areas during the last quarter of the year
saw an overall improvement in the bottom line of £0.442m in-year and £0.489m
including brought forward balances.

52

Page 80

Rent Arrears and Bad Debt Provision
8.9

Arrears are made up of two elements:
- Current Tenant Arrears and,
- Former Tenant Arrears

8.10

Table 31: Rent Arrears
Date

31/03/2019
31/03/2020
31/03/2021
31/03/2022

Current
Arrears

Former
Arrears

Total
Arrears

£
2,649,474
3,162,030
3,498,391
3,694,219

£
1,726,269
2,137,477
2,311,655
2,461,646

£
4,375,743
5,299,507
5,810,046
6,155,865

Change
Year on
Year
£
627,000
923,764
510,539
345,819

8.11

Arrears have risen significantly over the last three years as illustrated in the table
above. The initial fear that the pandemic would lead to an even higher rate of
increase was unfounded, and since then the rate of increase has continued to
slow down, albeit we are now seeing arrears exceed £6.000m which is double the
level held in 2015-16.

8.12

Chart 7 below shows the value of current rent arrears in 2021/22 compared to the
same period in 2020/21. The Housing team is continually working proactively with
tenants to minimise arrears.

8.13

Chart 7: Current Arrears - Feb-Mar 2021/22 compared to 2020/21
£4,500,000
£4,000,000
£3,500,000
£3,000,000
£2,500,000
£2,000,000
£1,500,000
£1,000,000
£500,000
£0

43

44

45
20/21

46

47

48
Week

21/22

53

Page 81

49

50

51

52

8.14

The main mechanism for helping to manage arrears is the Bad Debt Provision
(BDP), which at the start of 2021/22 stood at £4.743m on the HRA Balance Sheet
with the budget for the 2021/22 contribution at £1.029m. Because of the slowdown
in the rate of increase in the level of arrears, the outturn in-year BDP requirement
reduced significantly to £0.588m, this was £0.441m under budget for 2021/22 and
included writing-off £0.246m of bad debt during the year, all of which resulted in a
carry forward Bad Debt Provision at year-end of £5.085m.

8.15

Universal Credit was fully implemented across North Tyneside on 2 May 2018.
The Authority continues to work with residents to provide ICT support to help them
make applications and to provide personal budget support to help residents
manage their household finances. At 31 March 2022, there were 3,712 tenants of
North Tyneside Homes on Universal Credit with arrears totalling £3.668m. This is
up by 406 tenants and £0.204m of arrears from the beginning of the year when
there were 3,306 tenants on UC with arrears of £3.464m.
Right to Buy (RTB) Trends

8.16

The impact of RTB is critical to long-term planning for the HRA. Prior to the
introduction of self-financing in 2012, average RTB sales had dropped to around
25 per annum, mainly due to the capped discount (£0.022m) which had remained
static as property values had increased, making RTB less attractive financially to
tenants. Shortly after self-financing began, Central Government announced a
change to RTB significantly increasing the maximum discount, initially to £0.075m
and then subsequently annual inflation was added to the maximum. Chart 8
below shows the trend in RTB sales since that time which shows that sales during
the pandemic in 2021-22 have not only climbed back to pre-pandemic trend
levels, but 2021-22 saw the highest number of RTB sales since the changes
introduced back in 2012 with 167 RTB sales.

8.17

Chart 8: Trend in Right to Buy Sales

RTB Sales

New Stock Completions

180
160
140
120
100
80
60
40
20
0

12/13

13/14

14/15

15/16

54

16/17

Page 82

17/18

18/19

19/20

20/21

21/22

SECTION 9 - INVESTMENT PLAN
9.1 The Investment Plan represents the Authority’s capital investment programme in
projects across all service areas, including General Fund and HRA activities.
9.2 All capital investment follows a structured gateway process, and is challenged by
Members and senior officers, from the initial ideas stage, through the delivery stage
and finally to post implementation. Delivery of the Investment Plan year by year,
through both physical on-site development and capital spend, is key to the
successful attainment of the Authority’s objectives.
2021/22 Capital Expenditure
9.3 The initial 2021/22 Investment Plan Budget was £68.611m (£42.249m General Fund
and £26.632m Housing). Further variations to the Plan and reprogramming were
agreed by Cabinet during the year as part of the Financial Monitoring process to give
an approved Plan at the year-end of £78.469 (£49.423m General Fund and
£29.046m Housing). Table 32 below summarises these changes:
Table 32: 2020/21 Investment Plan – Summary of changes to Budget
£m
Investment Plan approved by full Council – 18 February 2021
Reprogramming from 2020/21
Reprogramming to 2022/23
Other variations (net)

68.611
18.398
(28.907)
20.367

Revised Investment Plan

78.469

9.4 Actual capital expenditure in 2021/22 totalled £63.045 (£53.830m in 2020/21),
comprising General Fund expenditure of £36.287m and £26.758m on Housing
Schemes.
9.5 Table 33 below compares the actual capital expenditure for 2021/22 with the revised
Budget for the year, as well as the actual spend for 2020/21 for comparison:

55

Page 83

Table 33: Comparison of Capital Expenditure to Revised Budget for 2021/22
Actual
Capital
Expenditure
2020/21
£m

Revised
Capital Budget
2021/22

Actual Capital
Expenditure
2021/22

Variation from
Budget over /
(under)

£m

£m

£m

33.468 General Fund

49.423

36.287

(13.136)

20.362 Housing

29.046

26.758

(2.288)

53.830 Total

78.469

63.045

(15.424)

9.6 Included within the appendices is further information on the Investment Plan and
activities in the year. Appendix B shows the final expenditure, and how that
expenditure was financed, with Appendix C showing a comparison of expenditure
against budget for each individual project. The reasons for these variations have
been analysed as reprogramming and other variations.
9.7 Across all capital projects, further reprogramming of £15.424m has been identified
and it is requested that Cabinet approve the carry forward of this amount into the
2022/23 Investment Plan. A detailed breakdown of this amount is included in
Appendix C.
9.8 The major achievements delivered as part of the capital investment programme in
2021/22 include:
(a) Completion of projects including.
Public Sector decarbonisation scheme.
various works to housing stock (kitchen and bathroom replacements,
heating upgrades, roof replacements, replacement windows and doors).
various projects as part of the Asset Planned Maintenance programme,
including Rising Sun and Riverdale Children’s home refurbishments works
Wallsend Customer First Centre - internal fit out and improvements.
Investment in North Tyneside Trading Company
Northern Promenade.
Surface water management
ongoing programme of transport works including road resurfacing,
maintenance of bridges and includes road resurfacing; maintenance of
bridges and infrastructure; and road safety, network management and
parking schemes.
fleet replacements including grounds maintenance vehicles, sweepers,
vans, and electric vehicles; and,
ICT refresh.
(b) In addition, there are a number of projects underway including.
Ambition for North Tyneside
Saville Street / Bedford Street Public Realm
Howard Street Cultural Quarter
56

Page 84

Transforming Cities
Weetslade & Westmoor Roundabouts Highways
building new HRA affordable homes at various locations; and,
North Tyneside Trading Company building homes for sale.
Further details can be found in the Investment Programme Board end of year report
which is included as a background paper to this report.
Capital Financing
9.9 Local authorities can finance capital expenditure from a variety of sources: grants;
external contributions; capital receipts; borrowing; and contributions from revenue.
This section of the report considers how the Investment Plan has been financed.
9.10 Under the Prudential System for capital financing, the Authority can decide to borrow
to fund capital expenditure, known as prudential (or unsupported) borrowing. There
are associated revenue costs (interest and Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP))
which must be met from the Authority’s own resources, i.e. funded by Council
Taxpayers. MRP is a charge included in the Authority’s accounts that effectively
spreads the cost of capital expenditure over a period that generally equates to the
period in which the asset is used. When deciding whether to take out additional
borrowing, the Authority must consider whether the Investment Plan is affordable,
sustainable, and prudent.
9.11 When determining how to finance the Authority-funded element of the Investment
Plan, the Authority’s MRP Policy is used to maximise the effectiveness of borrowing
in relation to individual schemes in the Investment Plan.
9.12 The total capital expenditure of £63.045m has been financed as shown in table 34
below:
Table 34: 2021/22 Capital Financing
2021/22
Capital Financing
£m
Council Contribution
Prudential (Unsupported) Borrowing – General Fund
Capital Receipts -General Fund
Capital Receipts – HRA
Direct Revenue Funding - General Fund
Direct Revenue Funding – HRA
Major Repairs Allowance
Contribution from Reserves
External funding
Specific Government Grants
ERDF
Capital Grants and Contributions

6.792
0.702
1.110
0.599
11.679
13.231
0.227
34.340
27.460
0.507
0.738
28.705
63.045

57

Page 85

9.13 Total Prudential borrowing for the General Fund was £6.792. During the year
£6.410m of General Fund capital receipts were generated, which adding the balance
caried forward (£2.588m) gave an available balance of £9.011m. £0.702m have
been used to finance expenditure in 2021/22, £5.125m have been used to repay
loans, £0.100m used to repay debt, leaving a balance of £3.073m to be carried
forward for future years.
9.14 For Housing, capital receipts of £8.766m were received during 2021/22, of which
£1.874m were pooled and paid across to central government leaving a balance of
£6.892m available for financing. This balance plus the brought forward receipts of
£8.262m gave an available balance of £15.154m. Of this £1.110m was used to
finance 2021/22 capital spend and £4.383m was set aside to repay debt leaving a
balance of £9.661m to be carried forward into 2022/23.
9.15 Table 35 below shows the movement in capital receipts during 2021/22 including
receipts received during 2021/22 (identified in paragraphs 9.14 and 9.15 above),
receipts brought forward at 1 April 2021, receipts used to finance the 2021/22
Investment Plan, receipts set aside to repay debt and loans, and receipts carried
forward at 31 March 2022.
Table 35: Movement in Capital Receipts during 2021/22
Receipts
brought
forward 1
April 2021
£m
General
Fund

2.588

Housing

8.262

Total

10.085

Net
Unusable
Receipts
received
£m

0.003

(0.03)

Receipts
used for
financing
£m

Receipts
set aside
for
repayment
of debt
£m

Receipts
set aside
for
repayment
of loans
£m

Receipts
carried
forward 31
March
2022
£m

(6.410)

(0.704)

0.100

(5.125)

3.073

(7.325)

(1.110)

4.383

0

10.094

(13.735)

1.814

4.483

(5.125)

13.167

Net
Useable
Receipts
received
£m

9.16 The Authority also used the below funding from specific Government grants. These
grants included:
£5.618m Education and Schools Capital funding;
£8.101m Transport and Infrastructure funding; and,
£2.845m Relating to public sector decarbonisation
£1.402m Better Care Fund (including Disabled Facilities Grant)
£1.590m Green Homes
9.17 Capital Grants and Contributions used in the year included:
£2.867m Section 106 contributions;
£2.500m Getting Building Fund
£1.287m Heritage Action Zone

58

Page 86

9.18 As required, under self-financing for Housing, there is a Major Repairs Allowance
calculated and used to finance ongoing works to Council dwellings. This contribution
is financed from within the HRA (i.e. it is self-financed) and so appears as part of the
Authority’s contribution shown in Table 34 above.
9.19 An analysis of the overall capital financing is also shown in Appendix B.
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) adjustments to Capital
Expenditure in 2021/22
9.20 Under IFRS any expenditure incurred relating to PFI schemes and finance leases is
classed as capital expenditure and the resulting assets are added to the Authority’s
balance sheet.
9.21 During 2021/22 spend of £0.284m was incurred under the street lighting PFI
contract.
Variations to the 2022-2027 Investment Plan
9.22 March 2021/22 variations of £9.654m and reprogramming of £15.414m to the
Investment Plan have been identified and are included in table 36. Table 36 also
includes variations of £34.622m relating to additional / new gateways and grant
determinations which require Cabinet approval for 2022/23.
9.22.1

Table 36: 2022 - 2027 Investment Plan changes identified
2022/23
£m

2023/24
£m

2024/25
£m

2025/26
£m

2026/27
£m

Total
£m

Approved Investment Plan –
Council 17 February 2022

64.632

51.594

49.829

47.561

51.358

264.974

Reprogramming/Variations
2021/22 March Cabinet
2021/22 Outturn

9.654
15.419

0.000
-0.005

0.000
0.000

0.000
0.000

0.000
0.000

9.654
15.414

24.210

8.837

1.071

0.252

0.252

34.622

24.210
113.915

8.838
60.426

1.071
50.900

0.252
47.813

0.252
51.610

34.622
324.664

Gateway/Grant
Determination Variations for
2022-2027
Variations
Total Variations
Revised Investment Plan

59

Page 87

Review of the Authority’s Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Methodology
9.23 Local Authorities are required by statute to make a charge to their revenue account
to provide for the repayment of debt resulting from capital expenditure, known as
Minimum Revenue Provision (“MRP”).
9.24 The statutory duty to provide Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) was introduced by
regulation 27 and 28 of the Local Authority (Capital Financing and Accounting)
(England) Regulation 2003 (SI 2003 3146).
In 2008, amendment regulation 4(1) of the SI 2008 4141 revised the former
regulation 28. In the new regulation 28, the detailed rules are replaced with a simple
duty for an authority each year to make an amount of MRP which it considers to be
“prudent”. The regulation does not itself define “prudent provision”.
“A local authority shall determine for the current financial year an amount of
minimum revenue provision which it considers to be prudent”
9.25

The Statutory Guidance refers to the meaning of prudent provision as:
“The broad aim of prudent provision is to require local authorities to put aside
revenue over time to cover their CFR. In doing so local authorities should
align the period over which they charge MRP to one that is commensurate
with the period over which their capital expenditure provides benefits”.
The Authority currently uses a straight-lined approach to provision for MRP, and is
calculated by dividing the value of the asset by the useful life of the asset.

9.26 As part of the 2021-2025 Medium-Term Financial Plan the Authority stated an
intention to undertake an MRP review encompassing the methodology for charge as
well as the underlying calculations. During the year the Authority engaged with our
Treasury advisors Link to carry out a review of the Authority’s MRP methodology.
This work was completed in March 2022 and the change in methodology has
resulted in a reduced MRP charge delivering a £5.893m surplus in 2021/22. This will
be used as an earmarked reserve to strengthen the Authority’s financial resilience in
a time of continued cost pressures as well as rising inflation and interest rates.
9.27 A report was taken to IPB during 2021/22 which outlined the challenges the Authority
may face in 2022/23 as a result of rising costs and inflation due to continued supply
chain issues following the conflict in Ukraine and Russia, and as the world continues
to recover from COVID. The update in the methodology will provide a reduction in the
MRP charge which can be put to an earmarked reserve that would be used to
mitigate the rising costs and inflation within the Investment plan and provide the
Authority additional resilience to deliver on the Authority’s Ambition.
9.28 A prudent option needs to ensure that the MRP repayment period is reasonably
proportionate with the period over which the capital expenditure provides benefits.
The proposed methodology is based on a simplified approach that uses an average
asset life for all unsupported borrowing. This would reduce the unsupported CFR
repayment term to 25 years, so enabling the Authority to write down the debt liability
over 40 years earlier than under the current methodology.
60

Page 88

9.29 The reduction in the debt liability period is considered a prudent approach as it is
based on the Authority’s weighted average life of assets to which the expenditure
relates and repays the debt liability much earlier. It provides the additional flexibility,
material savings and is the optimum strategy available to the Authority.
9.30 CIPFA supports the use of the annuity debt repayment charge method for
calculating MRP. Their publication “Practitioners Guide to Capital Finance in Local
Government 2019 edition” states;
•
•
•

The annuity method provides a fairer charge than equal instalments as it takes
account of the time value of money, whereby paying £100 in 10 years’ time is
less of a burden than paying £100 now.
The schedule of charges produced by the annuity method thus results in a
consistent charge over an asset’s life, considering the real value of the
amounts when they fall due.
The annuity method would then be a prudent basis

9.31 In terms of MRP the annuity method is considered a prudent approach as it reflects
the time value of money (i.e., the impact of inflation) as well as providing a charge
that is better matched to how the benefits of the asset financed by borrowing are
consumed over its useful life. That is, a method that reflects the fact that asset
deterioration is slower in the early years of an asset and accelerates towards the
latter years.

61

Page 89

SECTION 10 – ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REVIEW AND PRUDENTIAL
INDICATORS
10.1

Regulatory Environment

10.1.1 The Authority is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act
2003 to produce an annual treasury management review of activities and the actual
prudential and treasury indicators for 2020/21. This section of the report meets the
requirements of both the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management, (the
Code), and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities, (the
Prudential Code).
10.1.2 During 2021/22 the minimum reporting requirements were that the full Council or
Cabinet should receive the following reports:
an annual treasury strategy in advance of the year (Council 17 February 2021);
a mid-year (minimum) treasury update report (Cabinet 29 November 2021);
and
an annual review following the end of the year describing the activity compared
to the strategy (this report).
10.1.3 The regulatory environment places responsibility on members for the review and
scrutiny of treasury management policy and activities. This report is, therefore,
important in that respect, as it provides details of the outturn position for treasury
activities and highlights compliance with the Authority’s policies previously
approved by members.
10.1.4 The Authority confirms that it has complied with the requirement under the Code to
give prior scrutiny to all of the above treasury management reports. Reports are
reviewed by Lead Member Briefing before they are reported to Cabinet.
Member training on treasury management issues was delivered by Link, the
Authority’s advisors on the 10 November 2021 and 1 December 2021.
10.2

Capital Expenditure and Financing

10.2.1 The Authority undertakes capital expenditure on long-term assets. These activities
may either be:
Financed immediately through the application of capital or revenue resources
(capital receipts, capital grants, revenue contributions etc.), which has no
resultant impact on the Authority’s borrowing need; or
If insufficient financing is available, or a decision is taken not to apply
resources, the capital expenditure will give rise to a borrowing need.
10.2.2 The actual capital expenditure forms one of the required prudential indicators. Table
37 below shows the actual capital expenditure and how this was financed. Further
details of this are shown in table 34 in section 9 of this report.

62

Page 90

Table 37: Actual Capital Expenditure and its Financing

General Fund
HRA
Total Capital Expenditure

2020/21
Actual
£m
33.468
20.362
53.830

2021/22
Estimate
£m
49.423
29.046
78.469

2021/22
Actual
£m
36.287
26.758
63.045

Financed in-year (grants,
contributions, and capital
receipts)

40.684

66.345

56.078

Unfinanced Capital
Expenditure (Prudential
borrowing)

13.146

12.124

6.967

10.3

The Authority’s Overall Borrowing Need

10.3.1 The Authority’s underlying need to borrow to finance capital expenditure is termed
the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). This figure is a gauge of the Council’s
indebtedness. The CFR results from the capital activity of the Council and
resources used to pay for the capital spend. It represents the 2021/22 unfinanced
capital expenditure (see above table), and prior years’ net or unfinanced capital
expenditure which has not yet been paid for by revenue or other resources.
10.3.2 Gross borrowing and the CFR - in order to ensure that borrowing levels are
prudent over the medium term and only for a capital purpose, the Authority should
ensure that its gross external borrowing does not, except in the short-term, exceed
the total of the capital financing requirement in the preceding year (2019/20) plus
the estimates of any additional capital financing requirement for the current
(2020/21) and next two financial years. This essentially means that the Authority is
not borrowing to support revenue expenditure. Table 38 below highlights the
Authority’s gross borrowing position against the CFR. The Authority has complied
with this prudential indicator.
Table 38: Gross Borrowing against the CFR
2020/21
Actual
£m

2021/22
Estimate
£m

2021/22
Actual
£m

CFR General Fund
CFR HRA
Total CFR

310.323
313.049
623.372

305.029
307.662
612.691

301.139
303.279
604.418

Gross borrowing position
Under/over funding

528.206
95.166

504.945
105.937

504.728
99.690

63

Page 91

10.3.3 The authorised limit - the authorised limit is the “affordable borrowing limit”
required by s3 of the Local Government Act 2003. Once this has been set, the
Authority does not have the power to borrow above this level. The table below
demonstrates that during 2020/21 the Authority has maintained gross borrowing
within its authorised limit.
10.3.4 The operational boundary – the operational boundary is the expected borrowing
position of the Authority during the year. Periods where the actual position is either
below or over the boundary are acceptable subject to the authorised limit not being
breached.
10.3.5 Actual financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream - this indicator
identifies the trend in the cost of capital, (borrowing and other long-term obligation
costs net of investment income), against the net revenue stream.
Table 39: Actual financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream

Authorised limit
Maximum gross borrowing position during the year
Operational boundary
Average gross borrowing position
Financing costs as a proportion of General Fund net
revenue stream
Financing costs as a proportion of HRA net revenue
stream
10.4

2021/22
£m
1,175.000
524.728
635.000
510.267
17.14%
28.02%

Treasury Position as at 31 March 2021

10.4.1 The Authority’s treasury position (excluding borrowing by PFI and finance leases) at
31 March 2020 and 31 March 2021 is shown in table 40 below:

64

Page 92

Table 40: Treasury Position as at 31 March
Borrowing
Position

31 March
2022
Principal
£m

Rate/Return
%

31 March
2021
Principal
£m

Rate/Return
%

249.250

3.62

249.250

3.62

(HRA-Self
Financing)

128.193

3.49

128.193

3.49

-Market
**(LOBO’s)

20.000

4.35

20.000

4.35

-Temporary
Total
External Debt

0.000
397.443

0.00
3.61

20.000
417.443

0.85
3.48

CFR
Over (Under)
borrowing

497.133
(99.690)

Fixed Rate
Funding:
-*PWLB
long - term

*Public Works Loan Board

512.609
(95.166)

**Lender Option Borrower Option

Table 41: The maturity structure of the external debt portfolio was as follows:
31 March 2022
Actual
£m
5.000
14.000
23.575
44.900
82.200
53.575
113.193
61.000
0.000

Within 12 months
12 months and within 24 months
24 months and within 5 years
5 years and within 10 years
10 years and within 20 years
20 years and within 30 years
30 years and within 40 years
40 years and within 50 years
Greater than 50 years

*note, LOBOs are recorded above on their next call date.

65

Page 93

31 March 2021
Actual
£m
20.000
5.000
34.000
43.475
77.200
58.575
115.000
65.193
0.000

10.5

Investment Portfolio

Table 42: Treasury and Non-Treasury Investments
Actual
31 March
2022
£m

Actual
31 March
2021
£m

22.000
25.000
10.000
3.794

14.000
27.500
5.000
2.089

Actual
31 March
2022
£m

Actual
31 March
2021
£m

Joint venture

0.000

0

Companies
TOTAL NON-TREASURY
INVESTMENTS

0.000

4.665

0.000

4.665

Treasury investments

DMADF (H M Treasury)
Other Local Authorities
Deposit Accounts
Other Bank Balances

Non-Treasury investments

10.5.1 Investment returns remained close to zero for much of 2021/22. Most local
authority lending managed to avoid negative rates and managed surplus funds by
undertaking inter local authority lending. The expectation for interest rates within
the treasury management strategy for 2021/22 was that Bank Rate would remain at
0.1% until it was clear to the Bank of England that the emergency level of rates
introduced at the start of the Covid-19 pandemic were no longer necessitated.
10.5.2 The Bank of England and the Government also maintained various monetary and
fiscal measures, supplying the banking system and the economy with massive
amounts of cheap credit so that banks could help cash-starved businesses to
survive the various lockdowns/negative impact on their cashflow. The Government
also supplied large amounts of finance to local authorities to pass on to businesses.
This meant that for most of the year there was much more liquidity in financial
markets than there was demand to borrow, with the consequent effect that
investment earnings rates remained low until towards the turn of the year when
inflation concerns indicated central banks, not just the Bank of England, would need
to lift interest rates to combat the second-round effects of growing levels of inflation
(CPI was 6.2% in February).

66

Page 94

Chart 9: Investment strategy and control of interest rate risk

10.6

Borrowing strategy and control of interest rate risk

10.6.1 During 2020/21, the Authority maintained an under-borrowed position, the
continued impact of COVID 19 on capital and investment delivery drove reduced
capital expenditure. This meant that the capital borrowing need, (the Capital
Financing Requirement), was not fully funded with loan debt, as cash supporting
the Authority’s reserves, balances and cash flow was used as an interim measure.
This strategy was prudent as investment returns were low and minimising
counterparty risk on placing investments also needed to be considered.
10.6.2 A cost of carry remained during the year on any new long-term borrowing that was
not immediately used to finance capital expenditure, as it would have caused a
temporary increase in cash balances; this would have incurred a revenue cost, the
difference between (higher) borrowing costs and (lower) investment returns.
10.6.3 The policy of avoiding new borrowing by running down spare cash balances, has
served well over the last few years. However, this was kept under review to avoid
incurring higher borrowing costs in the future when the Authority may not be able to
avoid new borrowing to finance capital expenditure and/or the refinancing of
maturing debt.
10.6.4 Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution was
adopted with the treasury operations. The Head of Resources monitored interest
rates in financial markets and adopted a pragmatic strategy based upon the
following principles to manage interest rate risks:
67

Page 95

if it had been felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp fall in long and
short-term rates, (e.g. due to a marked increase of risks around relapse into
recession or of risks of deflation), then long-term borrowings would have
been postponed, and potential rescheduling from fixed rate funding into
short-term borrowing would have been considered; and,
if it had been felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper rise in
long and short-term rates than initially expected, perhaps arising from an
acceleration in the start date and in the rate of increase in central rates in the
USA and UK, an increase in world economic activity or a sudden increase in
inflation risks, then the portfolio position would have been re-appraised.
Most likely, fixed rate funding would have been drawn whilst interest rates
were lower than they were projected to be in the next few years.
10.6.5 Interest rate forecasts expected only gradual rises in medium and longer-term
fixed borrowing rates during 2021/22 and the two subsequent financial years until
the turn of the year, when inflation concerns increased significantly. Internal,
variable, or short-term rates, were expected to be the cheaper form of borrowing
until well in to the second half of 2021/22.
Chart 10: Interest Rate View

10.6.6 Gilt yields fell sharply from the spring of 2021 through to September and then
spiked back up before falling again through December. However, by January
sentiment had well and truly changed, as markets became focussed on the
embedded nature of inflation, spurred on by a broader opening of economies post
the pandemic, and rising commodity and food prices resulting from the Russian
invasion of Ukraine.
At the close of the day on 31 March 2022, all gilt yields from 1 to 5 years were
between 1.11% – 1.45% while the 10-year and 25-year yields were at 1.63% and
1.84%.
10.6.7 HM Treasury imposed two changes of margins over gilt yields for PWLB rates in
2019/20 without any warning. The first took place on 9th October 2019, adding an
additional 1% margin over gilts to all PWLB period rates.
That increase was then, at least partially, reversed for some forms of borrowing on
11th March 2020, but not for mainstream non-HRA capital schemes. A consultation
was then held with local authorities and on 25th November 2020, the Chancellor
announced the conclusion to the review of margins over gilt yields for PWLB rates;
68

Page 96

the standard and certainty margins were reduced by 1% but a prohibition was
introduced to deny access to borrowing from the PWLB for any local authority
which had purchase of assets for yield in its three year capital programme.
The margins over gilt yields are as follows: •
•
•
•
•

PWLB Standard Rate is gilt plus 100 basis points (G+100bps)
PWLB Certainty Rate is gilt plus 80 basis points (G+80bps)
PWLB HRA Standard Rate is gilt plus 100 basis points (G+100bps)
PWLB HRA Certainty Rate is gilt plus 80bps (G+80bps)
Local Infrastructure Rate is gilt plus 60bps (G+60bps)

10.6.8 There is likely to be a further rise in short-dated gilt yields and PWLB rates over the
next three years as Bank Rate is forecast to rise from 0.75% in March 2022 to
1.25% later this year, with upside risk likely if the economy proves resilient in the
light of the cost-of-living squeeze.
10.7

Borrowing Outturn for 2021/22

10.7.1 Following the announcement of significant Government support to assist
businesses and individuals following Covid-19, the Government provided significant
grants which were largely front loaded and to be used to support businesses,
individuals, and the Authority in managing Covid-19. Combined with slowed capital
investment and expenditure there remains need for the Authority to undertake new
long-term borrowing during 2021/22.
10.7.2 There is no short-term borrowing outstanding for the Authority.
10.7.3 Maturing long-term loans of £5.000m were repaid in 2021/22 as detailed in Table
43 below:
Table 43 - Maturing Long-Term Loans repaid during 2021/22
Principal
£m
5.000

Interest Rate
%
0.89

Date Repaid
01 October 2021

10.7.4 Short-term savings were achieved during the year by internally financing new
capital expenditure by running down existing cash balances.
10.7.5 Borrowing in advance of need
The Authority has not borrowed more than, or in advance of its needs, purely to profit
from the investment of the extra sums borrowed.
10.7.6 Rescheduling
No rescheduling was done during the year as the average 1% differential between
PWLB new borrowing rates and premature repayment rates made rescheduling
unviable.
10.8

Investment Outturn

10.8.1 Investment Policy – the Authority’s investment policy is governed by MHCLG
investment guidance, which has been implemented in the annual investment
69

Page 97

strategy approved by full Council on 18 February 2021. This policy sets out the
approach for choosing investment counterparties, and is based on credit ratings
provided by the three main credit rating agencies, supplemented by additional
market data, (such as rating outlooks, credit default swaps, bank share prices etc.).
10.8.2 The investment activity during the year conformed to the approved strategy, and the
Authority had no liquidity difficulties.
10.8.3 Resources – the Authority’s cash balances comprise revenue and capital resources
and cash flow monies. The Authority’s core cash resources comprised as follows:
Table 44: Core Cash Balances
31 March 2022
£m
14.980
85.777
3.698
13.167
117.622

Balance Sheet Resources
Balances
Earmarked reserves
Insurance Provisions
Usable capital receipts
Total

31 March 2021
£m
15.722
99.716
3.816
10.851
130.105

10.8.4 Investments held by the Authority - The Authority maintained an average
balance of £25.300 of internally managed funds invested with the Debt
Management Office (DMO). An average balance of £5.000m was held in Lloyds
Bank on an on-call basis to meet any unforeseen cashflow requirements whilst
managing credit exposures. As at 31 March the Authority had £25.000m
outstanding with other local authorities. This balance generated a weighted average
return for the Authority of 0.12%.
10.8.5 Internally managed funds earned a total investment income was £0.100m
compared to a budget of £0.023m.
10.9

A full list of the Prudential and Treasury Indicators is shown in Appendix D.

70

Page 98

Annex A: GF & HRA Reserves 2021/22

Reserve

Purpose of Reserve

Opening Balance

Cont To

Cont From

Closing Balance Balance as per GL

General

Page 99

Insurance Reserve

Risks covered by the reserve include fire, employer and third party liability, contract guarantee bonds,
motor cars, personal accident and other general risks

(8,701,293.86)

Planning Functions 20% Fee

Reserve set aside to account for the 20% uplift in planning application fees. The reserve to be invested
into the planning service

(340,483.22)

(95,029.00)

Private Landlord Lease to Let Scheme

Reserve set aside to modernise private landlord properties for future lettings

(234,264.96)

(44,360.00)

Street Lighting

Set up to equalise cash flows relating to the Council's street lighting PFI scheme

(3,033,481.86)

(1,432,653.08)

Lettings Agents Transparency & Redress
Scheme

Grant to support the monitoring of lettings agents in the Lettings Agents Transparency & Redress Scheme

Music Service

Development of music education hub

North Shields Christmas Market

The Xmas Market runs annually at a ‘cost neutral’ basis. The balance handed over & now retained in
NTC’s accounts acts as a contingency for the market (given that the market event is run for the
community). If the event makes a loss, the balance/funding held is used to meet the expense. Similarly, if
the event makes a profit, the balance will increase. It is expected that the annual event runs on a ‘cost
neutral’ basis for some time to come

Wallsend Festival

The Wallsend Festival runs annually at a ‘cost neutral’ basis. The balance handed over & now retained in
NTC’s accounts acts as a contingency for the festival (given that the festival is run for the community). If
the event makes a loss, the balance/funding held is used to meet the expense. Similarly, if the event
makes a profit, the balance will increase. It is expected that the annual event runs on a ‘cost neutral’
basis for some time to come

Tynemouth Pool Restoration

A grant from Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government to provide planning application
support for Tynemouth Pool Restoration

Reinvestment in Leisure Service

Reinvestment in Leisure Service

Alternate Weekly Waste Collection Reserve Alternate Weekly Waste Collection Reserve

373,311.85

(8,327,982.01)

(8,327,982.01)

(435,512.22)

(435,512.22)

(273,082.96)

(273,082.96)

(4,466,134.94)

(4,466,134.94)

(4,770.68)

(4,770.68)

113,235.20

(139,542.36)

(139,542.36)

(9,081.00)

2,662.00

(6,419.00)

(6,419.00)

(5,300.00)

1,528.00

(3,772.00)

(3,772.00)

(46,800.00)

(46,800.00)

(46,800.00)

(111,555.52)

(111,555.52)

(111,555.52)

(170,000.00)

(170,000.00)

(170,000.00)

5,542.00

(4,770.68)
(113,235.20)

(139,542.36)

Redundancy & Remuneration Reserve

Reserve to meet the expected cost of redundancies arising from the Change Programme

(1,634,021.88)

109,713.76

(1,524,308.12)

(1,524,308.12)

Support for Change Programme

Reserve to support the implementation of the Change Programme

(4,671,472.20)

173,885.96

(4,497,586.24)

(4,497,586.24)

Community Infrastructure Levy

To be used on the costs associated with the Community Infrastructure Levy

(63,726.00)

3,081.00

(318,004.00)

(318,004.00)

Housing Growth

Carry forward of budget to continue to develop initiatives and create the requisite delivery mechanisms
to help achieve Cabinet’s ambition to enable delivery of 3,000 affordable homes in the Borough over the
next 10 years

(98,551.04)

8,868.00

(89,683.04)

(89,683.04)

(257,359.00)

Lead Local Flood Authority

Funding to support the Council’s programme of flooding work in its role as Lead Local Flooding Authority

(11,840.00)

(11,840.00)

(11,840.00)

MHCLG - Self Build

Works associated with the self build and custom build register

(82,656.33)

234.00

(82,422.33)

(82,422.33)

Capita Managed Budget Reserve

Surplus/loss relating to the Capita NTC Partnership Managed Budget

(356,866.51)

(657,430.41)

(657,430.41)

New Burdens UC Funding

To support welfare in future years as a result of the impact of Covid-19

(19,318.00)

(19,318.00)

(19,318.00)

Training Reserve

This reserve will be available to supplement and support the delivery of the Corporate Training Plan

(160,000.00)

(160,000.00)

(160,000.00)

Welfare Reform

Grant funding from central government to meet the on-going cost of implementing welfare reform and
to support welfare in future years as a result of the impact of Covid-19

(151,530.14)

(42,766.64)

(194,296.78)

(194,296.78)

Education PFI Reserve

Established to provide a mechanism which takes account of project cashflows over a 30-year period to
enable the yearly equalisation of the additional costs of the PFI schools

(1,450,014.44)

(2,297,068.17)

(3,747,082.61)

(3,747,082.61)

Education Change Reserve

Reserve to reflect potential future risks associated with change to our schools

(1,094,334.10)

(1,094,334.10)

(1,094,334.10)

(63,427.36)

(63,427.36)

(21,163.00)

(21,163.00)

To help newly qualified social workers develop their skills, knowledge and capability, and strengthen
Assessed & Supported Year in Employment their professional confidence. It provides them with access to regular and focused support during their
(ASYE) & Student Placements (Children’s) first year of employment in social work.

(211,658.29)

0.00

(88,905.61)

(63,427.36)

Page 100

Hackney Carriage Unmet Demand Survey
Reserve

A ring fenced reserve set up at the request of the Hackney Carriages and Private Hire Trade
representatives whereby any surplus from fees is reinvested in the service

Practical support for Self-Isolation

Covid-19 grant to support individuals self-isolating

0.00

(3,220.31)

(3,220.31)

(3,220.31)

Mental Health in Schools

To support the Wellbeing for Education Return project which seeks to better equip education settings to
support pupils and students’ wellbeing and psychosocial recovery as they return to full-time education
this autumn.

0.00

(23,884.00)

(23,884.00)

(23,884.00)

Building Control Reserve

The reserve has been set up to assist in complying with the accounting requirements of the Building
(Local Authority Charges) regulations 2010

(160,941.14)

(51,386.00)

(212,327.14)

(212,327.14)

Feasibility Study Reserve

Set up to fund feasibility studies of potential capital schemes

(788,376.59)

(52,376.63)

(840,753.22)

(840,753.22)

ASC Covid Reserve

Covid-19 grants linked to Adult Social Care

0.00

(295,851.75)

(295,851.75)

(295,851.75)

Strategic Reserve

Established to address future potential significant external pressures on the Council's budget

(14,504,241.69)

(14,504,241.69)

Poverty & Intervention Fund

Established to support our residents in financial hardship

117,560.96

(732,365.94)

(732,365.94)

173,318.40

(1,964,649.65)

(1,964,649.65)

(2,232,890.98)

(2,232,890.98)

Dudley/Shiremoor Joint Service Centre PFI Established to provide a mechanism which takes account of project cashflows over a 25-year period to
Reserve
enable the yearly equalisation of the additional costs of the Joint Service Centre

Schools PFI Lifecycle Costs

Established to provide a mechanism to reflect the costs of replacing items of equipment over the life of
the PFI contract

(21,163.00)

(14,504,241.69)
(849,926.90)

(1,318,366.32)

(2,232,890.98)

(819,601.73)

MHCLG Bond Bank

This reserve is used to underwrite the deposit required when renting a property and therefore enabling
people (over 18) who are homeless or have a housing need to access private lettings

Business Rates Volatility Fund

Established to support potential volatility in business rates income as the market changes post pandemic

Dudley PFI Lifecycle Costs

Established to provide a mechanism to reflect the costs of replacing items of equipment over the life of
the PFI contract

Minimum Revenue Provision Reserve

MRP Reserve

Salisbury House N Shields Ringfence

(39,935.00)

0.00

(39,935.00)

(39,935.00)

(1,113,000.00)

(1,113,000.00)

(289,272.72)

(289,272.72)

(5,893,286.35)

(5,893,286.35)

41.43

(43,202.17)

(43,202.17)

15,419.04

0.00

0.00

(1,113,000.00)

(289,272.72)
0.00

(5,893,286.35)

Salisbury House Reserve

(38,538.31)

(4,705.29)

Saville Exchange N Shields Ringfence

Saville Exchange Reserve

(15,419.04)

131 Bedford Street

North Shields Reserve - 131 Bedford Street.

Smokehouses Reserve

Fish Quay Reserve - Smokehouses

Page 101

(102,513.81)

(0.40)

15,512.52

(87,001.69)

(87,001.69)

(87,604.33)

(0.10)

616.14

(86,988.29)

(86,988.29)

Service Improvement Fund

Support fund established to facilitate the delivery of the major change programme that is required to
ensure we continue to provide the services that our people need. The fund also provides Cabinet with
the flexibility to make service improvement choices based on feedback from the residents and other key
stakeholders

(405,112.74)

(325,000.00)

100,100.00

(630,012.74)

(630,012.74)

Waste Procurement Reserve

A reserve established to manage the future costs of waste provision

(734,012.73)

(252,789.00)

(986,801.73)

(986,801.73)

Pow Dene Reserve

Fish Quay Reserve - Pow Dene

(181,503.92)

(35,315.61)

2,240.49

(214,579.04)

(214,579.04)

Dockmasters Reserve

Fish Quay Reserve - Dockmasters

(19,614.98)

10,399.04

(9,215.94)

(9,215.94)

Working Above The Shops

Fish Quay Reserve - Union Quay Reserve

(64,159.40)

15,514.55

(48,644.85)

(48,644.85)

Local Safeguarding Board

To hold the balance of contributions from various partners and income generated from the LSCB
charging policy (in relation to training) on behalf of the LSCB

0.00

(139,011.46)

(139,011.46)

Vita House Reserve

Fish Quay Reserve - Vita House reserve

104.50

(63,395.95)

(63,395.95)

Ballards Smoke House Reserve

Fish Quay Reserve - Ballards Smoke House

1,000.00

(331.00)

(331.00)

Barracks Building Reserve

Fish Quay Reserve - Barracks Building

961.49

(45,394.70)

(45,394.70)

Whitley Bay CFC PFI Reserve

Established to provide a mechanism which takes account of project cashflows over a 25-year period to
enable the yearly equalisation of the additional costs of the Customer First Centre

(773,504.04)

56,358.59

(1,431,586.21)

(1,431,586.21)

Whitley Bay CFC PFI Lifecycle Costs

Established to provide a mechanism to reflect the costs of replacing items of equipment over the life of
the PFI contract

(212,798.05)

(212,798.05)

(212,798.05)

Apprenticeships

To support the further development of the Council’s apprenticeship and training programme, with a
particular focus on working with the business partners ENGIE and Capita Symonds

(195,167.00)

(195,167.00)

(195,167.00)

Major Repairs Reserve (MRR)

Reserve that is used for new capital investment in Housing Revenue Account assets

(9,101,739.87)

(9,101,739.87)

(8,227,071.22)

(103,131.77)

(35,879.69)

(63,500.45)
(1,257.42)

(73.58)

(46,356.19)

(714,440.76)

Page 102

Internal Refurbishment Reserve

A furniture reserve to fund a rolling programme of refurbishments to the Direct Access Units and
Dispersed Units

HRA Solar PV Green Fund

To support the provision of energy efficiency measures on council dwellings

Older Peoples Homes for the Future PFI
Reserve

Set up to equalise cash flows relating to the Council's North Tyneside Living PFI scheme

New Build

Established to support the provision of New Build Council Housing

Housing PFI Lifecycle Costs

Established to provide a mechanism to reflect the costs of replacing items of equipment over the life of
the PFI contract

Surplus on RTB Admin Costs

Reserve created to recognise additional administration payments over and above those required to fund
RTB administration costs over the previous two years, have been set aside to supplement financing
available for the Housing Investment Plan.

HRA Solar PV Maintenance

Maintenance of solar PV systems on new build council dwellings

Repairs Options Post 2019

To assist with Repairs Offer Options post 2019

(145,000.00)

HPC Vehicle Replacement Reserve

A delegated decision on Use of Reserves was taken as part of the project to create the Housing Property
and Construction Group which released up to £3m from the North Tyneside Living PFI reserve to fund the
purchase of the new fleet. As part of this decision it was agreed that the money recovered to cover the
purchase costs over time from the financing element of hire rates, would initially be put into a VRR in
order to build resource to replace the fleet as appropriate over the longer term. However, the one
stipulation was that the PFI Reserve would have first call on the money to restore its position should that
be required. For 2019-20 this resulted in the total applicable sum of £365,394 being split evenly between
the Reserve and the VRR with each receiving a contribution of £182,697

(367,978.99)

Sub Total - General Reserves

(58,860.23)

(40,000.00)

(98,860.23)

(98,860.23)

(768,504.85)

(19,112.08)

(787,616.93)

(787,616.93)

(12,389,542.00)

(727,977.58)

(13,117,519.58)

(13,117,519.58)

0.06

0.00

(238,656.94)

238,657.00

(5,169,177.45)

(719,270.64)

(5,888,448.09)

(5,888,448.09)

(576,560.80)

(120,639.00)

(697,199.80)

(697,199.80)

(10,679.24)

(5,315.88)

(15,995.12)

(15,995.12)

(145,000.00)

(145,000.00)

(183,800.58)

(551,779.57)

(551,779.56)

(74,495,397.61) (15,898,038.18)

1,182,999.41 (89,210,436.38)

(88,335,767.78)

(42,318.72)

(42,318.72)

(93,306.00)

(93,306.00)

Grants
Air Quality Monitoring Grant

Grant to fund support on measures to improve air quality in the local authority area

(42,318.72)

Step up to Social Work Grant

A programme to provide accelerated entry route into social work for high achieving graduates and career
changers

Rogue Landlords Grant Reserve

To provide improved reporting systems to assist in tackling rogue landlords in North Tyneside

(1,940.06)

(1,940.06)

(1,940.06)

Tobacco Burdens Grant

To cover any additional costs incurred as a direct result of the implementation new tobacco legislation

(6,497.51)

(6,497.51)

(6,497.51)

Public Health Grant

Department of Health ring-fenced grant made available to local authorities to allow them to discharge
their new public health responsibilities

(1,058,599.76)

(992,456.99)

(992,456.99)

(215,175.73)

(93,306.00)

(992,456.99)

215,175.73

1,058,599.76

Education Funding Agency

The 16-19 Bursary Fund aims to ensure that every young person participates and benefits from a place in
16-19 training. The SEN element of the reserve is intended to develop special educational needs and
disability implementation and services

(1,447,843.63)

(940,386.38)

Syrian Refugee Grant

The reserve is for the Syrian Refugee Relocation Programme and will be used for spend in-line with this
programme. The grant will be spent over the 5 years of the programme, but will be added to/ reduced as
the next wave of refugees enter our Borough, with their 5 years of funding starting from this point

(247,601.55)

(186,875.00)

The Assessed and Supported Year in Employment (ASYE) is designed to help newly qualified social
workers develop their skills, knowledge and capability, and strengthen their professional confidence. It
Assessed & Supported Year in Employment provides them with access to regular and focused support during their first year of employment in social
Programme
work

Page 103

(1,094,644.73)

(1,094,644.73)

(434,476.55)

(434,476.55)

(13,087.96)

(13,087.96)

(31,446.55)

(31,446.55)

(282,230.50)

(282,230.50)

(32,084.00)

(32,084.00)

113,867.10

(286,486.68)

(286,486.68)

1,684,767.12

(1,383,867.01)

(1,383,867.01)

(336,698.80)

(336,698.80)

(13,087.96)

Test & Trace Service Support

Covid-19 grant relating to the Test and Trace Service

(782,481.95)

(31,446.55)

Flexible Homelessness Support Grant

Grant to allow councils greater flexibility to prioritise homelessness prevention through new ways of
working

(229,641.50)

(52,589.00)

RRP Tenancy Support

Tenancy Support for Rapid Rehousing Pathway Scheme for Homelessness

Hardship Fund

Established from the unused balance of the Hardship funding provided during 20/21 for support to the
covid-19 pandemic.

Covid 19 LA Support Grant Reserve

Covid 19 LA Support Grant Reserve

As Central Government is committed to ensuring councils have the support and the funding they need to
prepare for an orderly exit from the EU and do appropriate contingency planning, this funding will help
Local Authority EU Exit Preparation Reserve councils to adapt to changes caused by Brexit, while still protecting vital local services

1,293,585.28

782,481.95

(32,084.00)

(400,353.78)
(1,684,767.12)

(1,383,867.01)

(336,698.80)

Business Rates Support Top Up

Covid-19 grant to support businesses during the pandemic

(3,307,000.00)

(3,118,000.00)

3,307,000.00

(3,118,000.00)

(3,118,000.00)

Local Restriction Support Grant

Covid-19 grant to support businesses during the pandemic

(4,660,665.00)

(2,683,713.50)

4,660,665.00

(2,683,713.50)

(2,683,713.50)

Additional Restrictions Grant

Covid-19 grant to support businesses during the pandemic

(2,737,779.00)

(124,553.32)

2,661,279.00

(201,053.32)

(201,053.32)

Test and Trace Support Payments

Covid-19 grant to support residents that are required to self-isolate

(438,266.00)

(116,500.00)

438,266.00

(116,500.00)

(116,500.00)

Contain Outbreak Management

Covid-19 grant to assist local authorities in containing outbreaks

(5,302,443.60)

(1,578,127.03)

5,302,443.60

(1,578,127.03)

(1,578,127.03)

Clinically Extremely Vulnerable

Covid-19 grant to support CEV residents in the borough

(303,447.76)

(159,811.57)

303,447.76

(159,811.57)

(159,811.57)

Emergency Assistance Grant

Covid-19 grant to support residents with food and essential supplies

(79,646.53)

79,646.53

0.00

0.00

Homeless Reduction Act Grant

Grant to support the introduction of the Homeless Reduction Act from 1st April 2018

(61,375.50)

(61,375.50)

(61,375.50)

Rough Sleepers Grant

This grant supports the delivery of the government’s rough sleeping strategy. It allows local authorities to
employ one or more specialist personal advisers to support a small caseload of 5 to 10 care leavers

(225,808.00)

(225,808.00)

Business Rates; NoTCA Growth

Business Rates Growth income; result of the authority's membership in the 2019-20 NOTCA Pool

(1,841,479.00)

(1,841,479.00)

(114,962.00)
(1,841,479.00)

(110,846.00)

S31 Business Rates Relief

Additional S31 grant provided by Government to cover losses LA's faced as a result of the additional BR
reliefs offered to businesses during the pandemic

LRSG Open

Covid-19 grant to support businesses during the pandemic

Apprentice Incentive Payments

The incentive payment is in addition to the £1,000 employers already receive for hiring an apprentice.

(13,250.00)

Homeless Veterans

The homeless veteran’s daily allowance and grant program is designed to help non-profit and
government organizations set up and run supportive service centres and housing to cater for the needs
of homeless veterans.

(28,160.00)

Brownfield Land Register

The Brownfield Land Register is a register of brownfield land which is suitable, available and achievable
for housing development. The register has been introduced to help ensure that 90% of suitable
brownfield sites have planning permission for housing by 2021.

Tyne Port Health – Export Health
Certificates

(13,634,697.54)

13,634,697.54

Page 104

0.00

0.00

(1,484.00)

(1,484.00)

(61,500.00)

(61,500.00)

4,261.00

(23,899.00)

(23,899.00)

(1,040.50)

467.00

(573.50)

(573.50)

Reserve is for costs to Tyne Port Health for the implementation of the new Export health Certificates
following Brexit.

(31,000.00)

19,679.00

(11,321.00)

(11,321.00)

Tyne Port Health – Brexit Transition
Support

Reserve is for costs to Tyne Port Health for additional duties associated with Brexit.

(86,000.00)

86,000.00

0.00

0.00

Street Naming

To fund the creation of a street naming, numbering and address database

(5,012.80)

5,012.80

0.00

0.00

Tax Income Guarantee - C Tax

Government grant to cover income losses from Council Tax as a result of the pandemic

(568,313.00)

568,313.00

0.00

0.00

Tax Income Guarantee - NDR

Government grant to cover income losses from Business Rates as a result of the pandemic

(949,943.00)

949,943.00

0.00

0.00

Grant Reserves under £100k

Brownfield Housing Grant Fund (£76,291.50)
Holiday Activities and Food Grant (£4,444.00)
National Community Clean Up (£35,844.00)
Safer North Tyneside (£27,777.04)
Digital Inclusion Outreach Project (£79,616.88)
Support for those in Domestic Abuse (£74,886.99)
Moving on Tyne & Wear (£22,954.42)
School Improvement Monitoring & Brokering Grant (£154,270.15)
Other £336.84
436,407.28

(475,748.14)

(475,748.14)

(92,426.00)

(92,426.00)

(1,484.00)

(631,557.72)

(48,250.00)

(280,597.70)

Revenues and Benefits admin Subsidy
Grant

The Admin Subsidy is used to part fund the Unitary Charge that is paid to Engie for them to deliver the
Housing Benefit Administration

Omicron Hospitality and Leisure Grant

Covid-19 grant linked to business rates and the pandemic

0.00

(232,669.00)

(232,669.00)

(232,669.00)

Business Restart Grant 21/22

Covid-19 grant supporting businesses to recover

0.00

(25,500.00)

(25,500.00)

(25,500.00)

Rough Sleeping Accommodation
Programme (Revenue)

Funding for external service provider to provide support to residents as part of the Rough Sleepers
Accommodation programme

0.00

(28,319.00)

(28,319.00)

(28,319.00)

Capability Fund - Sustainable Transport

Funding to provide sustainable transport solutions

0.00

(180,826.00)

(180,826.00)

(180,826.00)

(92,426.00)

Page 105

Bio-Diversity Net Gain Grant

To help Local Planning Authorities and other local authorities with planning oversight prepare for
Biodiversity Net Gain which will become mandatory two years after Royal Assent of the Environment Act

0.00

(10,047.00)

(10,047.00)

(10,047.00)

Food Allergen Labelling – Grant

Grant to assist the authority in the monitoring of the New Food Allergen labelling laws

0.00

(5,764.45)

(5,764.45)

(5,764.45)

Botulinum Toxin & Cosmetic Fillers Grant

Grant to assist the authority in the monitoring of underage practice

0.00

(2,879.00)

(2,879.00)

(2,879.00)

Covid 19 Pavement licenses – New
Burdens’

Covid-19 grant linked to admin of more buisnesses looking for outside space

0.00

(2,034.00)

(2,034.00)

(2,034.00)

S31 - Covid-19 Business Rates Relief
Additional Grant

Covid-19 business rates relief linked grant

0.00

(1,073,693.00)

(1,073,693.00)

(1,073,693.00)

Step up to Social Work Grant – Cohort 7

Cohort 7 Step up to Social Work grant

0.00

(67,128.00)

(67,128.00)

(67,128.00)

Cyber Security Grant

Cyber Security Grant

0.00

(150,000.00)

(150,000.00)

(150,000.00)

Local Audit Fees Grant

Local Audit Fees Grant

0.00

(69,269.00)

(69,269.00)

(69,269.00)

Organisational and Workforce
Development

Organisational and Workforce Development

0.00

(63,578.00)

(63,578.00)

(63,578.00)

ASC Household Grant

ASC Household Grant

0.00

(103,000.00)

(103,000.00)

(103,000.00)

Training & Development

School-centred initial teacher training (SCITT) - Networks of schools that have been approved to run
school-centred courses are known as SCITTs. They provide practical, hands-on teacher training, delivered
by experienced, practising teachers based in their own school or a school in their network. SCITT courses
generally last one year, and many include a postgraduate certificate in education (PGCE) and/or Master’slevel credits. Training as part of a SCITT gives you the opportunity to learn ‘on the job’. You will benefit
from working and learning every day in a school and getting an immediate insight into what teaching
involves.

(9,986.17)

(9,986.17)

Parks - Heritage Lottery Fund Grant

Ring-fenced grant for the future maintenance and managements costs associated with Wallsend Parks
and Northumberland Parks

(783,091.36)

(783,091.36)

(783,091.36)

Dedicated Schools Grant

This Grant is a ring-fenced specific grant and must be used in support of the Schools Budget as financed
in the School Finance (England) Regulations 2008

7,932,468.00

12,851,174.00

12,851,174.00

NE One Public Estate Grant

Grant as part of a national programme (NT are part of North East Scheme) to transform local
communities and public services

(25,683.00)

(25,683.00)

(25,683.00)

LAA Performance Grant

To support local authorities in England towards expenditure lawfully incurred

(2,098.59)

(2,098.59)

(2,098.59)

(5,668,753.19)

(5,668,753.19)

(108,816,785.67) (16,962,896.68) 30,900,492.78 (94,879,189.57)

(94,004,520.97)

Sub Total of Grant Reserves

Total all Reserves

(53,942.09)

(34,321,388.06)

43,955.92

12,851,174.00 (7,932,468.00)

(1,064,858.50) 29,717,493.37

This page is intentionally left blank

2020/21 INVESTMENT PLAN FINANCING SUMMARY

2021/22

Actual
Gross
Expenditure
£000

Unsupported
Borrowing
£000

APPENDIX B

Capital
Receipts
£000

Government
Grants
£000

Financing
ERDF

Grants &
Contributions
£000

£000

Revenue
Funding
£000

Total
Financing
£000

General Fund

36,287

-6,792

-702

-27,460

-507

-227

-599

-36,287

Housing (HRA)

26,758

0

-1,110

-738

0

-13,231

-11,679

-26,758

Total

63,045

-6,792

-1,812

-28,198

-507

-13,458

-12,278

-63,045

Page 107

This page is intentionally left blank

Investment Plan provisional outturn 2021/22
GENERAL FUND
Gross
Budget
Expenditure
£000

Page 109

BS026
BS029
BS030
BS031
BS032
CO079
CO080
CO081
CO082
CO083
CO085
CO086
CO087
CO088
DV058
DV064
DV066
DV067
DV068
DV071
DV072
DV073
DV074
DV075
DV076
DV077
DV078
DV079
ED075
ED120
ED132

Asset Planned Maintenance
Wallsend Customer First Centre
Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme
Childrens Home Capital Programme
Spirit of NT Commemoration Project
Playsites
Burradon Recreation Ground
Gosforth Nature Reserve Grey Squirrel Control and Enhancements
Sport and Leisure Facility Improvements
Whitley Bay Crematoria
Northumberland Park Labyrinth
North West Library Improvements
Contours Gym Improvements
Gateways to the Boroughs
Swan Hunters Redevelopment
Council Property Investment
Investment in North Tyneside Trading Co
Northern Promenade
Southern Promenade
Section 106 Contributions to Set Up Health Facilities
Royal Quays Enterprise Park
Ambition for North Tyneside
North Shields Heritage Action Zone (Ambition)
Town & Neighbourhood Centres (Ambition)
Getting Building Fund (North Shields Public Realm)
Tyne Brand Development Site
Bedford Street / Saville Street
Howard Street The Exchange
Devolved Formula Capital
Basic Need
School Capital Allocation

2,055.00
647.00
3,739.00
0.00
125.00
82.00
107.00
65.00
18.00
1,379.00
46.00
0.00
9.00
0.00
13.00
1,535.00
1,864.00
950.00
193.00
228.00
0.00
63.00
1,430.00
34.00
2,398.00
25.00
119.00
800.00
1,306.00
39.00
4,867.00

£000
1,857.00
378.00
2,978.00
0.00
50.00
65.00
101.00
63.00
0.00
766.00
19.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
13.00
1,138.00
1,433.00
826.00
181.00
15.00
0.00
0.00
1,238.00
0.00
2,504.00
101.00
127.00
509.00
1,043.00
37.00
4,387.00

Variance
£000
-198.00
-269.00
-761.00
0.00
-75.00
-17.00
-6.00
-2.00
-18.00
-613.00
-27.00
0.00
-9.00
0.00
0.00
-397.00
-431.00
-124.00
-12.00
-213.00
0.00
-63.00
-192.00
-34.00
106.00
76.00
8.00
-291.00
-263.00
-2.00
-480.00

Funding
Adjustment

Reprogramming

£000

£000
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
-22
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
-12
0
0
0
0
-34
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

-198
-269
-761
0
-75
-17
-6
-2
-18
-613
-5
0
-9
0
0
-397
-431
-124
0
-213
0
-63
-192
0
106
76
8
-291
-263
-2
-480

Page 110

ED189
ED190
EV034
EV055
EV056
EV069
EV076
EV083
EV084
EV091
EV092
EV094
EV095
EV096
EV097
EV098
EV099
GEN12
HS004
HS051
HS052
HS053
IT020

School Nursery Capital Fund
High Needs Provision Capital Allocation
Local Transport Plan
Surface Water Improvements
Additional Highways Maintenance
Vehicle Replacement
Operational Depot Accommodation Review
Street Lighting LED
A189 Improvements Haddricks Mill to West Moor
Other Initiatives Climate Change
E-Cargo Bikes
Transforming Cities Fund - NT02 North Shields Transport Hub
Active Travel Fund 1 & 2 Rake Lane
Highway Maintenance Challenge Fund - Tanners Bank
Weetslade & Westmoor Roundabouts, Great Lime Road (S106 Bellway Homes)
Transforming Cities Fund - NT08 Four Lane Ends Bus Priority
Transforming Cities Fund - NT10 Links to Metro
Local Infrastructure
Disabled Facilities Grant
Private Sector Empty Homes
Killingworth Moor Infrastructure
Green Homes Local Authority Delivery
ICT Strategy

Sub Total
GEN03 Contingency Provision
TOTAL GENERAL FUND

102.00
113.00
3,277.00
220.00
3,156.00
1,602.00
611.00
300.00
245.00
27.00
0.00
4,590.00
1,400.00
58.00
1,050.00
0.00
5.00
72.00
1,400.00
305.00
0.00
3,316.00
1,458.00

63.00
88.00
2,901.00
244.00
2,779.00
1,585.00
332.00
123.00
187.00
3.00
0.00
2,439.00
438.00
58.00
991.00
212.00
109.00
45.00
1,402.00
158.00
0.00
1,590.00
711.00

-39.00
-25.00
-376.00
24.00
-377.00
-17.00
-279.00
-177.00
-58.00
-24.00
0.00
-2,151.00
-962.00
0.00
-59.00
212.00
104.00
-27.00
2.00
-147.00
0.00
-1,726.00
-747.00

-39
0
-128
-9
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
234
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
-25
-248
33
-377
-17
-279
-177
-58
-24
0
-2,151
-962
0
-59
212
-130
-27
2
-147
0
-1,726
-747

47,443

36,287

-11,156

-10

-11,146

1,989

0

-1,980

0

-1,980

49,432

36,287

-13,136

-10

-13,126

24,555
1,314
221
0
2,956
0

23,047
1,166
135
0
2,410
0

-1,508
-148
-86
0
-546
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

-1,508
-148
-86
0
-546
0

HRA
HS015
HS017
HS039
HS041
HS044
HS050

Refurbishment / Decent Homes Improvements
Disabled Adaptations
ICT Infrastructure Works
Housing PFI
HRA New Build
Construction Options Project

TOTAL HRA

29,046

26,758

-2,288

0

-2,288

TOTAL

78,478

63,045

-15,424

-10

-15,414

Page 111

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX D
Prudential and treasury indicators
1. PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS

2020/21

2021/22

2021/22

actual

revised

actual

£m

£m

£m

Capital Expenditure
Non – HRA (General Fund)
HRA
TOTAL

£33.468
£20.362
£53.830

£49.423
£29.046
£78.469

£36.287
£26.758
£63.045

Ratio of financing costs to net revenue
stream
Non – HRA (General Fund)
HRA

16.86%
29.84%

17.15%
27.86%

17.14%
28.02%

Ratio of financing costs for Prudential
Borrowing to net revenue stream
Non – HRA (General Fund)

11.85%

12.32%

8.20%

10.88%

5.87%

11.70%

HRA
Gross borrowing requirement General
Fund (CFR excluding PFI)
brought forward 1 April
carried forward 31 March
in year borrowing requirement

£274.968 £269.975 £269.975
£269.975 £264.577 £262.496
(£4.993) (£5.398) (£7.479)

Gross borrowing requirement HRA (CFR
excluding PFI)
brought forward 1 April
carried forward 31 March
in year borrowing requirement

£249.600 £242.634 £242.634
£242.634 £238.803 £234.637
(£6.966) (£3.831) (£7.997)

Gross debt (excluding PFI)

£417.443 £397.905 £397.443

CFR
Non – HRA
HRA
TOTAL

£310.323 £305.029 £301.139
£313.049 £307.662 £303.279
£623.372 £612.691 £604.418

Annual change in Capital Financing
Requirement
Non – HRA
HRA
TOTAL

(£6.868) (£5.294)
(£8.722) (£5.387)
(£15.591) (£10.681)

Page 113

(£3.890)
(£4.383)
(£8.273)

2

2. TREASURY MANAGEMENT
INDICATORS

Authorised Limit for external debt borrowing
other long term liabilities
TOTAL

2020/21

2021/22

2021/22

actual
£m

revised
£m

actual
£m

£1,080.000
£150.000
£1,230.000

£1,080.000
£150.000
£1,230.000

£1,080.000
£150.000
£1,230.000

Operational Boundary for external
debt borrowing
other long term liabilities
TOTAL

£540.000
£130.000
£670.000

£540.000
£130.000
£670.000

£540.000
£130.000
£670.000

Actual external debt (including PFI)

£528.206

£509.945

£504.728

Maturity structure limits of fixed rate
borrowing during 2021/22
under 12 months
12 months and within 24 months
24 months and within 5 years
5 years and within 10 years
10 years and within 20 years
20 years and within 30 years
30 years and within 40 years
40 years and within 50 years

Page 114

upper limit

lower limit

50%
50%
50%
75%
100%
100%
100%
100%

0%
0%
0%
0%
25%
25%
25%
25%

Agenda Item 6
North Tyneside Council
Report to Cabinet
Date: 27 June 2022
Title: Former Swan Hunter Shipyard Local Development Order
Portfolio(s):

Deputy Mayor

Report from Service
Area:

Cabinet Member(s):

Cllr Carl Johnson

Planning and Strategic Transport

Responsible Officer:

John Sparkes, Director of Regeneration
and Economic Development

Wards affected:

Wallsend

Tel: (0191) 643 6091

PART 1
1.1

Executive Summary:
This report seeks Cabinet approval to consult on a revised draft Local Development
Order (LDO) for the site of the former Swan Hunter Shipyard, Wallsend and to grant
authority to the Director of Regeneration and Economic Development to consider any
responses received to the consultation and subsequently adopt the LDO.
The current LDO for the site was considered by Cabinet and adopted for a ten year
period in 2012. It is now due to expire on 19 November 2022. The proposed revision set
out in this revised draft LDO would enable the benefits provided by the current LDO to
be extended for a further ten years, until 2032.
An LDO is a planning mechanism that grants planning permission for certain types of
development, enabling developers to progress plans for investment without the need to
apply for planning permission. This provides landowners and developers with certainty
about the types of development allowed and also saves costs (including planning fees)
and time in negotiating and securing planning permission.
Adoption of a new LDO will build on the Authority’s achievements in safeguarding the
site for offshore energy related development and loadouts, developing the Swans CFI
and providing the site infrastructure that enabled the site to be sold in December 2020.

1.2

Recommendation(s):
It is recommended that Cabinet:
(1) Authorise the Director of Regeneration and Economic Development, in consultation
with the Deputy Mayor and Director of Resources, to:

Page 115

(i) undertake public consultation in respect of the proposed Local Development Order for
the former Swan Hunter Shipyard, Wallsend; and
(ii) pursuant to such consultation, take all necessary or associated steps to make any
amendments to the Local Development Order; and
(2) Authorise the Director of Regeneration and Economic Development in consultation with
the Deputy Mayor and the Director of Resources (and subject to the consultation
responses) to adopt the Local Development Order and submit a copy of the Order and
any ancillary documentation, to the Secretary of State within the requisite period of
time.
1.3

Forward Plan:
Twenty-eight days’ notice of this report has been given and it first appeared on the
Forward Plan that was published on 27 May 2022.

1.4

Council Plan and Policy Framework
This report relates to the following priority in the 2021/25 Our North Tyneside Plan:
A thriving North Tyneside
We will bring more good quality jobs to North Tyneside – by helping local businesses to
grow and making it attractive for new businesses to set up or relocate in the borough

1.5

Information:

1.5.1 Background
1.5.2 The former Swan Hunter shipyard has been an important part of the North Tyneside
economy since Charles Sheridan Swan opened it in 1842. The company and the people
who worked there left a lasting global legacy in shipbuilding which shaped the local
community.
1.5.3 Once it became apparent the contemporary iteration of the company was in difficulty in
2006/7 discussions in the Authority focussed on ensuring the site was secured for
strategic economic purposes. These broadened into discussions with central
government and the Regional Development Agency, as well as a broad range of potential
partners. The Authority acquired the site in 2009 and has sought to achieve four key
outcomes:
ensuring the site was not broken up or moved to purposes that would not support the
local economy;
contributing to the skills and capabilities of the world class offshore and subsea
businesses along the Tyne;
enabling existing business and attracting new investment; and
creating jobs and having a positive impact on the communities around Wallsend.

Page 116

1.5.4 During the period since 2006/07 the Authority has operated in three significant
partnerships in order to secure those outcomes. The first was work with One North East,
the then Regional Development Agency. This partnership secured central government
funding and support to acquire the site in 2009 and its designation as an Enterprise Zone
(EZ) and LDO in 2012. The EZ initially brought business rate discounts and, via the LDO,
a continuing simplified planning regime for development in the offshore energy and
subsea sector. The second followed a procurement process and led to the Authority
working with Kier Property to act as the private sector developer. The third was work
with the NELEP.
1.5.5 What has been delivered to date?
1.5.6 Significant improvement and investment work has been completed at the site. Since
2009/10 the following was delivered by the Authority:
Project
Site Acquisition
Site Redevelopment
Site Utilities
New Roads
Acquisition and demolition of the Ship In The Hole
Quay works
Riverbed dredging
Centre for Innovation – Phase 1
Centre for Innovation – Phase 2
1.5.7 That investment has allowed significant operational delivery in three areas
Swans Centre for Innovation; open since 2016 over two floors and since 2020
over five floors.
Quay Operations; following the dredging of the river berths in 2015 the Quay has
been used for almost 40 load outs of offshore energy structures and machinery for
local businesses; and
WD Close; leased 3 hectares of the site in 2011 and developed fabrication units
allowing the business to diversify and expand into the offshore sector, acquired
the East Quay in 2020 and currently provides around 105 jobs at their Wallsend
site.
1.5.8 After a review of the approach to developing the site on 28 May 2019 Cabinet considered
a report which outlined the work that the Authority had done for over ten years with a
range of partners to secure the Swan Hunter site for strategic purposes and bring it back
into economic use.
1.5.9 The Cabinet report included recognition of the infrastructure investment delivered,
creation of the Swans Centre for Innovation providing space for businesses to grow and
create jobs and making a large and complex site ready for future investment.
1.5.10 On 28 May 2019, after consideration of options to deliver additional jobs and business
growth at the site, the Council’s Cabinet resolved to delegate authority to the Chief
Executive in consultation with the Elected Mayor, Deputy Mayor, Cabinet Member for
Finance, Head of Resources, Head of Law and Governance, Head of Regeneration and

Page 117

Economic Development and Head of Commissioning and Asset Management to progress
and deliver the work necessary to pursue the recommended option which was to
approach the market to discuss either freehold sale or long-term lease of the site.
1.5.11 Following the decision by Cabinet the site was advertised for sale in September 2019 with
particulars identifying the price and quality criteria against which leasehold and freehold
offers would be assessed.
1.5.12 Two offers to purchase were received by the deadline of 25 October 2019 and in line with
the delegated approvals granted by Cabinet the decision was made that:
1. Shepherd Offshore Ltd was selected as the preferred purchaser of the freehold of
the site;
2. Discussions with Shepherd Offshore Ltd be entered into in respect of the terms of
the disposal and completion of the sale contract on those negotiated terms;
3. Approval is sought from the North East Combined Authority and/or the North of
Tyne Combined Authority, Ministry of Housing Communities and Local
Government and Homes and Communities Agency (trading as Homes England) to
dispose of the site to Bidder A having agreed the terms of any contract or
undertaking required to secure such approvals; and
4. Any other approvals or consents are sought that are required in order to achieve
the disposal of the site in accordance with the delegations set out in that Report.
1.5.13 This culminated in December 2020 in the Authority selling the site to Shepherd Offshore
Limited (SOL), which intends to bring forward redevelopment of the site as Swans
Energy Park and attract businesses in the offshore, subsea, marine and energy
sectors to the site. Since acquisition SOL has cleared additional derelict buildings at the
site and has submitted applications for planning permission and a marine licence to
upgrade the quay infrastructure.
1.5.14 In December 2020, the Authority also sold the East Quay to WD Close Engineering
Limited enabling the business to directly manage load outs from this quay.
1.5.15 At the same time, the Authority agreed a deed of variation to a grant funding agreement
(in relation to European Regional Development Fund grant) with the Ministry of Housing
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) that expanded the type of businesses
that could operate on the site. This variation is now reflected in the revised LDO.
1.5.16 The purpose of the LDO
1.5.17 The Authority took up the opportunity to adopt an LDO in 2012. Given the size of the
former Swan Hunter site, together with the river frontage access, it presents a unique
development opportunity, which would capitalise on its potential and which aligns with the
policy objectives listed above.
1.5.18 The need to revise the existing LDO is due to it expiring in November 2022 and a
continuing need to support partners in securing additional investment and development.
The proposed LDO will extend the timeframe until 2032 and allow it to reflect changes to
planning legislation and the deed of variation signed with MHCLG in 2020 which
extended the range of permissible economic activities which could be carried out in line
with the funding agreements.

Page 118

1.5.19 The proposed LDO will continue to support the policy objectives for the site by delivering
sustainable economic development that will support investment in sub-sea technologies,
energy generation and zero carbon transport in the following sectors:
-

Energy industries (included but not limited to oil and gas and renewables);
Offshore, technology, marine and sub-sea;
Manufacturing, construction and engineering; and/or
Research and Development related to any of the above sectors.

1.5.20 The proposed LDO will enable development that supports these industries to proceed
without the need to apply for planning permission, provided it complies with specified
development requirements and conditions. In exempting certain development from the
need to apply for planning permission, developers will save on planning application costs
and the time required to process applications.
1.5.21 Developers will also benefit from receiving a greater degree of certainty that they can
proceed, as permission is granted, provided they meet the agreed conditions and
development requirements. This will assist in efforts to market and promote the sites for
development and investment.
1.5.22 The process for revising a LDO is set out in the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
and Article 38 of The Town and Country Planning (Development Management
Procedure) (England) Order 2015 made under the 1990 Act. This would involve
consultation with prescribed bodies such as Natural England, Historic England and the
Environment Agency and local organisations who have an interest in the area.
1.5.23 The consultation process also includes any person who it would be required to consult
with on an application for planning permission and in conformity with the Authority’s
Statement of Community Involvement. A copy of the LDO will be available to view on the
Authority’s website and within the Authority offices at Cobalt. The consultation period
should not be less than 28 days with an advert in the local press.
1.5.24 Following consultation on the LDO the Authority must consider any representations
received and what modifications, if any, should be made to the LDO. The revised LDO
would have no effect until it is adopted by the Authority as the Local Planning Authority.
1.5.25 In adopting the LDO the Authority must send a copy of the LDO and other specified
documents to the Secretary of State as soon as reasonably practicable, and no later than
28 days after the Authority has adopted the LDO.
1.6

Decision options:
The following decision options are available for consideration by Cabinet:
Option 1
Approve the recommendations as set out in section 1.2 of this report.
This will allow a LDO to continue to be effective at the Former Swan Hunter site to
support investment and job creation.
Option 2
To authorise some, but not all, of the recommendations as set out in section 1.2.

Page 119

An amendment to the recommendations could delay the revision of the LDO and affect
the confidence of those seeking to deliver projects on site. Normal planning processes
will continue to apply.
Option 3
Not to approve the recommendations as set out in section 1.2.
In this option the existing LDO expires on 19th November 2022 at which point normal
planning processes will apply to those seeking planning permission on the former Swan
Hunter site. The simplified planning scheme permitted under a LDO is an incentive to
attract businesses to the former Swan Hunter Site as it reduces the time and risk for
delivering their projects and meeting tight contract deadlines. This will have a knock-on
effect in reducing the attractiveness of the site and its economic potential.
Option 1 is the recommended option.
1.7

Reasons for recommended option:
Option 1 is recommended for the following reasons:
This would provide a clear commitment from the Authority to take the necessary steps to
simplify the planning regime and therefore support the efforts to generate investment,
economic growth and job creation at the site in key industries that seek to maximise the
advantages the site offers.

1.8

Appendices:
Appendix 1: Former Swan Hunter’s Local Development Order (LDO), 2022, no link
available.
Appendix 2: Swans LDO 2022 boundary

1.9

Contact officers:
Peter Slegg, Senior Planning Policy Officer, Planning, tel. (0191) 643 6308
Paul Graves, Regeneration Project Manager, Regeneration and Economic Development
tel. (0191) 643 6013

1.10

Background information:
The following background papers/information have been used in the compilation of this
report and are available at the office of the author:
(1) North Tyneside Report to Cabinet, Item 6 (d), 12 December 2011 [No hyperlink
available]
(2) Former Swan Hunter’s Local Development Order (LDO), 2012,
https://my.northtyneside.gov.uk/category/1076/do-you-need-planning-permission
(3) Minutes of Cabinet 28 May 2019, Item CAB 12/19 Swan Hunter Site – Next Steps:
https://democracy.northtyneside.gov.uk/documents/g162/Printed%20minutes%2028th
-May-2019%2018.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=1

Page 120

(4) Record of Delegated Decision, 25 February 2020 – Swan Hunter Site: selection of
preferred developer:
https://my.northtyneside.gov.uk/sites/default/files/web-page-related-files/2020-0226%20Decision%20Swan%20Hunter%20Preferred%20Purchaser.pdf
(5) North Tyneside Council Statement of Community Involvement 2020,
https://my.northtyneside.gov.uk/category/1149/planning-policy-timetable-andconsultation-guidance
(6) The North East Strategic Economic Plan – Creating more and better jobs, 2022
https://www.northeastlep.co.uk/the-plan/
(7) The Town and Country Planning Act 1990,
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1990/8/contents
(8) The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England)
Order 2015, https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/595/contents/made
(9) The Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended),
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/1987/764/contents/made
(10) The Town and Country Planning (Use Classes)(Amendment)(England)
Regulations 2020, https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2020/757/contents/made
(11) North Tyneside Climate Emergency Action Plan, 2020
https://my.northtyneside.gov.uk/category/539/sustainability#:~:text=In%20July%2020
19%20North%20Tyneside,net%2Dzero%20by%202030.%E2%80%9D
PART 2 – COMPLIANCE WITH PRINCIPLES OF DECISION MAKING
2.1 Finance and other resources
The local authority would not receive a planning fee for works that do not require planning
permission as a result of the LDO, this has been the case since 2012 and it is not considered
that it will have a significant impact on expected planning fee income, but the revision of the
LDO will support economic activity across the Borough.
2.2 Legal
An LDO constitutes a general grant of planning permission for prescribed uses and built
development and therefore must follow a formal process set out in the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 and Part 8 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management
Procedure) (England) Order 2015 made under the 1990 Act.
The making of an LDO is a Cabinet function by virtue of the provisions of section 9D of the
Local Government Act 2000. There is nothing in the Local Authorities (Functions and
Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000, the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 or the
Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015
that prevents Cabinet from determining this matter.

Page 121

2.3 Consultation/community engagement
2.3.1 Internal Consultation
The revised LDO has been drafted in cooperation with colleagues in Regeneration and
Economic Development as they continue to progress work on the Wallsend Masterplan and
work with partners to attract investors to employment sites.
Relevant Cabinet Members and the Senior Leadership Team have also been consulted on the
revised LDO.
2.3.2 External Consultation/Engagement
The LDO will be subject to public consultation in accordance with the Town and Country
Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 Article 38. This includes
consultation with neighbouring authorities, statutory and voluntary organisations and the period
of consultation should be for at least 28 days. The LDO would be available to view on the
Council website, with advertisements in the local press and site notices.
2.4 Human rights
There are no human rights implications directly arising from this report.
2.5 Equalities and diversity
There are no implications directly arising from this report that would hinder equality and diversity
opportunities, but it is anticipated that future investment in the site would show due regard to the
needs of all protected groups thereby creating new economic opportunities for all. While
employees in the offshore sector are predominantly male local schools, colleges, universities
and businesses are committed to supporting initiatives such as Women in STEM to encourage,
support and remove barriers to women pursuing careers in STEM. Newcastle College, which
has its Energy Centre in Wallsend, for example has used International Women in Engineering
Day to celebrate and promote the contribution of women in the sector.
2.6 Risk management
A risk in revising the LDO is the potential for objections from the community based upon
perceived disturbance from noise. These sites however already have established use rights for
heavy engineering and other general industrial activities. The LDO will provide an opportunity to
permit buildings and other works but with suitable conditions to protect the amenity of nearby
residents.
2.7 Crime and disorder
The approval of the revised LDO would support the investment in the site and encourage
greater activity and surveillance in the area. This would have a positive impact on the area and
reduce the potential fear of crime and disorder.
2.8 Environment and sustainability
The approval of the recommendations will support the implementation of improvements to the
environment and long-term sustainability of the site. The LDO is seeking to support businesses
in sectors that would include renewable energy such as offshore wind and therefore contribute
to the wider commitment of the Authority to tackle climate change.

Page 122

Development of the former Swan Hunter site has a high level of sustainability in relation to
alternative means of travel. The site is close to Wallsend Metro Station and bus interchange and
is also alongside a cycleway. Various shops and services are also within easy walking distance
of the site. The use of the site for employment development offers the option of goods being
transported to and from the site by river, reducing the number of vehicle movements on the road
network.
PART 3 - SIGN OFF
Chief Executive
Director(s) of Service

X

Mayor/Cabinet Member(s)

X

Chief Finance Officer

X

Monitoring Officer

X

Assistant Chief Executive

X

Page 123

This page is intentionally left blank

Former Swan Hunter Ship Yard
Local Development Order

Page 125

Contents
1.

Introduction ...................................................................................................................................1

2.

Rationale .......................................................................................................................................1

3.

Simplifying Planning on Enterprise Zones ...............................................................................2

4.

The Swan Hunter Enterprise Zone Proposed Land Uses ......................................................3

5

The Former Swan Hunter Ship Yard Local Development Order Site...................................4

6

Land Use, Planning History and Surrounding Area ................................................................5

7

Planning Policy Context ..............................................................................................................7

8

Potential Constraints ...................................................................................................................7

9

Justification for Creating the LDO..............................................................................................8

10

Description of Development Granted Planning Permission .............................................10

11

Statement of Policies that the LDO will implement ...........................................................11

12

Lifetime and Monitoring of the LDO.....................................................................................11

13

Development Requirements .................................................................................................11

14

Other Statutory Requirements .............................................................................................12

15

Submission and Notification process ..................................................................................13

Diagram 1 - The Former Swan Hunter Ship Yard Local Development Order ...........................15
Table 1 .............................................................................................................................................18
Table 2 .............................................................................................................................................19
Appendix 1 ......................................................................................................................................28
Appendix 2 ......................................................................................................................................30
Appendix 3 ......................................................................................................................................31

Page 126

1.

Introduction

1.1

In 2011 the Government announced 24 Enterprise Zones (EZs), with the
North Bank of the River Tyne being declared an EZ in 2014. The EZ for the
North Bank of the River Tyne covers three sites, the former Neptune and
Swan Hunter Ship Yard sites and the designated Port of Tyne area.

1.2

The North East Local Enterprise Partnership (NELEP) has produced a
Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) that identifies four key areas of growth. These
are Digital, Advanced Manufacturing, Health and Life Sciences and Energy.
To achieve the SEPs ambition it identifies five programmes of delivery:
Business growth
Innovation
Skills, employment, inclusion and progression
Transport connectivity
Investment and infrastructure

1.3

Enterprise Zones (EZ) are hosted by their Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP),
which for the North East is the North East Local Enterprise Partnership
(NELEP). A business within an EZ can access time limited financial incentives
(which have now expired on the three North Bank sites) such as business rate
discounts and also benefit from simplified planning decisions through a Local
Development Order (LDO).

1.4

The LDO was revised by North Tyneside Council in 2022.

2.

Rationale

2.1

The Enterprise Zone initiative is intended to support and attract investment in
key sectors which have been identified as having potential for growth. In North
Tyneside the Former Swan Hunter Ship Yard site has been identified as
appropriate for Enterprise Zone status,.

2.2

The Former Swan Hunter Ship Yard LDO extends beyond the boundary of the
Enterprise Zone, in order to facilitate greater flexibility for businesses and
encourage the development of supply chain companies within existing
buildings.

1

Page 127

2.3

The Council and is committed to tackling climate change and the NELEP is
seeking to support investment in sub-sea technologies, energy generation
and zero carbon transport. The LDO will aim to support these industries as a
low carbon Enterprise Zone.

2.4

Advanced manufacturing, especially the automotive sector and the energy
sectors are the key areas identified by NELEP. The LDO would also support
sectors involved in the servicing of existing oil and gas markets whilst
developing future growth in offshore renewable energy and sub-sea
technology that are seen as key areas of future growth with the Dogger Bank
Wind Farm Operation and Maintenance Base locating on the Tyne.

2.5

The North East’s strong industrial base and wide-ranging engineering skills
are key factors in supporting industries in these developments. This includes
research expertise in the marine sector; excellent port facilities for survey
work and the sub-assembly and servicing of offshore sites. The site is a
suitable size, with river frontage access that allows the assembly of large
components. The aim is to capitalise on the potential of the site for the needs
of the energy sector and boost international trade.

2.6

As such, the following key opportunities have been identified in relation to
businesses directly operating on the site in the following sectors and for
companies directly within the supply chain of these sectors:
-

Energy industries (included but not limited to oil and gas and
renewables);
Offshore, technology, marine and sub-sea;
Manufacturing, construction and engineering; and/or
Research and Development related to any of the above sectors.

3.

Simplifying Planning on Enterprise Zones

3.1

A requirement of the EZ designation is that planning controls are ‘simplified’
and provide an added incentive for the area.

3.2

An LDO will enable development that supports the aims and objectives of the
EZ to be undertaken without the need to apply for planning permission
providing the development is carried out in accordance with established
design guidance and conditions.

2

Page 128

3.3

The conditions listed in the LDO provide a high degree of certainty to
developers and investors who can understand from the outset what issues
need to be addressed when delivering development on site and reducing
costs through planning.

3.4

LDOs do not remove the need to obtain other statutory consents such as
Building Regulations approval, consents under Highways Legislation, Listed
Building or Scheduled Monument Consents, Health and Safety Executive
consents etc.

3.5

LDOs are an established part of the planning system having been introduced
through the Town and Country Planning Act (1990). Their roles and functions
have been revised through subsequent legislation as follows:
-

Sections 61A‐D and Schedule 4A to the Town and Country Planning Act,
1990, (as amended);
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004;
Section 188 of the Planning Act 2008; and the
Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure)
(England) Order 2010 (as amended).
Town and Country Planning (Development Management
Procedure)(England) Order 2015

3.6

Developments within the LDO area that do not fall within the specified criteria
or do not meet the conditions or development requirements may still be
suitable but will be subject to the normal planning process.

3.7

The LDO does not affect permitted development rights that exist under the
General Permitted Development Order (GPDO) 2015 (as amended) nor any
local or private Act of Parliament.

4.

The Swan Hunter Enterprise Zone Proposed Land
Uses

4.1

The site is allocated within the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) for the
following uses
(B1) Offices, research and development of products and processes,
light industry appropriate in a residential area;
(B2) General Industry
and;
(B8) Storage and Distribution
3

Page 129

4.2

In September 2020, the Government updated the Town and Country Planning
(Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended) with The Town and Country
Planning (Use Classes)(Amendment)(England) Regulations 2020. Whilst B2
and B8 uses have remained the same; B1 use classes has been updated to
the following:
E(g) Uses which can be carried out in a residential area without detriment to
its amenity:
E(g)(i) Offices to carry out any operational or administrative functions,
E(g)(ii) Research and development of products or processes,
E(g)(iii) Industrial processes

4.3

Proposed Business Sectors of the revised LDO replicates the sectors in the
previous LDO and has a focus on manufacturing and engineering: Energy
Industries (included but not limited to Oil & Gas and Renewables);
-

Offshore, technology, Marine and Sub-Sea;
Manufacturing, Construction and Engineering; and/or
Research and Development related to any of the above sectors:

5

History of the Site

5.1

Swan Hunter and the surrounding land have been subject of a long history of
different industrial uses linked with coal mining and chemical works since at
least the late eighteenth century. Swans was first recorded as being used for
ship building in 1873. It was officially taken over by the CS Swan and Hunter
ship building company in 1880 and was the centre of a successful ship
building industry in Wallsend for the next 100 years.

5.2

Wallsend itself was originally centred around the Roman Fort of Segedunum
which formed the final defensive emplacement along Hadrian’s Wall and
forms part of a UNESCO World Heritage Site. The line of the Branch Wall to
the Hadrian’s Wall and other Roman features have been identified on the
Swan Hunter site from previous archaeological investigations.

5.3

As a result of a decline in ship orders the yards were closed in 2007 and
subsequently purchased by North Tyneside Council with support from One
North East in 2009. The surrounding buildings have been used for a range of
industrial purposes originally associated with Carville Station and other river
related activities.

5.4

After acquiring the site, the Council secured funding from the European
Regional Development Fund, Homes and Communities Agency and North
East Local Enterprise Partnership to assist with demolition, new roads and
utilities and quay improvements.
4

Page 130

5.5

The works included junction improvements to Hadrian Road and Buddle
Street and a new, stronger bridge at Benton Way. Internal roads were also
constructed along with a heavy load link road to the Oceana Business
Park. Extensive demolition was carried out to provide cleared development
plots across the site.

5.6

At the quay, phase one repairs to the West Quay were completed and the
river berths were dredged to between 7.5m and 9.1m deep.

5.7

Part of the Swans site has been sold to WD Close Engineering Limited in
2013 who subsequently developed fabrication units and has grown as a
fabricator to the offshore energy and other sectors.

5.8

The completion of the deep-water dredge and road infrastructure that has
enabled local businesses to use the quay for load outs of offshore energy
structures and machinery, such as subsea ploughs.

5.9

The Swans Centre for Innovation (CFI) opened in 2016 and now provides five
floors of office floor space plus meeting space targeting the offshore energy,
subsea and marine sectors.

5.10

In December 2020 the Council sold the site to Shepherd Offshore Limited,
which intends to bring forward redevelopment of the site as Swans Energy
Park and attract businesses in the offshore, subsea, marine and energy
sectors to the site. At the same time the Council also sold the East Quay to
WD Close Engineering Limited enabling the business to directly manage load
outs from this quay.

6.

Description of the Site and Surrounding Area

6.1

The LDO site forms part of the River Tyne North Bank corridor stretching from
the Offshore Technology Park in Walker to the International Ferry Terminal in
North Shields (covered in Policy S2.1 and AS2.5 of the North Tyneside Local
Plan., 2017). The corridor is currently characterised by a variety of land-uses
including pockets of strategic employment uses, adjacent to under-utilised
land, quayside and infrastructure uses.

6.2

The site has direct access to the A187 road. This provides a heavy load route
linking directly to the north – south A19 (T) and the Tyne Tunnel river
crossings located close to the east. The site has excellent public transport
links, located immediately adjacent to the Tyne and Wear Metro Wallsend
Station and bus interchange. The site lies approximately 350 metres to the
south of the Wallsend shopping centre. The Hadrian’s Way cycle path runs
east - west along the Hadrian’s Cycleway (NCNR72) and lies immediately to
the north of the site.
5

Page 131

6.3

Immediately adjacent on the south west boundary of the site (which also
forms the Borough boundary with Newcastle City Council) is the former
Neptune Ship Yard now the Neptune Energy Park. The Neptune Yard is
another designated Enterprise Zone of the NELEP. To the north east along
the river bank, is the Oceana Business Park which consists of a variety of
industrial and commercial units accommodating a range of small scale office
and manufacturing uses.

6.4

To the north of the A187 are residential properties in Carville Road, Praetorian
Drive and Station Road. There is also a small terrace of Victorian houses
located to the north east of the site known as Carville Station Cottages. There
is a small retail park located to the north of these cottages and to the north
east lies Newcastle College’s Energy Academy.

6.5

The site of the Former Swan Hunter Ship Yard is comprised of four relatively
distinct parcels of land (see Diagram 1).

6.6

Carville Works and Old Jointing School - The eastern portion of the Former
Swan Hunter site, which includes the group of buildings formerly known as the
Carville Works and Carville Electricity substations, the Old Jointing Schools
and land to the north west of the Old Jointing School. This is now mostly
occupied by WD Close Engineering, a fabricator serving the offshore energy
sector.

6.7

Segedunum Business Centre and Former Carville Goods Yard - Land to
the north of Swan Hunter and beyond the Hadrian Way cycle path includes
the former Carville Station Goods Yard and the Segedunum Business Centre.
(This site fronts onto Buddle Street and abuts the small terrace of houses of
Carville Station Cottages on the east, west and south).

6.8

Davy Bank River Frontage - The Workshops and offices sited at the river
frontage for Davy Bank is largely occupied by SMD.

6.9

Main Swan Hunter’s Site - The main portion of the Former Swan Hunter site
has two distinct levels created by infill, on which the upper terrace has been
built over. There is a general shallow fall towards the River Tyne which lies to
the immediate southeast of the site. The areas surrounding the site fall at a
steeper angle towards the River Tyne, suggesting earthworks have taken
place on the site to form a suitable flat and level working area. The river
frontage includes the west quay and the heavy loadout ‘steel quay’.

6

Page 132

6.10

The Segedunum Business Centre and adjoining land is a two storey
temporary office building. The adjoining land to the east is hard surfaced and
has been previously used as an overflow car park for Swan Hunters.

6.11

The Carville Works site is occupied by a range of single two and three storey
industrial buildings, workshops and electricity substation buildings. It is mostly
occupied by WD Close Engineering The site is enclosed to the north by a
steep wooded embankment probably created as a consequence of land fill.

7

Planning Policy Context

7.1

Planning authorities have a statutory requirement to prepare development
plans covering the whole of their area. The North Tyneside Local Plan
(NTLP), was formally adopted by the Council in July 2017.

7.2

North Tyneside Local Plan The land identified for the LDO is allocated within
the NTLP for B1 (Office, Light Industrial and Research and Development)
(now part of the wider definition of the E class), B2 (General Industrial) and B8
(Storage and Distribution) uses within Policy S2.2 Provision of Land for
Employment Development (the LDO includes sites E034, E037 and E039).

7.3

Policy AS2.5 River Tyne North Bank draws upon the evidence of the River
Tyne North Bank Strategic Framework that would support and encourage
development and investment in the advanced engineering, manufacturing and
renewables sector with particular focus upon the Former Swan Hunter
shipyard, part of the North East Low Carbon Enterprise Zone.

7.4

Policy AS2.5 and AS8.1 stress the importance of retaining the River Tyne
frontage as this is a valuable resource enabling economic growth, investment
and regeneration to support advanced engineering, research and
development particularly in renewable and marine off-shore manufacturing
and sub-sea technologies.

7.5

Policy AS2.5 is identified in the Local Plan as having the potential to cause
adverse impacts on internationally protected wildlife sites and the conditions
listed in Table 2 would need to be implemented where appropriate.

8

Potential Constraints

8.1

Flood Risk - The Environment Agency have confirmed that the majority of the
proposed development is within Flood Zone 1 with a ‘low risk’ (less than 1 in
1000 annual probability) of river or sea flooding.
7

Page 133

8.2

However, the areas immediately adjacent to the River Tyne are within Flood
Zone 2, an area at ‘medium risk’ of flooding and Flood Zone 3 an area of high
risk flooding. It is noted there are no existing flood defences in the vicinity of
the site.

8.3

NWL have also confirmed that there is no risk of flooding from these existing
drainage runs thorough the site.

8.4

Contaminated Soils and Ground Gas - As a result of the previous uses on the
site and following investigations it is known that there are concentrations of
contamination within some of the underlying ground. Remedial measures may
be required and further assessments necessary with remediation being agreed
with the Local Authority, the Environment Agency and Historic England.

8.5

The existence of made up ground on the site means that gas protection
measures are likely to be required on at least part of the site. Further gas
monitoring will need to be undertaken to give a better indication of potential
risks.

8.6

Residential Amenity - The nearest residential properties lie to the north east at
Carville Station Cottages on Hadrian Road, and there is further housing on the
northern side of Buddle Street beyond Segedunum Fort. Conditions may limit
noisier activities close to the northern boundary of the Former Swan Hunter
Former Ship Yard.

8.7

Archaeology - Due to its proximity to Segedunum Roman Fort it is possible that
archaeological remains may be present which could be uncovered during future
development. Archaeological conditions for excavations will apply to the site.
They will require that pre-development works are undertaken to ensure that
nationally important archaeological remains are protected and retained on site.
Other investigations will be necessary to evaluate, excavate and record other
remains as appropriate.

9

Justification for Creating and Revising the LDO

9.1

The following paragraphs outline the required justification for extending and
updating the LDO.

9.2

As part of its commitment to economic recovery and growth, the Government
introduced Enterprise Zones to stimulate private sector investment and support
business development. Two key components of Enterprise Zones are the
provision of financial incentives to support investment and simplifying the
8

Page 134

planning system. An LDO is considered to be the most appropriate mechanism
for the Former Swan Hunter Ship Yard.
9.3

This amended and updated LDO will allow sustainable development to be
undertaken without the need to apply for planning permission provided it
complies with specified development requirements and conditions.

9.4

The revised LDO reflects changes in legislation, such as permitted
development rights and extends the timeframe until 2032. In exempting certain
development from the need to apply for planning permission, developers will
save on planning application costs and the time required to process
applications. Developers will also benefit from receiving a greater degree of
certainty that they can proceed, as permission is granted provided they meet
the agreed conditions and development requirements. An overriding objective
of the LDO is to deliver new economic growth rather than result in the
‘displacement’ of existing businesses onto the site. It is for this reason that the
LDO will specifically seek and facilitate the relocation of companies that are
actively seeking to increase their existing businesses or expand and develop
into the designated business sectors. A condition to achieve this objective is
set out within the Order itself.

9.5

The associated Enterprise Zone initially benefits from Business Rate Discounts
for a limited period and 100% enhanced capital allowances, which is tax relief
to tax relief to businesses making large investments in plant and machinery.

9.6

The business sectors proposed for the LDO will attract investment, in areas
identified as growth sectors; contributing towards the aim of creating a more
diversified and inclusive economy. Ultimately it will be to the discretion of the
Local Planning Authority as to whether a proposed business is deemed to fall
within one of the four business sectors.

9.7

The types of businesses identified in the LDO are restricted to the following
specific business sectors:
The manufacture and maintenance of plant and machinery and parts for:
-

Energy Industries (included but not limited to Oil & Gas and
Renewables);
Offshore, technology, Marine and Sub-Sea;
Manufacturing, Construction and Engineering; and/or
Research and Development related to any of the above sectors.

9

Page 135

10

Description of Development Granted Planning
Permission

10.1
The Local Development Order (LDO) grants planning permission,
exclusively for buildings and associated development relating to:
E(g) Uses which can be carried out in a residential area without
detriment to its amenity:
-E(g)(i) Offices to carry out any operational or administrative
functions,
-E(g)(ii) Research and development of products or processes,
-E(g)(iii) Industrial processes
Certain (B2) General Industry (excluding incineration purposes,
chemical treatment or landfill of hazardous or inert waste),
Specifically related to the following business sectors:
Energy Industries (included but not limited to Oil & Gas and
Renewables);
Offshore, technology, Marine and Sub-Sea;
Manufacturing, Construction and Engineering; and/or
Research and Development related to any of the above sectors.
10.2

Providing that:
The development falls into one or more of the business types
identified in
Table 1, and;
The Development Requirements and Conditions identified in Table 2
are satisfied,
Submissions are made to the Local Planning Authority by 19th
November 2032.
The LDO would apply to the land identified in Diagram 1.

10.3

The LDO does not permit changes of use between use classes or from a
different land use within the same use class to any use which is not
10

Page 136

specifically identified in the LDO. If a change of this nature is proposed a
planning application would be required. The purpose of the restriction is to
support development in these key growth sectors and to restrict any uses
which may be detrimental or inappropriate to this location.

11

Statement of Policies that the LDO will implement

11.1

The LDO supports the implementation of existing strategies, plans and policies
at a national, regional and local level. The relevant policies are listed below:
National Planning Policy
National Planning Policy Framework (2021, as amended)
Local Planning Policy
All Relevant policies within the North Tyneside Local Plan 2017

12

Lifetime and Monitoring of the LDO

12.1

The LDO has been in place since the 20th November 2012 and was due to
expire on the 19th November 2022. The Council is exercising its right to revise
the LDO and modify the criteria and conditions. The LDO will now expire on the
19th November 2032 as a result of the amendments.

12.2

Once the LDO expires on the 19th November 2032, the Local Planning
Authority will have three options available:
Extend the LDO under the same criteria and conditions;
Revise the LDO and modify the criteria and conditions; or
Revoke the LDO and return to the established planning system.

12.3

Any development which has commenced under the provision of the LDO will
be allowed to be completed within a reasonable time period (no less than two
years unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local planning Authority), in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the LDO.

12.4

The LDO will be subject to continuous annual monitoring to assess its
effectiveness in achieving economic growth objectives; ensuring development
is appropriate. The full details of the monitoring framework are set out in

11

Page 137

Appendix 1. The monitoring information will be incorporated in the Annual
Monitoring Report.

13

Development Requirements

13.1

Taking into consideration the location of the site, existing and proposed users
and also the need to take into account existing constraints including the
impact of any heritage assets and the protection of the amenity of nearby
residential areas, it is imperative that any new development be in accordance
with the requirements and conditions set out in Tables 1 and 2 identified for
the LDO.

13.2

In summary these seek to secure:
-

Appropriate surface water and sewer drainage infrastructure;
Adequate access, parking and road infrastructure;
Development that does not generate inappropriate levels of noise and
disturbance;
Development that effectively deals with any on-site contamination;
Adequately protect, evaluate or record any heritage assets;
Protect and reinforce landscape planting along the Hadrian Way cycle
path.

13.3

Some uses and businesses may not be appropriate on the Former Swan
Hunter Ship Yard site due to the nature of the development in relation to
identified constraints on the site. Uses that are not named in the four business
sector definition criteria would need to seek planning permission in the usual
manner. The business type criteria are defined in Table 1 in the LDO

14

Other Statutory Requirements

14.1

Whilst the LDO grants planning permission for certain types of development at
the Former Swan Hunter Ship Yard, it does not grant other consents that may
be required under other legislation. It will remain the responsibility of the
developers to ensure that all other statutory requirements beyond the scope
of the planning system are adhered to.

14.2

Although not an exhaustive list, particular attention is drawn to the following
relevant legislation:

14.3

European
Directive 92/43/EEC (Habitats)
12

Page 138

Directive 85/337/EEC (amended by Directive 97/11/EC) (Environmental
Impact Assessment)
14.4

National
Factories Act 1961
The Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 and associated regulations;
Ancient Monuments and Archaeological Areas Act 1979
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981
The Conservation (Natural Habitats, &c.) Regulations 1994
Building Regulations Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous
Occurrences Regulations 1995
The Planning Act 1990 (Hazardous Substances) Environmental Protection Act
1990 and associated regulations
Control of Major Accident Hazards Regulations 1991
The Planning Regulations 1992 (Hazardous Substances)
The Highways Act 1980 and associated regulations
Control of Substances Hazardous to Health Regulations 2002 (COSHH)
The Town and Country Planning Act 2007 (Control of Adverts) (England)
The Environmental Permitting (England and Wales) Regulations 2010
The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010

14.5

Failure to comply with all applicable and relevant statutory requirements could
result in any development being unlawful and may result in appropriate
enforcement action being taken by the Borough Council and/or other
agencies. It is the responsibility of the developer/development to be in
accordance with all relevant legislation.

15

Submission and Notification process

15.1

Prior to the commencement of development on site, all relevant plans and
information will be required to be submitted to the Local Planning Authority in
order to make an assessment of conformity with the LDO. The Local Planning
Authority reserves the right to request a fee for consideration of this submission.
A form clarifying the submission requirements can be found in Appendices 2
and 3. Within 28 days of valid receipt of all necessary information the Local
Planning Authority will provide a response in writing, this response will state
whether:
a) the proposed development is in conformity with the Local Development
Order;
b) further information is required to determine whether the proposed
development is in conformity with the Local Development Order; or

13

Page 139

c) the proposed development is not in conformity with the Local Development
Order
15.2

If further information is required to make an assessment and a decision cannot
be reached within 28 days, the Local Planning Authority will seek to agree an
extension of time with the applicant. Should minor changes be required to
ensure compliance with the LDO, where feasible the Local Planning Authority
will endeavour to seek amendments with the applicant, rather than issue a
response of non-conformity. Again, this may require an extension of time which
will be agreed with the applicant.

15.3

Should it be agreed in writing that development complies with the Local
Development Order; the developer will be required to satisfactorily discharge
any outstanding planning conditions contained in this LDO to be agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The developer is also required to notify
the Council in writing of their intention to start works on site 28 days prior to
commencement; in order to monitor progress, ensure continued compliance
and evaluate outcomes.

15.4

A developer submission form relating to this LDO can be found in Appendices
2 and 3.

14

Page 140

Diagram 1 - The Former Swan Hunter Ship Yard Local Development Order

Page 141
1

Table 1
Former Swan Hunter Ship Yard Local Development Order
Within the Former Swan Hunter Ship Yard site identified on the attached plan
(Diagram 1), planning permission is granted, exclusively for the following land
use, buildings and associated development for:
E(g) Uses which can be carried out in a residential area without detriment to
its amenity:
-E(g)(i) Offices to carry out any operational or administrative functions,
-E(g)(ii) Research and development of products or processes,
-E(g)(iii) Industrial processes
(B2) General Industry (excluding incineration purposes, chemical treatment or
landfill or hazardous or inert waste),
Providing that:
The development falls into one or more of the following business sectors;
Energy Industries (included but not limited to Oil & Gas and Renewables);
Offshore, technology, Marine and Sub-Sea;
Manufacturing, Construction and Engineering; and/or
Research and Development related to any of the above sectors.
and;
The Development requirements and conditions identified in Table 2
are satisfied,
and;
the proposed business use/occupier does not represent a “Displaced” *
operator/business/occupier.
and;
The submission of details for any necessary conditions are made to the
Local Planning Authority by 19th November 2032.
* “Displaced” in this context excludes any operator business or occupier which
is a new business;
or
a) It is an existing business from outside the region of Tyne and Wear;
18

Page 142

or
iii) The operator business or occupier provides a business case for, evidencing
growth of the business over the previous years, projecting growth over the
coming years and demonstrating why and how additional floor space and staff
requirements are needed and how they will be utilised on the Former Swan
Hunter Ship Yard site.

Table 2
Justification

Condition 1
Any proposed development shall two months
prior to the commencement of that
development, make a request for an
Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA)
screening opinion under the Town and
Country Planning (Environmental Impact
Assessment) (England and Wales)
Regulations 2017 and a screening opinion
under The Conservation of Habitats and
Species Regulations 2017 (or any
subsequent amended legislation) to the Local
Planning Authority.
Should the screening opinion find the
proposed development is EIA development,
or is likely to have a significant effect on a
European site or a European offshore marine
site (either alone or in combination with other
plans or projects); no development shall be
commenced and a planning application and
an appropriate Environmental Assessment
will be required.

Reason
In order to comply with Part 1 Section 3
of The Town and Country Planning
(Environmental Impact Assessment)
Regulations 2017 The Conservation of
Habitats and Species Regulations 2017,
which prohibit the granting planning
permission or subsequent consent, for
development without consideration of
environmental information or which has a
significant affect upon a European Site
or a European Offshore Marine Site (As
defined by The Conservation of Habitats
and Species Regulations 2017.)

Details of the information required is set out in
Appendix 2

Development Requirements

Justification
19

Page 143

Scale

Condition 2
Height
No development shall exceed 40 metres
above O.D.

Reason
In order to limit the impact upon the
adjoining World Heritage site, protect the
amenities of the adjacent residents and
respect the scale, character and
appearance of the existing area.

No development shall exceed 25 metres
above O.D. (approximately 2 storeys above
existing ground level) at the northern
boundary of the Main Swan Hunter’s
Site identified on Diagram 1 adjacent to
Segedunum Fort and Museum.
No development shall exceed 30 metres
above O.D. (approximately 3 to 4 storeys
above existing ground level) in height within
18 metres of the northern boundary of the
Main Swan Hunter’s Site identified on
Diagram 1 as Segedunum Business Centre
And Former Carville Goods Yard, adjacent to
Segedunum Fort and Museum.
No development shall exceed 36 metres
above O.D. (approximately 5 storeys above
existing ground level) within 31 metres of the
boundary with the properties at Carville
Station Cottages or exceed 31 metres above
O.D. (approximately 3 storeys above existing
ground level) in height within 21 metres of the
boundary with those properties.
No development within the area identified as
the Segedunum Business Centre and Former
Carville Goods Yard on Diagram 1 shall
exceed 32 metres above O.D. (approximately
3 storeys above existing ground level) in
height.

Transport and Highways

Justification

Condition 3
Parking and Access

Reason

20

Page 144

For any development where the provision
of access vehicular, pedestrian and cycling
parking and transport facilities are not in
accordance with the North Tyneside
Council’s Supplementary Planning
Document LDD12 “Highways and
Transportation”, (or any adopted document
revoking or re-enacting that document), an
evidence base demonstrating that
accessibility and parking management
proposed will not have a detrimental affect
on the adjacent highway safety, shall be
submitted to and agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority prior to the
commencement of development. The
development will also comply with the
guidance contained in the publications
Transport in the Urban Environment and
Design Manual for Roads and Bridges and
any departure from these standards will
require the approval in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

In the interest of highway safety and to
minimise danger, obstruction and
inconvenience to users of the adjoining
highway.

Condition 4
Transport Assessment
For any development in excess of the gross
internal floorspace thresholds below, a
Transport Assessment including an agreed
timetable for the implementation of any
mitigation measures considered necessary,
shall be submitted to and agreed in writing
by the Local Planning Authority
prior to the commencement of
development.

Reason
In the interest of highway safety and to
minimise danger, obstruction and
inconvenience to users of the adjoining
highway.

Thereafter the measures identified within
that Transport Assessment shall be
undertaken in accordance with the agreed
timetable.
Floor Space
E(g)(i)(ii)(iii) >2,500m²
B2 >4,000m²

21

Page 145

The Transport Assessment shall be
undertaken in accordance with North
Tyneside Council’s Supplementary
Planning Document LDD12 “Highways and
Transportation”, (or any adopted document
revoking or re-enacting that document)
Archaeology

Justification

Condition 5
Archaeological Evaluation and Mitigation
Prior to the commencement of any
groundworks or development, a programme
of archaeological evaluation works shall
be completed in accordance with a
specification provided by the Local Planning
Authority. The work shall be undertaken by a
suitably qualified archaeologist who will
supervise those works on site.

Reason
In order to ensure that developers
submit sufficient information to enable
the authority to properly assess the
archaeological interest of the site, to
conserve any heritage assets identified
in a manner appropriate to their
significance, and to comply with
National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF).

The programme shall set out those measures
to be undertaken if during any excavation or
development works any archaeological assets
are identified, including notification of the
Local
Planning Authority and Historic England, and
measures for the interim protection of those
archaeological assets.
Following the preliminary archaeological
evaluation set out above, one of the following
mitigation measures shall be undertaken fully
and only in accordance with a detailed
scheme that must be submitted to and agreed
in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

A If nationally important heritage assets* are
found, the developer shall submit a scheme
for the necessary protection of those
assets, detailing the design of any pilings
or foundations and including a timetable for
the implementation of the protection
22

Page 146

measures. Thereafter the works on site
shall be undertaken only be in accordance
with the programme previously agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

B. If heritage assets of less than national
importance* are found, the developer shall
submit to, and agree in writing with the
Local Planning Authority, a detailed
programme. This programme will identify a
written scheme of Investigation drawn-up
by the developer for the prior
archaeological excavation and recording of
those assets and detailing the design of
any pilings or foundations of any
development. Thereafter the
archaeological investigation and the
construction details for the development
shall be undertaken only in accordance
with the approved programme.

C. If heritage assets of local importance are
encountered then the following measures
shall be taken; prior to further works being
undertaken, the developer shall submit to,
and agree in writing with the Local Planning
Authority, a detailed scheme of
Investigation of those assets by means of a
Watching Brief or further
excavation/investigation. The watching
brief and written scheme of investigation
shall be undertaken in full and only in
accordance with the agreed scheme.
Condition 6
Archaeological Post Excavation Report
Following the undertaking of the
archaeological investigations as set out in
condition 6, which are to be undertaken to the
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority in
consultation Historic England, the building(s)
structures hereby allowed shall not be
occupied/brought into use until the final report
of the results of all phases of the
23

Page 147

archaeological fieldwork has been submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.
Condition 7
Archaeological Publication Report
Within six months of the occupation of the
development hereby allowed, a report at the
expense of the developer, detailing the results
of the archaeological fieldwork undertaken
shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The report
shall be produced in a form suitable for
publication in an appropriate and agreed
journal, prior to submission to the editor of the
journal.
*Nationally Important Heritage Asset as
prescribed in Annex 1: Criteria for assessing
the national importance of monuments within
DCMS “Scheduled Monuments” March 2010
Flood Risk

Justification

Condition 8
1 in 200 year flood level risk event
Any development within the area designated
as flood zone 3 (as shown on the
Environment Agency’s flood map) shall
incorporate finished floor levels set at the 1 in
200 year flood risk event level, including an
allowance for climate change for the lifetime
of the development and 600mm freeboard.

Reason
This will ensure that that threat as a
result of potential flood risk is properly
addressed and takes into account the
requirements of government advice
contained within National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF)

Prior to the use of any development in flood
zone 3, flood emergency procedures shall be
submitted to and agreed by North Tyneside
Council. This should demonstrate that safe
access and egress route(s) can be provided
from the site in a flood event, and should
include an emergency evacuation plan.
(For Information Only)
It is strongly recommended that other flood
resilient construction measures, such as
24

Page 148

barriers on ground floor doors, windows and
access points and bringing in electrical
services into the building at a high level so
that plugs are located above possible flood
levels, are included within any development.)

Sustainable Urban Drainage

Condition 9
SUDs
The Surface Water Drainage will utilise
Sustainable Drainage methods and where
possible incorporate habitat creation in the
design. All new drainage will be designed to
protect and accommodate any existing
drainage and sewer infrastructure, including
provisions for physical inspection and
maintenance. All new drainage will be
designed and constructed to a standard to
allow adoption by the relevant infrastructure
body.

Reason
To ensure adequate drainage is provided
in accordance with the advice in National
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

(For Information Only)
Early consultation with Northumbrian Water
Ltd, the Environment Agency, Historic
England Heritage and North Tyneside
Council, as a minimum, is essential in to
arrange appropriate drainage infrastructure as
part of any development. The Surface Water
Drainage Solutions should work through the
hierarchy of Preference contained within the
Revised Part H of the Building Regulations)

Contamination

Justification

Condition 10
Risk Assessment
Prior to the commencement of development
the following components of a scheme to deal
with the risks associated with contamination
of the site shall be submitted to and approved,
in writing by the local planning authority.
25

Reason
The needs to be pre-commencement as
the land has been subject of
contamination as a result of previous
uses and there is a requirement to
protect the Tyne river from further

Page 149

1) A preliminary risk assessment which has
identified:
-

-

contamination and comply with
European Directives on water pollution.
This condition will ensure that the risks

all previous uses
potential contaminants associated with
those uses
a conceptual model of the site indicating
sources, pathways and receptors
(including heritage assets)
potentially unacceptable risks arising from
contamination at the site.

posed by the site to controlled waters are
assessed and addressed as part of the
redevelopment.

2) A site investigation scheme, based on (1)
to provide information for a detailed
assessment of the risk to all receptors that
may be affected, including those off site.
3) The results of the site
investigation and detailed risk assessment
referred to in (2) and, based on these, an
options appraisal and remediation strategy
giving full details of the remediation measures
required and how they are to be undertaken.
4) A verification plan providing details of the
data that will be collected in order to
demonstrate that the works set out in the
remediation strategy in (3) are complete and
identifying any requirements for longer-term
monitoring of pollutant linkages, maintenance
and arrangements for contingency action.
Any changes to these components require the
express consent of the local planning
authority. The scheme shall be implemented
as approved.

Condition 11
Unidentified Contamination
If during development, contamination not
previously identified is found to be present at
the site then no further development (unless
otherwise agreed in writing with the Local
Planning Authority) shall be carried out until

Reason
Contamination may be discovered during
development that may pose a risk
to controlled waters.
26

Page 150

the developer has submitted, and obtained
written approval from the Local Planning
Authority for, a remediation strategy detailing
how this unsuspected contamination shall be
dealt with. The remediation strategy shall be
implemented as approved.

Amenity

Justification

Condition 12
Noise Generation
Unless otherwise agreed by the Local
Planning Authority no noise generated by the
development must exceed the rating level
measured in accordance with BS
4142:2014+A12019 at nearest residential
premises to the rear façade of Carville
Cottages:

Reason
To protect the amenity of the adjacent
residents.

The rating level between the hours of 23:00
hours and 07:00 hours measured over a five
minute period must not exceed 51dB.
The rating level between the hours of 07:00
hours and 23:00 hours measured over a one
hour period must not exceed the 61 dB.
Appearance
Condition 13
Materials
No building works above ground level shall
take place until a schedule and/or samples of
the materials and finishes for the development
has been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority.
Thereafter, the development shall not be
carried out other than in accordance with the
approved details.

Condition 14
Landscaping

Reason
To secure a satisfactory external
appearance.

Reason
27

Page 151

a) Prior to any development within 10 metres
of the Hadrian Cycle Path a landscaping
scheme indicating the treatment of the
boundary with that Path shall be submitted
to and agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

To ensure a satisfactory standard of
landscaping.

b) Full details of other hard and soft
landscaping works within the site to be
developed shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority before the development
commences.
c) All planting, seeding or turfing comprised
in the approved details of landscaping
shall be carried out in the first planting and
seeding seasons following the occupation
of the buildings or the completion of the
development, whichever is the sooner,
and any trees or plants which, within a
period of five years from the completion of
the development, die are removed or
become seriously damaged or diseased,
shall be replaced in the current or first
planting season following their removal or
failure with others of similar size and
species. The landscaping shall be retained
thereafter unless otherwise agreed in
writing with the Local Planning Authority.

Proposed Uses
Condition 15
Use Class
Notwithstanding the provisions of The
Town and Country Planning (Use
Classes) (Amendment) (England)
Regulations 2020, the land and/or
building(s) shall be used only for the
purpose of the businesses sectors
identified within Table 1 and for no other

Reason
To enable the Local Planning Authority
to retain control over the use and to
target development to those industries
best suited to the North Tyne site.

28

Page 152

purpose including any other purpose
within Use Class E(g)(i)(ii)(iii) or B2.
Refuse
Condition 16
Refuse Storage
Prior to construction above ground level
details of facilities to be provided for the
storage of refuse at the premises have
been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The
facilities which should also include the
provision of wheeled refuse bins shall be
provided in accordance with the approved
details, prior to the occupation of any part
of the development and thereafter
permanently retained.

Reason
To ensure that satisfactory provision is
made for the storage of refuse on site

Appendix 1
Monitoring
Indicator Annual Review

Review

Potential Further
Action

1

E(g)(i)(ii)Offices
Research and

Consider Council’s
role as a landowner
to assist
development of site.

No of Businesses Created by Land
Use Type

E(g)(iii)
Development of
products and
Processes

B2 General
Industrial

29

Page 153

2

Area of Land Developed by
Business Sector

Off Shore/Wind
Generation
Tidal/Wave

Consider expanding
/amending business
sector types

Oil Gas Exploration

Advanced subsea
manufacturing

3

No of Full Time Equivalent Jobs
Created

E(g)(i)(ii)(iii)

Establish the nature
and type of
employment

B2
Consider Council’s
role as a landowner
to assist
development of site.

4

No of Full Time Equivalent Jobs
Created by Sector

Off Shore/Wind
Generation
Tidal/Wave

Possible review of
the LDO to allow
more/different
Business sectors
other than those
already identified.

Oil Gas Exploration

Advanced subsea
manufacturing

5

No of Enquiries from Businesses
which do not meet with
requirements of LDO

Significant No of
Enquiries

Possible review of
the LDO to allow
more/different
Business sectors
other than those
already identified.

30

Page 154

6

No. of enforcement actions required
due to non‐compliance

No of Actions

31

Page 155

Establish greater pre
development
controls/requirements

Appendix 2
SCREENING OPINION

1 Two months prior to commencement of any works all developers/businesses shall submit to
the Local Planning Authority a screening opinion under both The Town and Country Planning
Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations 2017 and under The Conservation of Habitats and
Species Regulations 2017.

The request shall be accompanied by
(a) a plan sufficient to identify the land;
(b) a brief description of the nature and purpose of the development and of its possible effects
on the environment; and
(c) such other information or representations as the person making the request may wish to
provide or make.

32

Page 156

Appendix 3
SUBMISSION FORM
Before completing and submitting this notice please ensure that you have read and understood all
the limitations and conditions that apply to your proposed development, including the requirements
regarding occupancy and displacement.
1. Applicant Name and Address
Title
First Name
Last Name
Company (optional)
Address Line 1
Address Line 2
Address Line 3
Town
County
Country
Postcode
Telephone numbers
Country Code National number Extension Number
Country Code Mobile number (optional)
Country Code Fax number (optional)
Email address
2. Agent Name and Address
Title
First Name
Last Name
Company (optional)
Address Line 1
Address Line 2
Address Line 3
Town
County
Country
Postcode
Telephone numbers
Country Code National number Extension Number
Country Code Mobile number (optional)
Country Code Fax number (optional)
Email address

33

Page 157

3. Site Address Details

4 . Description of the Proposal
Please describe the proposed development, including any change of use:

5. Plans demonstrating that the development will not exceed the height restrictions imposed
by the LDO

6. Plans demonstrating that the Parking and Access will accord with North Tyneside
Council’s Supplementary Planning Document LDD12 Highways and Transportation (or any
document or revoking or re-enacting that document)

7. For Eg(i-iii) development greater than 2,500m2 and B2 development greater than 4000m2 a
Transport Assessment undertaken in accordance with the North Tyneside Council’s
Supplementary Planning Document
LDD12 Highways and Transportation (or any document or revoking or re-enacting that
document)

34

Page 158

8. Details of a suitably qualified archaeologist(s) who will be responsible for supervision of
archaeological works on site. (This archaeologist(s) will be present on site at all necessary
times during works, unless a suitable replacement is agreed with the Local Planning
Authority.)

9. Confirmation that development is outside the area defined as flood risk zone 3.

10. For development within the area defined in flood risk zone 3 as shown (on the
Environment Agency’s flood map) details of flood emergency procedures to be provided
under such circumstances.

11. Details of the contaminated land assessment.

12. Details of any external materials to be used.

13. Details of landscaping proposed within 10m of the Hadrian Cycle path and details of
other hard and soft landscaping proposed.

14. Details of wheeled refuse bins and storage of refuse at the premises

15. Landowners Consent
35

Page 159

The landowner’s consent must have been sought prior to submitting this scheme.
Please provide details below:
Name of owner

Address

Date Notice Served on
Owner

16. Site Area by Sector
Use
class/

Total gross
external

Total gross
internal

Type of
use

floorspace
proposed
(sqm)

floorspace
proposed
(sqm)

Off Shore/
Wind
Generation
Tidal/
Wave

Oil Gas
Advanced
Exploration subsea
manufacturing

Total Site
Area

E(g)(i)
Offices to
carry out
any
operation
al or
administra
tive
functions

E(g)(ii)
Research
and
developm
ent of
products
or

36

Page 160

processes
,

E(g)(iii)
Industrial
processes

B2
General
Industrial
Total

17. Employment
Employment by Sector

Full Time

Part Time

Off Shore Wind
Tidal/Wave Generation

Existing employees
if transferring from another
site

Proposed employees
37

Page 161

Total FTE

Oil Gas Exploration

Existing employees
if transferring from another
site

Proposed employees

Advanced Subsea
Manufacturing

Existing employees
if transferring from another
site

Proposed employees

18. Evidence to demonstrate that the proposed business use/occupier does not represent a
“Displaced” * operator/business/occupier.
Please make sure you have sent all the information in support of your proposal:

19. Declaration
I confirm that the information provided in this notice and shown on the associated plans are to be
the best of my knowledge correct at the time of completion and that, with the exception of any minor
variations agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, I consider the proposed works to be
permitted development under the permissions given notice by the above LDO.
38

Page 162

Signed – Applicant:

Or

Signed – Agent:

39

Page 163

Date (DD/MM/YYYY):

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 165

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
North Tyneside Council
Report to Cabinet
Date: 27 June 2022
Title: Cabinet Response to Overview and Scrutiny Home Care
Study Group Report
Portfolio(s):

Adult Social Care

Cabinet Member(s):

Report from Service
Area:
Responsible Officer:

Health Education Care and Safeguarding

Wards affected:

All

Jacqui Old, Director of Children’s and
Adult Services

Cllr A McMullen

Tel: (0191) 643 7317

PART 1
1.1

Executive Summary:
This report sets out a proposed Cabinet response to the actions / recommendations
identified by the Home Care Study Group, which undertook an in-depth review of home
care provision in North Tyneside on behalf of the Adult Social Care, Health and
Wellbeing Sub-Committee of the Overview, Scrutiny and Policy Committee.
The details of the proposed responses are set out in the Appendix to this report.

1.2

Recommendation(s):
It is recommended that Cabinet agrees the proposed response to the recommendations
of the Home Care Study Group of the Adult Social Care. Health and Wellbeing SubCommittee as set out in the Appendix to this report.

1.3

Forward Plan:
Twenty eight days’ notice of this report has been given and it first appeared on the
Forward Plan that was published on 29 April 2022.

1.4

Council Plan and Policy Framework
This report relates to the following priorities in the 2021-2025 Our North Tyneside Plan:
A caring North Tyneside
We will provide great care to all who need it, with extra support available all the
way through to the end of the pandemic

Page 167

We will work with the care provision sector to improve the working conditions of
care workers; People will be cared for, protected and supported if they become
vulnerable, including if they become homeless
1.5

Information:

1.5.1 The Adult Social Care, Health and Wellbeing Sub-Committee originally established the
Home Care Study Group (the Study Group) in early 2020 to review home care provision
in the Borough. The Study Group began the review, but the review was suspended at the
beginning of the Covid 19 pandemic in March 2020. In July 2021, the Adult Social Care,
Health and Wellbeing Sub-Committee agreed to re-establish the Study Group with a
revised remit and membership, and the Study Group began meeting in early October
2021.
1.5.2 The remit of the Study Group was to review the current provision of home care in North
Tyneside and monitor the introduction and progress of the Home Care Pilot, with a view
to:
Understanding whether the provision of Home Care in the borough is currently
meeting the needs of residents;
Identifying those things that are working well and any areas of concern;
Monitoring the implementation of the Health and Care Pilot.
1.5.3 The Study Group received information from officers from the Commissioning Team and
other teams within the Authority, as well as a range of interested parties including home
care providers, front line staff, carers, North Tyneside Carers’ Centre, North Tyneside
Healthwatch, UNISON and the Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care.
1.5.4 A copy of the recommendations and the proposed response to each is set out in the
Appendix to this report.
1.6

Decision options:
The following decision options are available for consideration by Cabinet:
Option 1
Cabinet agrees the response to the recommendations as set out in paragraph 1.2 above.
Option 2
Cabinet does not agree the response to the recommendations as set out in paragraph
1.2 above.
Option 1 is the recommended option as

1.7

Reasons for recommended option:
Option 1 is recommended for the following reasons:
Cabinet has a duty to provide a response to the report and the recommendations
presented to it by the Home Care Study Group of the Adult Social Care, Health and
Wellbeing Sub-Committee. The proposed response is a proportionate and considered
response to the recommendations made by the Study Group in its report.

Page 168

1.8

Appendices:
Appendix – Cabinet response to the recommendations of the home care study group.

1.9

Contact officers:
Scott Woodhouse, Strategic Commissioning Manager Adults, tel 0191 6437082
Claire Emmerson, Senior Manager Financial Strategy and Planning, tel 0191 643 8109

1.10

Background information:
The following background papers/information have been used in the compilation of this
report and are available at the office of the author:
(1) Home Care Study Group report – March 2022

PART 2 – COMPLIANCE WITH PRINCIPLES OF DECISION MAKING
2.1

Finance and other resources
This relates to the budget to deliver the provision of commissioned home care services
across North Tyneside and the resources (staff) needed by the social care sector to
deliver high quality services to meet the needs of people with eligible needs.
As part of the fee increase process from April 2022, Officers have considered options to
ensure there is a sufficient increase to the market to meet additional and new cost
pressures that providers are facing, including wage and other general running costs.
These have historically been linked to the National Living Wage and Consumer Price
Index.
Alongside this, there are capacity issues particularly within the home care sector with
recruitment and retention. A number of initiatives are being considered and put in place
to support providers and the market as a whole. In turn this will assist the wider health
and social care system with capacity to support hospital discharge, reduced short term
and longer-term care home placements. This includes a strategic priority to support
providers to pay their staff a higher wage.
An increase to reflect this priority was put in place and agreed, under the scheme of
delegations, by the Director of Childrens and Adult Services and the Director of
Resources with the Lead Member for Adult Social Care and the Lead Member for
Resources.
Notwithstanding this, it is not planned to implement this across the wider social care or
Authority wide supply chain as this will have significant impacts for the Authority.
The action plan refers to fee increases in April 2022 to enable providers to pay their care
and support staff at least the Real Living Wage, the cost of this will be met from within the
Adult Social Care budget and forms part of the strategy to support recruitment and
retention of staff to support vulnerable people.
In addition to this the Authority is required to undertake a “Fair Cost of Care” exercise
with the local market and providers of home care services. This is to be undertaken over

Page 169

the coming months and information from providers working in North Tyneside fed back to
the Department of Health and Social Care by 14 October 2022. This will give us
information on provider costs in line with the details of the agreed tool and will allow us to
complete a market sustainability plan to ensure we have sufficiency of provision and that
providers are viable and able to deliver high quality services in North Tyneside.
The increase to a Real Living Wage (RLW) for home care staff had not previously been
anticipated when the 2022/23 Budget was agreed by Full Council in February 2022. A
move to the RLW from April 2022 will cause a pressure within the Home Care budget.
This will be monitored closely during the year and the impact of this reported to Cabinet
as part of the bi-monthly budget monitoring reports. The outcome of the Fair Cost of
Care exercise will form the basis of the Authority’s 2023-2027 medium-term financial
planning.
2.2

Legal
In accordance with section 9FE of the Local Government Act 2000, Cabinet is required to
provide a response to the recommendations of the Overview and Scrutiny Report
prepared by the Home Care Study Group of the Adult Social Care, Health and Wellbeing
Sub-Committee. In providing its response Cabinet is required to indicate what (if any)
action it proposes to take.
In undertaking all procurements, the Authority must comply with the Public Contracts
Regulations 2015 and the Authority’s Contract Standing Orders. Therefore, the Authority
must observe these legislative requirements when considering issues related to the living
wage in the procurement process.
The Authority endeavours to take account of price increases in its contracts for different
social care commissioned services, including home care, extra care, care homes,
supported living, day services etc. The contracts do not specify a rate of payment that
providers must pay their staff in the delivery of services and the increase to support
providers to pay staff at least the Real Living Wage is not an accreditation requirement
linked to contract award or service delivery.

2.3

Consultation/community engagement

2.3.1 Internal Consultation
The Study Group met with officers from the Commissioning Team and other teams within
the Authority, as well as some front-line staff from the Reablement Team and the Cabinet
Member for Adult Social Care. Where actions that are set out in the Appendix are being
implemented, consideration of further consultation will be made.
2.3.2 External Consultation/Engagement
The Study Group met with a range of interested parties from outside of the Authority,
including home care providers, individual carers, North Tyneside Carers’ Centre, North
Tyneside Healthwatch, and UNISON. Where actions that are set out in the Appendix are
being implemented, consideration of further consultation will be made.
2.4

Human rights
Cabinet’s response to the Study Group has had regard to Article 8 of the Human Rights
Act 1998 and a person’s right to respect for their family and private life.

Page 170

2.5

Equalities and diversity
Those in receipt of adult social care services may have protected characteristics under
the Equality Act 2010 and those characteristics will be dealt with under the assessment
and support planning arrangements.

2.6

Risk management
The capacity of home care services to meet the needs of vulnerable adults is identified
and monitored in the Authority’s risk register.

2.7

Crime and disorder
There are no crime and disorder issues arising directly from this report.

2.8

Environment and sustainability
There are no environment and sustainability issues arising directly from this report.

PART 3 - SIGN OFF
Chief Executive
Director(s) of Service

X

Mayor/Cabinet Member(s)
Chief Finance Officer

X

Monitoring Officer

X

Assistant Chief Executive

X

Page 171

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix
Cabinet Response to Overview and Scrutiny Recommendations
Completed Action Plan
Home Care Study Report
In accordance with Section 9FE of the Local Government Act 2000, Cabinet is required to provide a response to the recommendations
of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee within 2 months. In providing this response Cabinet are asked to state whether or not it
accepts each recommendation and the reasons for this decision. Cabinet must also indicate what action, if any, it proposes to take.

Page 173

Overview and Scrutiny
Recommendation

Officer Commentary

Cabinet Decision
(Accept or Reject)

Action to be taken (if any) and
timescale for completion

Recommendation 1 – Review the
commissioning process to identify
any areas where the allocation of
care packages can be streamlined
to be more efficient for providers
and to allow packages to be put in
place more quickly.

We are keen to ensure that the
micro commissioning of individual
packages of care is streamlined
and offers providers an efficient run
and delivery of homecare across
the borough. We are working with
providers and the market on this to
identify gaps they may have and
consider how these may be quickly
filled by appropriate packages

Accept

Continued working with the market
and consideration of ideas and other
options that providers may have or
that may be working well in other
areas.

Recommendation 2 – Assess
whether the budget for home care
can be increased to allow the
Authority to pay a higher rate to
providers, and to link this to a
requirement for providers to pay
staff the Real Living Wage.

We have seen a number of
workforce related issues over the
last 12 months that have impacted
on recruitment and retention of
care and support workers. Whilst
there are a number of factors to
this, pay is clearly one when the
wider employment market (retail,
distribution, hospitality) is already
paying higher rates to staff than the
national minimum wage.

Accept, subject to
understanding that
this is not a Real
Living Wage
accreditation
process

Monitor and review the impact of the
fee increase and the capacity of the
home care market and providers to
accept new packages of care from
the brokerage list, and also as part
of hospital discharge arrangements.

Appendix
Overview and Scrutiny
Recommendation

Officer Commentary

Cabinet Decision
(Accept or Reject)

In line with the Scheme of
Delegations, from 1 April 2022, the
service has agreed to increase
rates by a higher percentage to
support providers to be able to pay
their staff the Real Living Wage of
£9.90 per hour. Note this is not an
accreditation process linked to
contract award or service delivery.

Page 174

This is put in place as a direct
result of and alongside other
measures to deal with recruitment
and retention across home care
services. It is a priority for the
service and the Authority to create
capacity within home care to
support people to remain
independent and also to support
hospital discharge.
This is not being implemented
across the wider Adult Social Care
or Authority supply chain.
Recommendation 3 – Integrate the The current home care contract /
following into the next
framework runs to 30 June 2023.
commission/tender process which is As part of pre-procurement work
due to take place in 2023:
the Commissioning Team will be
reviewing the current service
Stronger requirements around
specification and contract
‘quality of care’
requirement and receiving
feedback from clients, carers,

Accept

Action to be taken (if any) and
timescale for completion

Appendix
Overview and Scrutiny
Recommendation

Page 175

the payment of an enhanced
rate for providers who pay staff
the Real Living Wage (subject to
the outcome of recommendation
2).
Support for the provision of
specialist care services through
an increased rate for these
services, including a
requirement for an increased
rate for staff pay
Support innovations in the use of
enabling technologies to
supplement and enhance inperson care services.

Officer Commentary

Cabinet Decision
(Accept or Reject)

Action to be taken (if any) and
timescale for completion

Accept

Commissioning plan for home care
to include innovation and a review of
different models of service delivery.

providers, partner agencies to
inform the new contract /
framework to be let from 1 July
2023.
These areas will be considered as
part of the process. The current
enhanced / specialist element of
the service relates to continuing
health care packages which are
funded by the Clinical
Commissioning Group.
We are keen to ensure that
different forms of assistive
technology are in place and form
part of the solution to support
people in their own homes.

Recommendation 4 – Review
innovations in other Local Authority
areas to develop a longer-term plan
for the commissioning of home care
over the next 4-year procurement
cycle. This should include revisiting business models for
alternative options for the delivery
of home care services, including inhouse provision, to consider
whether any would now be viable.

See response to recommendation
3 in relation to innovation and
review of options as part of the
review work in advance of any
procurement exercise.

Recommendation 5 – Review
training for social work teams to

There are different approaches in
place for people funded by the

Review previous work on internal
service delivery.

Work was undertaken in 2018 to
look at the cost of internal delivery
and if it was viable to set up an
internal home care service. At this
time the cost was not competitive
and was not progressed.
Accept

Appendix
Overview and Scrutiny
Recommendation

Officer Commentary

ensure there is consistency across
the commissioning process and ongoing support and advice provided
to clients and their families /
informal carers.

Local Authority and for self-funded
people supported by the Local
Authority.

Cabinet Decision
(Accept or Reject)

Action to be taken (if any) and
timescale for completion

Accept

Impact to be reviewed and options
considered for further local
campaign as part of Social Care
Workforce Strategy.

We will ensure the advice and
information is clear and accurate
and that social work staff are
sighted on this and can share the
appropriate advice and information
with clients and carers as
appropriate.

Page 176

We will ensure staff are sighted on
all options available to people
funded through the Local Authority
and also self-funding clients that
request support from the Local
Authority.
Recommendation 6 – Review the
impact of the current marketing
campaign in support of recruitment
to the Care Sector and to continue
to review the support the Council is
able to provide in this area.

The national social care
recruitment campaign delivered by
DHSC ran earlier this year and
provided a range of materials and
advertising to support recruitment
and retention in social care.
In addition to this, the Local
Authority complimented the
national campaign with local media
and advertising. This was funded
through the Workforce Recruitment
and Retention Fund that was in
place up to 31 March 2022.

Appendix

Page 177

Overview and Scrutiny
Recommendation

Officer Commentary

Cabinet Decision
(Accept or Reject)

Action to be taken (if any) and
timescale for completion

Recommendation 7 – Work with
further education colleges, care
providers and the North of Tyne
Combined Authority to develop the
Care Academy model to provide a
route for trained and job-ready
applicants to enter the care sector.

We have started work on the
development of a local North
Tyneside Social Care Academy to
support recruitment and retention
into social care work.

Accept

Social Care Academy work is
progressing, ensure this is linked to
Social Care Workforce Strategy (see
recommendation 8).

Recommendation 8 – Develop a
longer- term work force strategy in
support of the care sector.

A workforce strategy to support
recruitment and retention in the
social care sector is being
developed in conjunction with
social care providers

Accept

Social Care Workforce Strategy to
be developed.

Recommendation 9 – Review the
‘My Care’ website to enhance the
information available to families,
particularly self-funders, to help
them to navigate the system,
including signposting information on
private care providers.

We have started review of content
to work on improving and
enhancing information and advice
content within My Care web pages.

Accept

Improvement plan to support
ongoing development and updates
to my care web pages and content.

Recommendation 10 – Promote
the ‘My Care’ website across the
community and in clinical settings to
raise the profile and increase
awareness of the website.

We have recently launched a BSL
introduction to my care video and
have strengthened our links with
interpreting under accessibility.

Accept

Improvement plan to support
ongoing development and updates
to my care web pages and content.

Plan progressing to expand the
Academy and interface with local
providers of social care to identify
new recruits.

We plan to further develop content
in line with changes to legislation
and eligibility criteria, particularly in
relation to white paper publication.

Plans progressing to develop
further videos to support internal

We will continue to attend Living
Well North Tyneside Strategic Group
Meeting and identify further

Appendix
Overview and Scrutiny
Recommendation

Officer Commentary

Cabinet Decision
(Accept or Reject)

and external staff and partners to
promote Mycare.

Action to be taken (if any) and
timescale for completion
opportunities to promote and
develop My Care.

Linking in with Living Well launch
programme and communications to
promote Mycare.
We have established membership
at Living Well NT Strategic Group
meeting to strengthen and develop
links and content.

Page 178

Recommendation 11 – Improve
the support and information that is
made available to families about
finances, costs and benefit
entitlements at an early stage of the
process.

We have undertaken a review of
the adult social care factsheets and
will provide this to clients and
carers where it is appropriate to do
so, this includes costs of services.

Recommendation 12 – Promote
the on-line training material
provided by the North Tyneside
Carers’ Centre to all relevant
council staff and social workers.

Improving the work with carers and
reviews the Ways to Wellbeing
model to include carers – ie Ways
to Carers’ Wellbeing.

Recommendation 13 – Work with
care providers to promote

North Tyneside Carers Centre to
be invited to attend (various)

Accept

The Authority will further review
factsheet content and accessibility to
them, having picked up on the
findings of the Home Care Study
Group.

Where a financial assessment is
completed, they can be signposted
to Department for Work and
Pensions to apply (if there are
potential benefits they may be
entitled to)
Accept

Factsheets to include a link to NT
Carers Centre website.
Accept

Attendance at Provider Forums

Appendix
Overview and Scrutiny
Recommendation

Officer Commentary

information around the role of
carers and provide access to the
training developed by North
Tyneside Carers’ Centre.

Provider Forums to promote the
work they do to support family
carers and share information on
access to training that they have
developed

Recommendation 14 – Review the
availability of respite care for those
who were eligible but unable to
access respite care during the
pandemic, but who may now need
it.

Review arrangements for
commissioning respite care in a
care home setting to ensure
sufficiency of supply.

Page 179

Continue to monitor the needs of
carers and clients where respite
has not been accessed due to the
impact of COVID on the care home
market.

Cabinet Decision
(Accept or Reject)

Accept

Action to be taken (if any) and
timescale for completion

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
North Tyneside Council
Report to Cabinet
Date: 27 June 2022
Title: Cabinet Response to Economic Prosperity Sub-Committee
Report on Green Skills for Retrofit Jobs
Portfolio(s):

Deputy Mayor and
Cabinet Member responsible
for Inclusion, Employment
and Skills
Cabinet Member responsible
for Environment

Report from Service
Area:

Cabinet Member(s):

Councillor Carl
Johnson and
Councillor Hannah
Johnson
Councillor Sandra
Graham

Regeneration, Economic Development and Culture

Responsible Officer:

John Sparkes, Director of Regeneration
and Economic Development

Wards affected:

All

Tel: (0191)643 6091

PART 1
1.1

Executive Summary:
Cabinet received a report of the Economic Prosperity Sub-Committee of the Overview,
Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee on Green Skills for Retrofit Jobs on 23 May
2022 which set out a series of recommendations for Cabinet to consider.
This is an extensive and complex series of recommendations which require detailed
consideration by Cabinet in order to respond in full. Detailed work is ongoing in relation to
the recommendations made by the Economic Prosperity Sub-Committee and it is
proposed that a full report is presented to Cabinet on 1 August 2022 where a full
response to the recommendations will be presented for its consideration.

1.2

Recommendation(s):
It is recommended that Cabinet note the contents of this report and agree to receive a
further report and action plan on 1 August 2022.

1.3

Forward Plan:
Twenty eight days notice of this report has been given and it first appeared on the
Forward Plan that was published on 29 April 2022.

1.4

Council Plan and Policy Framework
The report relates to the following priorities contained in the 2021/2025 Our North
Tyneside Plan:

Page 181

A thriving North Tyneside
We will bring more good quality jobs to North Tyneside – by helping local businesses to
grow and making it attractive for new businesses to set up or relocate in the borough
We will invest in adult education and to support apprenticeships to make sure people
have the right skills for the job
A green North Tyneside
We will publish an action plan of the steps we will take and the national investment we
will seek to make North Tyneside carbon net-zero by 2030
1.5

Information:

1.5.1 Background
Cabinet received a report of the Economic Prosperity Sub-Committee of the Overview,
Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee on Green Skills for Retrofit Jobs on 23 May
2022 which set out a series of recommendations for Cabinet to consider.
1.5.2 The 10 recommendations in the Economic Prosperity Sub-Committee’s report are
extensive and complex and require further time for Cabinet to give detailed consideration
and a full response to each recommendation.
1.5.3 The recommendations have been positively received and support our policy objectives
and our approach to tackling climate change. It is therefore proposed that a further
detailed report and associated Action Plan be presented to Cabinet on 1 August 2022
which will provide a full response to the recommendations made by the Economic
Prosperity Sub-Committee.
1.6

Decision options:
The following decision options are available for consideration by Cabinet:
Option 1
Cabinet accepts the recommendations set out in paragraph 1.2.
Option 2
Cabinet does not accept the recommendations set out in paragraph 1.2 and provides an
alternative response to the report at the meeting.

1.7

Reasons for recommended option:
Option 1 is recommended for the following reasons:
This will allow Cabinet the necessary time to fully address the recommendations raised in
the Green Skills for Retrofit Jobs and provide a detailed response and Action Plan.

1.8

Appendices:
None

Page 182

1.9

Contact officers:
Paul Dowling, Head of Regeneration & Transport, Tel: 643 6428
Paul Nelson, Head of Environmental Sustainability, Tel: 643 6467
Sean Collier, Senior Manager, Business & Enterprise, Tel: 643 6091
Mark Barrett, Senior Manager, Employment & Skills, Tel: 643 6061
David Dunford, Senior Business Partner, Strategic Finance, Tel: 643 7027

1.10

Background information:
No additional background papers/information have been used in the compilation of this
report

PART 2 – COMPLIANCE WITH PRINCIPLES OF DECISION MAKING
2.1

Finance and other resources
The financial implications associated with each recommendation will be included in
Cabinet’s response to the report which will be presented on 1 August 2022.

2.2

Legal
In accordance with Section 9FE of the Local Government Act 2000, Cabinet is required
to provide a response to the recommendations of the Overview, Scrutiny and Policy
Development Report. In providing this response, Cabinet is required to indicate what (if
any) action it proposes to take in relation the recommendations and the reasons for its
decision.

2.3

Consultation/community engagement
2.3.1 Internal Consultation
The Study Group met with those officers listed in the Green Skills for Retrofit Jobs report.
2.3.2 External Consultation/Engagement

2.4

The Study Group met with a range of key stakeholders from outside of the Council, listed
in the Green Skills for Retrofit Jobs report.
.
Human rights
There are no direct human rights implications arising from this report.

2.5

Equalities and diversity
There are no direct implications of equality and diversity arising from this report.

2.6

Risk management
There are no specific risk management implications arising from this report.

2.7

Crime and disorder

Page 183

There are no specific crime and disorder implications arising from this report.
2.8

Environment and sustainability
The report is directly related to the Council’s decision to declare a climate emergency
and to publish an action plan of the steps it will take and the national investment it will
seek to make North Tyneside carbon net-zero by the earlier date of 2030.

PART 3 - SIGN OFF
Chief Executive
Director(s) of Service

X

Mayor/Cabinet Member(s)

Chief Finance Officer

X

Monitoring Officer
Assistant Chief Executive

Page 184

Economic Prosperity Sub-Committee Report

Green Skills for Retrofit Jobs

April 2022

Page 185

1.

Introduction

1.1

The Council’s Economic Prosperity Sub-Committee is a scrutiny committee. It
has no decision making powers but it examines matters relating to the
economy, transport and tourism in North Tyneside and makes
recommendations to the Elected Mayor and her Cabinet to help shape the
Council’s future policies, plans and strategies.

1.2

In determining its work programme for 2021/22 the sub-committee agreed to
appoint a sub-group to examine the Council’s approach to adapting to a green
industrial revolution and ensuring people have the right skills for the future
green jobs.

1.3

At the same time the Chair of the Sub-Committee, Councillor Matt Wilson, as
part of the Executive Leadership Academy, had studied the steps required to
ensure buildings in the borough have the lowest possible carbon emissions
and how the local workforce might be equipped with the required skills,
qualifications and accreditations to upgrade building insulation and ventilation
and switch energy source from gas to green electricity, via a process known
as ‘retrofitting’. In response to this work the Elected Mayor, Norma Redfearn,
asked Councillor Wilson to work with the Sub-Committee, in conjunction with
the Children, Education and Skills Sub-Committee, to do some further policy
development work on this area to explore what opportunities are available and
what the Council might do to support businesses and residents to take them.

1.3

In response the sub-committee appointed a sub group, made up of members
of the Economic Prosperity Sub-Committee, Environment Sub Committee and
Children, Education and Skills Sub-Committee. The following members
agreed to serve on the sub group:
Councillor Matt Wilson (Lead)
Councillor Brian Burdis
Councillor Bruce Pickard
Councillor Margaret Hall
Councillor Trish Brady
Councillor Liam Bones
Councillor Maureen Madden

2.

Objectives and Key Lines of Enquiry

2.1

The Big Why:
At the outset of this sub group there were three main drivers;
To stimulate and support new economic activity that would be beneficial in
terms of the quality of jobs available and the overall prosperity of the borough.
To make a difference in terms of reducing overall greenhouse gas emissions
in North Tyneside.
To respond to the growing sense of alarm around energy costs which are
affecting both households and businesses.
As the work of the sub group progressed the third item on the list above was
brought into ever-greater relief. It has quickly risen up the agenda nationally
as a matter of critical importance.

Page 186

2.2

In setting the objectives of the sub group, members were mindful that the
transition to a low carbon economy will be an enormous and complex task and
so they agreed to focus attention on one element of the agenda, namely the
retrofitting of the building stock in North Tyneside. Retrofit is the process of
upgrading existing homes and buildings to make them more energy efficient.
This usually involves improving the fabric of the building through installing
insulation, upgrading the building services and introducing renewable energy
and heat sources such as solar panels and heat pumps.

2.3

Accordingly, the sub-group were asked to:
a) consider the steps required to ensure residential, public, commercial and
industrial buildings in the borough have the lowest possible carbon
emissions to support the Council’s 2030 net zero ambition;
b) analyse the skills, qualifications and accreditations that will need to be
gained by the local workforce so that:
i. they are equipped to deliver energy efficient buildings;
ii. the need for imported skills is avoided; and
iii. the borough benefits from the low carbon economic growth;
c) identify sources of funding that could be accessed for skills and training
from a variety of sources to support the local economy; and
d) make recommendations to the Elected Mayor and Cabinet on how the
Council and its partners might stimulate the local training market so that
the required skills, qualifications and accreditations can be taught to our
residents by North Tyneside based providers.

3.

Methodology

3.1

The sub group began by formulating a work programme in which it identified
detailed key lines of enquiry and relevant sources of evidence. The sub group
then held a series of evidence gathering meetings with officers and key
stakeholders during January and February 2022 (listed in Appendix A). The
sub group have also had regard to a wealth of policy documents and research
papers which have been published in relation to decarbonising the built
environment and the skills and jobs that will be required to deliver it. These
are also listed in Appendix A together with hyperlinks to the documents for
reference purposes.

4.

What factors should be considered when seeking to cut greenhouse gas
emissions from residential, public, commercial and industrial buildings
in the borough to support the Council’s 2030 net zero ambition?

4.1

National. In 2019, the UK Government set a target of achieving net zero
emissions by 2050. In July 2019 the Council, like many other local authorities,
agreed to declare a climate emergency, to seek to halve the Authority’s and
the Borough’s carbon footprint by 2023 and commit that itself and the
Borough will be carbon neutral by 2050 in line with the national target. Since
then, and in acknowledging the gravity and urgency of the climate emergency,
the Council agreed to publish an action plan of the steps it will take and the
national investment it will seek to make North Tyneside carbon net-zero by
the earlier date of 2030.

Page 187

4.2

Local. In September 2020 the Council’s Climate Emergency Board formulated
a range of policy proposals, aimed at achieving the Council’s carbon reduction
targets. An action plan contained a series of strategic projects to decarbonise
buildings, heating and electricity. These projects provide an indication of the
scale of the retrofit challenge, as they included
a)
the large scale roll out of an ambitious housing stock retrofit
programme across the Council’s 14,000 council houses;
b)
an acceleration of energy efficiency retrofit in the 90,000 owner
occupied and private rented homes in North Tyneside;
c)
the promotion of industrial clusters to integrate and connect large
industries within the Borough to deliver decarbonisation and energy
savings; and
d)
the rollout of heat pumps in Council and wider public sector buildings
across North Tyneside, including schools.
Note: The group heard that in North Tyneside, electrifying heat via heat
pumps can achieve 88% reduction in CO2 by 2030; 91% by 2050.

4.3

Regional. Further evidence of the retrofit challenge has been produced for the
North of Tyne Combined Authority1 to support the preparation of a business
plan for a large scale housing retrofit programme designed to reduce fuel
poverty and carbon emissions. This work concluded that:
a) local retrofit rates will need to ramp up quickly. To achieve net zero
emissions by 2030 will require over 80,000 homes to be retrofitted per
year by 2027; more than 10 times the current rate; and
b) the cost of achieving the net zero emissions by 2030 will require an
estimated £13bn in funding, beyond known current and forthcoming grant
funding.

4.4

a) Sectoral - Housing. The sub group has also heard how other sectors are
addressing retrofit. Registered Housing Providers such as Bernicia, who
manage 1,000 properties in North Tyneside, are setting targets to improve
energy efficiency and reduce carbon emissions in their homes. They estimate
that the net zero ambition will require approximately £20,000 of investment
per property.
b) Sectoral – Commercial & Industrial. Many large industrial and commercial
premises in the borough are dated and inefficient. Others, such as The
Quorum Business Park, whilst fairly modern, no longer satisfy today’s higher
standards. As corporate ESG (Environmental, Social and Governance)
responsibilities become more important, businesses are now beginning to give
consideration to retrofit options and how they might be funded.
The group found that both sectors described above were very positive
towards working collaboratively with the Council to reduce overall emissions.
There was a recognition that the issues are complex and the sharing of
knowledge and learning is vital.

4.5

1

The Council has made a start and is making progress in reducing carbon
emissions from its buildings:

Building the evidence base for retrofit in the North of Tyne – Energy Saving Trust

Page 188

Energy efficient air source heat pumps are being installed at Hadrian
Leisure Centre, Tynemouth Swimming Pool, The Lakeside Centre and
Waves.
Energy surveys are being undertaken of the Authority’s buildings with a
view to developing a Renewable Heat and Energy Plan and the
Council’s Estates Strategy will be reviewed and aligned to the aims and
objectives of the Climate Emergency Plan.
The retrofitting of the Council’s 14,000 homes housing stock is starting
from a strong position following the installation of solar PV and double
glazing and provision has been included in the Capital Plan for high
efficiency boilers, cavity wall insulation replacement and solar PV
installation alongside roof replacements, supported with funding from
the Green Homes Grant Local Authority Delivery (LAD) but the overall
cost of retrofitting the housing stock is estimated to be £280m.
This work means the Council is leading by example and acting as a trailblazer
in demonstrating the benefits of installing low carbon, energy efficient heating
systems which may help persuade others to follow the Council’s lead.
4.6

It is important that when the council embarks on and completes pathbreaking
projects such as those listed above, detailed learning is shared widely with a
range of stakeholders and interested parties. The development of some kind
of Knowledge Bank containing case studies would be very helpful.

4.7

Property owners are facing a range of risks and challenges associated with
retrofit including:
a) uncertainties about the development of future technologies such as
hydrogen and the risks of investment regret by adopting currently
available solutions that are superseded by more efficient future systems;
b) avoiding additional repairs and maintenance burdens;
c) avoiding increased fuel poverty;
d) a lack of a supply chain and the skills required to deliver assessment,
advice, design, installation and maintenance services; and
f) the national infrastructure required to support some new technologies

4.8

The Council will also face challenges in achieving its 2030 net zero ambition
when national targets, schemes and funding frameworks are not synchronised
because they are based on the 2050 target.

5.

How should we understand the opportunities and the costs of a large
scale retrofitting initiative?

5.1

The low carbon economy is predicted to grow four times faster than the rest of
the economy over the next decade and the transition to this green economy
provides a real opportunity for driving the post-pandemic economic recovery.
The Government forecasts that the policies and proposals for heat and
buildings set out in its Net Zero Strategy will support up to 100,000 jobs in the
middle of the 2020s and up to 175,000 in 2030 and attract additional public
and private investment of approximately £200 billion.
Notably, as the sub group was concluding its work the Chancellor, in his
spring statement, announced a new zero VAT rating for a range of retrofit
products such as solar panels, heat pumps and insulation.

Page 189

5.2

Research undertaken for the North of Tyne Combined Authority indicates that
a large scale housing retrofit programme in the area to reach Net Zero by
2050 has the potential to support between 1,500 and 3,500 FTEs in the
retrofitting sector from 2022 up to 2030, and between 2,500 and 5,800 FTEs
from 2030 to 2050. The scale of activity required to reach Net Zero by 2030
will require a markedly higher labour input over the period 2022-2030.

5.3

However, it is also true that the transition to a net zero economy and in
particular the retrofitting of homes and buildings is often presented and
perceived in terms of a significant cost to homeowners, landlords and other
property owners. The sub group believe that it is important that the council
carefully holds these two truths (opportunity and cost) in tension. The
narrative around economic opportunity, in terms of stimulating new economic
activity and increasing per worker productivity, appears underdeveloped.

5.3

One key challenge will therefore involve enabling ‘Green Finance’, both grants
and loans, to flow into the borough, through a variety of routes. This is
essential in order to pay capital investments to be made into building fabric
that will deliver a positive return over the medium and long term in terms of
energy cost savings.

5.4

With relation to the local economy and labour market retrofit therefore
presents the borough with an opportunity to
a. create new and better jobs within an inclusive economy that offers local
people with a range of new and exciting career pathways;
b. transition people currently working in carbon intensive industries (such
as gas engineers) into the low carbon sector through retraining;
c. attract millions of pounds of investment expected in low carbon
technologies over the next decades.

5.5

In summary, the sub group are aware that over the years there have been
many policy initiatives to improve the energy efficiency of homes but consider
that there is now a new and real sense of urgency and momentum created by
the energy crisis, the climate emergency and the national and local net zero
targets.

6.

What skills, qualifications and accreditations will need to be gained by
the local workforce so that:
i. they are equipped to deliver energy efficient buildings;
ii. the need for imported skills is avoided; and
iii. the borough benefits from the low carbon economic growth?

6.1

In 2015 the government commissioned a review to identify and tackle the high
level of failure present in domestic retrofit, and to determine a better process
for the retrofit of energy efficiency and renewable energy measures. As a
result of this review PAS 2035 was introduced to provide a set of standards
and specifications for assessing domestic dwellings for energy retrofit and to
provide a best practice framework for their implementation. The government
has proposed to make compliance with PAS 2035 mandatory for all public
funded projects.

Page 190

6.2

PAS2035 has provided training organisations with the basis on which to
develop and deliver new qualifications. Organisations like The Retrofit
Academy CIC, a not for profit training company, have been set up to develop
and deliver qualifications that equip people with the knowledge and skills to
deliver retrofit excellence covering the different roles involved in the retrofit
process. The Retrofit Academy have created and offered the following
qualifications:
Level 5: Diploma in Retrofit Coordination and Risk Management
Level 4: Award in Domestic Retrofit Assessment
Level 3: Certificate in Domestic Retrofit Advice
Level 2: Award in Understanding Domestic Retrofit
These are all based on the PAS 2035 standards/specification for assessing
domestic dwellings for energy retrofit.

6.3

The sub group spoke to David Pierpoint of the Retrofit Academy CIC, a
recognised national expert, with experience of developing and delivering
qualifications that equip people with the knowledge and skills to deliver retrofit
excellence. He confirmed the scale of the retrofit challenge and the current
lack of capacity and skills within the construction industry to deliver large scale
retrofit programmes. He described how Retrofit Academy CIC had established
the UK Retrofit Training Network to bring together local authorities, training
providers, funding bodies, candidates and employers. Two pathfinder projects
have been established with Essex and Devon County Councils. The schemes
deliver the courses and qualifications developed by the Academy which are
based on the PAS 2035 standards framework for energy retrofit measures
and provides best practices for their implementation.

6.4

Tyne Coast College (TyneMet) were involved in the meeting with Retrofit
Academy CIC and afterwards confirmed the following:
“Tyne Coast college is committed to ensuring that our curriculum is forward
thinking, and that knowledge, skills, Personal development, attitudes and
behaviours are developed in consultation with, and to meet the needs of,
students, employers, the community needs and stakeholders.
One aspect of this is equipping our Construction and Engineering students
with ‘Green’ skills in areas such as sustainability, renewables, and retrofitting.
This additionally supports our commitment to North Tyneside Council’s ‘Net
Zero targets’ and our dedication to working with the local council ‘Green Skills
Subgroup’ to develop our innovative and ambitious ‘green curriculum’.”

6.5

Whilst many of the skills required for retrofit will be specific to the sector, the
transition will require and support an array of skills not unique to retrofit. The
NTCA2 has identified three categories of skills relating to:
a)
professional services; in relation to retrofit advice, design, compliance,
and monitoring and verification services; and
b)
installation; such as air and ground source heat pumps, solar
photovoltaic, insulation and energy efficient windows and doors.
c)
project support; including marketing, customer service, estimation,
procurement, contract management, quality management,
commissioning, testing and performance monitoring;

Developing a Delivery Framework for Climate Change Improvements Across Domestic and NonDomestic Properties Across the North of Tyne Authority
2

Page 191

6.6

The sub group supports the NTCA’s commitment within its Skills Strategy
2021-23 to deliver a skills system which will equip the local workforce with the
right skills to build an inclusive and competitive low carbon economy and to
work with providers to consider the technical qualifications that will be required
in curriculum planning and development. This includes a recognition of the
requirement to train young people and create apprenticeships, T-levels and
similar pathways, in order to enable access to the emerging technologies of
the future.

6.7

There now needs to be a borough-wide retrofit skills assessment to identify in
detail the skills needed and the phasing of training to meet expected demand
across the area. Any assessment should:
a) engage with local employers to assess and map existing demand and
deliver training to match actual demand;
b) identify the different interventions required to deliver the breadth of skills
required as set out in paragraph 5.4; and
c) include a monitoring and evaluation framework to capture learning.

6.8

The sub group also noted risks associated with creating new jobs in the
retrofit sector. There is the possibility of displacement (the increase in low
carbon economic activity being offset by reductions in economic activity in
other sectors) and substitution (employers meeting the demand for increased
housing retrofit activity by switching away from other areas of their work
without increasing overall employment.) The sub group is also concerned
about the sustainability of employment created by a retrofit programme and
the extent to which skills obtained for this purpose could be transferrable to
other parts of the construction sector in the longer term.

6.9

This concern has particular salience with respect to the pace at which retrofit
takes place. A sudden rush to retrofit at scale may be needed from a Climate
Emergency point of view, but could have unintended consequences in terms
of producing a ‘boom and bust’ effect. This has been modelled by consultants
working for NTCA, showing 2030 and 2050 scenarios. See below:

Page 192

7.

What sources of funding could be accessed for skills and training to
support the local economy?

7.1

Attracting ‘Green Finance’ into the borough will be critical. The sub group
discovered various sources of funding and resources available to equip
people with the skills required for retrofit. A portfolio of models is required, not
a one-size-fits-all approach. Longevity of funding models is of key importance
and private finance needs to be commercially attractive to investors i.e. a
positive return-on-investment must be proven within a given time frame.
Pilots, trials and demonstrator projects can be used to establish feasibility and
grow the number of willing to invest in their properties, be they domestic or
commercial.

7.2

The NTCA has allocated £2m within its Skills for Growth Fund for innovative
proposals that equip people with the skills they need to capitalise on the
growing employment opportunities in the Low Carbon and Renewable Energy
Economy. Two projects have received funding:
i)

Geon Training Solutions Ltd have developed a project to address the
skills shortage in the construction sector; in particular, green construction
skills needed to deliver the domestic retrofit agenda. The objective is to
increase local employment numbers and address the skills shortage
through sustainable, meaningful employment opportunities tailored to
individual learner needs, aptitudes and capabilities. Partnered with ReGeon, Karbon Homes, Shaw Construction, HS Scaffolding, MGM Ltd,
Utility Team and Ovington Boats. The programme consists of regulated
and non-regulated qualifications in Domestic Retrofit & Environmental
Sustainability in Construction. If approved they will begin delivery in May
2022;

ii) Newcastle University Group are to work with the retrofit supply chain to
identify the skills required to install heat pumps, smart meters etc and
formulate a curriculum to be shared with colleges to plug the skills gaps.
This work will consider training standards to ensure there is quality and
consistency. It will also consider non-accredited areas outside formal
qualifications such as licenses to practice.
7.3

The NTCA has control of the £23m Adult Education Budget which to date has
been targeted at entry level courses and Level 2 employability skills in relation
to the construction sector and it is acknowledged that there will need to be a
shift in emphasis towards low carbon, green technologies.

7.4

Government funded Skills Boot Camps delivered as part of the Lifetime Skills
Guarantee, offer free, flexible courses of up to 16 weeks aimed at giving
people the opportunity to build up sector-specific skills and fast-track to an
interview with a local employer. The NTCA has submitted a bid for £5m from
the Government to deliver a Skills Boot Camp programme to include green
construction skills and recognise retrofit.

Page 193

7.5

European Social Funding for projects to provide training opportunities for
unemployed and economically inactive people is coming to an end. It is hoped
that the new UK Shared Prosperity Fund may go some way to plugging this
gap. Details of UKSPF were not available at the time the Sub Group was
considering evidence. Some details have subsequently been released by the
Government revealing that funding is expected to align with the 12 ‘missions’
contained within the recent ‘Levelling Up’ white paper. North of Tyne
Combined Authority (NTCA) have been allocated £51.2m to invest over three
years which is significantly lower than the equivalent EU funding allocation.
NTCA are developing a Local Investment Plan to be submitted to Government
by 1 August 2022. The Plan will take account of the 3 themes set out by
Government: communities and place, local businesses and people and skills.

7.6

Funding for apprenticeships and the Apprenticeship Levy. There are however
currently no apprenticeships directly related to retrofit or the PAS2035
standards. Responsibility for the establishment of these programmes rests
with major employers to work in conjunction with the Institute of
Apprenticeships to create new apprenticeships standards as demand
emerges. The sub group heard of inertia within the construction industry to
engage with energy efficiency and decarbonisation programmes. Similarly, the
process of creating new apprenticeship programmes takes a long time with
the development of standards for the low carbon sector only just beginning.

7.7

The Government has committed significant additional funding to the roll out of
T Levels. T Levels are two-year courses that can be studied by 16-18 year
olds and equivalent to 3 A Levels. They are technical-based qualifications
developed in collaboration with employers and businesses so that the content
meets the needs of industry and prepares students for work. T Levels will be
offered in relation to engineering for construction, design, surveying and
planning for construction and onsite construction.

7.8

The Retrofit Academy reported that in its experience around 60% of its
learners were self-funded and 40% either part or fully funded by a range of
government sources including Adult Education Budgets (Manchester), DfE
Innovation Fund (West Midlands) and the Community Renewal Fund (Devon
& Essex). Offering a financial incentive to professionals looking to upskill is
likely to help offset the risk to those professionals of shifting focus towards a
newly emerging sector. This could be in the form of loan, grant, or a mix.

7.10

The sub group also acknowledged the range of activities that are engaged in
raising aspirations, changing perceptions and convincing young people that
there are opportunities in the low carbon sector to build a successful career in
the future. Whilst there is little reference to the impact of the climate
emergency within the National Curriculum, schools in North Tyneside do
address the topic with young people through a wide range of extra curricular
activities. Careers advice and guidance within schools relating to retrofit is
currently not well developed and needs work.

7.11

There have been a range of Government, LEP and NTCA interventions to
lever in private sector investment, but this is reliant on confidence within the
sector. Uncertainties regarding future funding for retrofit programmes such as
the Green Homes Grant have not helped. A portfolio of scalable, sustainable
funding models for retrofit will stimulate demand and offer confidence to the

Page 194

construction sector, which in turn will lead to greater investment in training
people in the skills required. The NTCA3 have shortlisted funding models for a
large scale retrofit programme but these models are yet to be fully evaluated.
7.12

At the domestic level a number of Green Finance initiatives have been
proposed to NTCA and could therefore present options for North Tyneside:
•

Secured Loans

•

•
Demand
Aggregation
Finance (DAF)

•
•

Pay as you save

•

Secured loan allows homeowners to borrow money
while using property as ‘security’
May lead to better mortgage terms as house value
increases with energy efficiency and because
borrowers are less likely to default on their loans with
lower energy bills
Online service, coupled with new financial products,
that establishes ‘critical mass’ for a retrofit technology
(eg heat pumps) in a local area
Lowers up-front and financing costs for property owners
that register interest in scheme
Utility company pays for upfront cost of a distributed
energy solution and recovers costs on the monthly bill
with charge less than savings
Customer sees positive cash flow at start of the
operation, and once the utility recovers its costs, the
equipment belongs to the customer

8.

A North Tyneside Retrofit Strategy

8.1

Offering a simple overview the retrofitting process is important in helping
stakeholders to see the sequence of events required to develop and complete
each individual project, whether domestic or commercial. The process can be
seen as a chain linking 3 key elements:
a) Assessing and advising. This is the design end of the process. Retrofit
requires a set of assessment skills and qualifications to specify in detail,
with costings, the appropriate works within any specific building. The skills
are currently lacking in the borough and the wider area so training stimulus
needed. Trust is vital, the advice people require is highly technical, specific
and detailed with estimated costs that are realistic. An NTC approved list
of advisors is needed. PAS2035 is an essential qualification.
b) Securing Finance, which requires a range of financial products, for
example, Homeowners may re-mortgage with a green mortgage product
releasing equity to pay for work, thereby adding capital value to their home
and also reducing monthly cost of energy. Grant funding could be offered
towards pilot schemes that help to illuminate the costs, benefits and
project delivery challenges. This may be best aimed at commercial
projects and higher volume domestic work e.g. Housing Associations.
c) Implementing the work on site. Retrofit requires a set of technical skills
and qualifications to ultimately deliver on site whatever improvements

3

Building the evidence base for retrofit in the North of Tyne – Energy Savings Trust

Page 195

have been specified at the assess & advise stage. These skills are
currently lacking in the borough and the wider area so training stimulus
needed. Quality is essential, the highest standards must be achieved.
Poor work risk reputational damage which could slow down progress, as
was shown in previous poor quality cavity wall insulation schemes, many
of which failed. Again, an NTC approved list of technical providers is
needed. Projects should be followed up with case studies and impact
evaluations.
8.2

The sub group gave consideration as to how the Council must intervene to
affect the prevailing market dynamics so that each stage of the retrofitting
chain is in place and ready to hand on to the next. The model below shows
that whilst the 3 main elements within the retrofitting process are delivered by
the private sector*, the market is currently very fragile and requires the
support of the council to ensure it functions effectively:
LEADERSHIP

NTC

Private
sector

NTC

ASSESSING
& ADVISING

SECURING
FINANCE

PROJECT
IMPLEMENTATION

PARTNERSHIP

*Note: The term ‘Private sector’ is used here loosely. For example, in Greater
Manchester homeowners can obtain specialist retrofitting assessment and
advice from People-Powered Retrofit, which is a Co-Operative enterprise.
8.3

Leadership
It was clear from the evidence submitted by The Retrofit Academy that the
Council has a key leadership role to play in stimulating the local retrofit market
in North Tyneside. In order to stimulate demand for retrofit activity, a
communications strategy should be developed to create and maintain a sense
of urgency regarding the climate emergency and promote the opportunities
and benefits of retrofitting homes and buildings, including cost savings in the
light of energy price rises.

8.3

Partnership
At such an early stage it is not sufficient to hope that the local retrofitting
market will self-develop according to an ‘invisible hand’. Potential points of
failure need to be anticipated which requires a 360 degree view. This will only
be achieved through a co-ordinated approach working in collaboration with
training providers, funding bodies, employers and local communities. The
Climate Emergency Partnership Board will be key, if retrofit can be properly
established as a Working Group within it. See below.

Page 196

9.
9.1

A North Tyneside Retrofit Partnership
The Authority cannot deliver this strategy alone. It will require co-ordinated
action from a diverse range of stakeholders including the private sector,
funding agencies, training providers, and communities too.

9.2

The sub group found a desire from the private sector to advance more quickly
against the carbon reduction goals and a recognition that retrofitting their
buildings is an important part of this. For example, the operators of Quorum
Business Park, Shelbourne Assets, are keen to work collaboratively with
tenants, landlords and businesses on the Park to identify retrofit options and
solutions. Whilst businesses located at Quorum have experience on how to
make the Park more sustainable they do not have the knowledge or expertise
to deliver net zero, particularly with reference to the fossil fuel consumption
within existing buildings. They are therefore keen to collaborate with others in
taking a lead on retrofit and may be willing to lead by example in contributing
towards the delivering the Council’s net zero ambition.

9.3

The sub group also heard from registered housing providers who would
consider joining a net zero group.

9.4

It is suggested that an external partnership board be established.
An aspirational retrofit engagement event could be used to test levels of
interest and secure involvement. This could then be followed by a more detail
oriented gathering of stakeholders to determine the terms of reference.
The Board could have 2 sub-groups:
Commercial/industrial property retrofit
Domestic property retrofit

10.

A North Tyneside Retrofit Academy

10.1

To ensure that the North Tyneside economy takes full advantage of the
opportunities presented by retrofit and that local people benefit from the jobs
created, it will be necessary to create a local pipeline of training for the
following groups:
a) providing young people at school, during further education and
apprenticeships with the aspirations, basic skills, technical skills and
career pathways to work in the retrofit sector;
b) upskilling those already working in construction sector and related trades
and professions; and
c) re-skilling those moving into this area from other sectors.

10.2

The sub group believes there is an opportunity for North Tyneside to become
a leader in the delivery of retrofit training regionally. The Retrofit Academy has
demonstrated in places like Essex and Devon that it is possible to establish
local partnerships, secure funding, and stimulate demand to deliver PAS2035
based qualifications through local retrofit academies. The NTCA have also
taken a lead locally in delivering retrofit training through its Skills for Growth
Fund.

10.3

The sub group concludes that the Council ought to commission a suitably
qualified education/training institution to establish a Retrofit Academy in North

Page 197

Tyneside to deliver PAS2035 compliant qualifications, according to the
national Quality Assurance standards.

11.

Recommendations
The Cabinet is recommended to consider:

11.1

Developing a Retrofit Strategy to stimulate the local retrofit market, including a
phased approach to:
a)
b)
c)

retrofitting of the Council’s 14,000 council houses
acceleration of energy efficiency retrofit in the 90,000 private homes
development of industrial/commercial retrofit clusters

11.2

Integrating the above as a key area of focus within its existing Climate
Emergency Action Plan.

11.3

Establishing the Climate Emergency Partnership Board. Within this establish
two retrofitting working groups, one focused on industrial/commercial property,
the other on residential property. Membership of the groups should be
extended to significant property owners in the borough who share our
ambition to lower the carbon footprint of their buildings and are committed to
sharing best practice.

11.4

Developing a communications strategy to stimulate demand by creating and
maintaining a sense of urgency regarding the twin benefits of energy
efficiency and carbon reduction. Promote the opportunities and benefits of
retrofitting homes and buildings, including cost savings in the light of energy
price rises.

11.5

Developing a set of scenarios (fast, medium, slow) for the retrofitting of
various building types under various ownership. Consider undertaking this
work in concert with colleagues at NTCA.

11.6

Developing a Knowledge Bank for the sharing of locally relevant retrofitting
information, evaluation and case studies.

11.7

Ensuring that the relevant officers take up the challenge of enabling ‘Green
Finance’, both grants and loans, to flow into the borough, through a variety of
routes.

11.8

Increasing the number of PAS2035 qualified professionals in North Tyneside
by commissioning a Retrofit Academy in North Tyneside for the delivery of
PAS2035 qualifications. Recognise that this is likely to require the offer of
some kind of financial incentive to professionals looking to upskill, to mitigate
the risk to those professionals of shifting focus towards a newly emerging
sector.

11.9

Commissioning pilots, trials and demonstrator projects that can be used to
establish feasibility and grow the number of willing to invest in their properties,
be they domestic or commercial.

Page 198

11.10 Working closely with the North of Tyne Combined Authority on its retrofittingrelated workstreams, to ensure that North Tyneside is an early adopter of any
programmes to upskill in green construction skills and to accelerate the pace
of retrofitting of local property.

Page 199

Appendix A
Sources of Evidence
The following background documents have been considered in the course of the sub
group’s investigation:
North Tyneside Climate Emergency Action Plan
UK Green Building Council
Energy Efficiency Infrastructure Group
National Energy Action
North Tyneside General Hospital

BREEAM - Sustainability Assessment Method
Green Homes Grant Local Authority Delivery scheme, Phase 2: funding allocated to
Local Energy Hubs - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)
NTCA Green New Deal Fund
Retrofit Academy

Salix Finance
Local Climate Bonds
Financing energy efficient buildings: the path to retrofit at scale
Green Homes Grant Local Authority Delivery Scheme
Skills for Jobs White Paper
Government Green Jobs Taskforce
CBI – Skills and Training for the Green Economy
LGA – Local Green Jobs
Skills for a Green Economy
NTCA Green Growth Skills
NTCA Strategic Skills Plan
Green Jobs Barometer - PwC UK
Place Based Climate Action Network
Microgeneration Certification Scheme
TrustMark & The Delivery of PAS 2035
Net Zero in the North East of England: regional transition impacts
Building Skills for Net Zero - CITB
Retrofit Academy CIC
GreenerSussex

The sub group would like to place on record its thanks and appreciation to the
following people for agreeing to meet with the sub group to discuss and consider the
skills required to retrofit the building stock in North Tyneside:
Councillor Sandra Graham
Paul Nelson, Environmental Sustainability Manager
John Sparkes, Head of Regeneration and Economic Development
Niall Cathie, Strategic Property Manager
Wayne Stark, Operational Manager
Iain Betham, Senior Manager: Strategic Investment & Property
Laura McGrath, Events and Sustainability Lead, Shelbourne Asset Management
(Quorum Park)
David Foster, Senior Manager Housing Property and Construction
Robert Peach, Housing Strategy
Sean Lemon, Energy Savings Trust
Jess Baker & Kat Deyes, Frontier Economics
Chris Fry, Accelar
Michael Farr, Bernicia Homes
Gareth McQuillan, School Improvement Advisor (Science)

Page 200

David Baldwin, North Tyneside Learning Trust
Belinda Payne, Apprenticeship Manager
Louise Robson, Senior Manager Organisational Development
Graeme Barker, Head of Engineering, Manufacturing and IT, Tyne Met College
Gregory Kirkbride, Head of Engineering, Tyne Met College
Sam Ogle, Head of Construction and Digital, Tyne Met College
David Pierpoint, Retrofit Academy CIC
Michelle Stone, North of Tyne Combined Authority
Mark Barrett, Senior Manager Employment and Skills
Sarah Heslop, Strategic Manager Commercial and Procurement

Page 201

This page is intentionally left blank

